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DIRECTOR’S STATEMENT
EFHEE

The board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of Aceso Life Science Group
Limited (the “Company”) is pleased to present the shareholders of the Company
(the “Shareholders”) the annual results of the Company and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2024 (the “Year”).

During the Year, the global economy still faced many challenges, including the
ongoing Russian-Ukraine war, geopolitical tensions, high global inflation and
interest rate, which also had certain impact on global economic activities. Among
this complicated external environment, the Group has adopted a sound financial
policy, and actively explored new development opportunities.

We expected the market conditions of 2024 to be similar to last year. Although
the global and local economic and business environment are still affected by
various uncertainties, the Group will continue to create value for shareholders
and seize opportunities, continue to optimize its business portfolio, and get ready
for new investment opportunities.

For of the existing construction machinery business, the Group recorded a
decrease in the (i) sales of construction machinery and spare parts which was
mainly attributable to the decrease in demand of brand new cranes manufactured
in Japan, and (ii) rental income generated from construction machinery which
was mainly attributable to some major construction sites (e.g. Hong Kong
International Airport 3 runway and Tseung Kwan O — Lam Tin Tunnel) having
been completed. The occupancy rate for the rental machineries was approximately
85%.

For the financial services business, we shall continue our busingss expansion
with a cautious and positive attitude. The Group is confident in the prospects of
the financial markets in Hong Kong and the Mainland China, and would like to
increase its presence in the financial markets by either organic growth or working
with reputable partners.

For our investment property in the United Kingdom (the “UK”), 55 Mark Lane,
the rental income was steady through the Year. The Group does not foresee
significant fluctuation in rental income in 2024.

Finally, on behalf of the Board, | would like to express my sincere gratitude
to all the Shareholders for their full support, and appreciate the directors, the
management and the staff for their valuable contributions to the Group, which
shall strive to streamline its existing businesses and to explore new business
opportunities in order to create returns for Shareholders.

Mr. Fok Chi Tak
Executive Director

Hong Kong, 26 June 2024
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

THEFWE S

BUSINESS REVIEW

2023 was another challenging year as major economies gradually resumed
economic activities among the post-pandemic era. The global economy was still
affected by the Russia-Ukraine War, heightened geo-political tension, military
occupation, high global inflation and interest rate. The global and Hong Kong
economy remained vulnerable as economic recovery was uneven in different
sectors. The Group remained resilient and focused on its existing businesses.

During the Year, the Group continued to pursue a long-term business strategy
of diversifying into financial services business, property leasing business,
property development business, and construction machinery business. The
Group’s principal activities include: (i) securities investment; (ii) provision of
securities brokerage and financial services; (iii) asset management; (iv) rental
and trading of construction machinery; (v) provision of repair and maintenance
and transportation service; (vi) property development; (vii) property leasing and
(viii) money lending.

Construction machinery business

The Group offers crawler cranes of different sizes, other mobile cranes, aerial
platforms and foundation equipment in its construction machinery rental
fleet. The Group procures these construction machinery mainly through the
manufacturers of construction machinery located in Western Europe, Japan and
China as well as traders of used construction machinery around the world.

The Group has maintained approximately 171 units of construction machinery
in the rental fleet during the Year. In order to maintain a modern fleet of
construction machinery with a greater variety of models, the Group has been
replacing portions of its fleet of construction machinery from time to time. The
Board will continue to monitor the daily operations and review the expansion
plan of the rental fleet and the capital requirements of the Group at regular
intervals. The Group may reschedule such expansion plan according to the
operation and needs, the preference of the target customers and the prevailing
market conditions if necessary. To satisfy customers’ needs, the Group also sells
spare parts for maintenance purposes or upon request.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEENRR TN

Financial services husiness

The Group provides a wide range of financial services. The Group holds licenses
for conducting Type 1 (dealing in securities), Type 4 (advising on securities) and
Type 9 (asset management) regulated activities under the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (the “SF0").

The revenue of the financial services business (including provision of asset
management, securities brokerage and other financial services) for the Year was
approximately HK$7 million (2023: approximately HK$10 million), representing
approximately 3% (2023: approximately 3%) of the total revenue of the Group
and a segment profit of approximately HK$5 million (2023: approximately HK$15
million). The decrease in revenue was mainly due to decrease in the value and
volume of transactions in securities brokerage.

In the course of preparing the financial statements for the Year, the Company had
reviewed the recoverable amount of the trading right of the business carrying
on the regulated activities of Type 1 (dealing in securities), Type 4 (advising on
securities) and Type 9 (asset management) as defined under the SFO. During the
Year, no impairment loss (2023: nil) on the trading right was recognised.

Money lending business

The Group holds money lender licenses under the Money Lenders Ordinance
in Hong Kong and the money lending business was conducted through its
subsidiaries, which grant loans to individuals and enterprises. The Group strived
to adhere to a set of comprehensive policies and procedural manuals in respect
of loan approval, loan renewal, loan recovery, loan compliance, monitoring and
anti-money laundering.

(a) The size and diversity and sources of its clients, and source of
funding of the money lending business

As at 31 March 2024, the Group had loans receivable with carrying
amount of approximately HK$47 million (2023: HK$145 million). A total
of approximately HK$5 million of the loan receivables and interest income
receivables was received from borrowers during the Year. The Group
recorded interest income from loans receivable of approximately HK$4
million for the Year (2023: HK$14 million). During the Year, the Group did
not grant any new loan (2023: two).

As at 31 March 2024, there were a total number of 12 borrowers
(comprising 10 individuals and 2 corporations) under the Company’s
Loan portfolio. The Company provides its mortgage financing service
to individual and corporation clients of different backgrounds, including
home owners and investment holding company, who are referred to it by
sales executives. The money lending business was funded by the internal
resources of the Group.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EERENRR TN

(b)

As at 31 March 2024, 12 loans with aggregate amount of approximately
HK$47 million were overdue, 10 loans were supported by personal
guarantee and/or secured by collaterals, with interest rate ranging from
8% to 16% per annum. A total of 11 cases with aggregate amount of
approximately HK$31 million were under legal proceedings (including
assets under public auctions).

As at 31 March 2024, the carrying amount outstanding from the five
largest borrowers of the Group was HK$45 million (representing 96%
to the total loans receivable of the Group) while the carrying amount
outstanding from the largest borrower amounted to HK$20 million
(representing approximately 43% to the total loans receivable of the
Group).

Credit risk assessment policy

The Group has performed background and credit risk assessment on the
potential borrowers before granting the loans by (a) searching on their
identity and background; (b) reviewing and assessing their financial
information; and (c) performing an assessment on their creditability.

The Group has adopted a credit policy to manage its money lending
business which includes compliance with all applicable laws and
regulations, credit assessment on potential borrower and his/its assets,
the credibility of the potential borrower, the necessity in obtaining
collaterals and determination of suitable interest rate to reflect the risk
level of the provision of loan.

The Company’s money lending business offers both secured and
unsecured loans to borrowers comprising individuals and corporations.
The Company has adopted a credit risk policy and put in place loan
approval procedures to manage its money lending business which
includes compliance with all applicable laws and regulations, credit
assessment on potential borrower and his/its assets, the credibility of the
potential borrower, the necessity in obtaining collaterals, assessment of
the use of proceeds and the source of repayment. Details of such policy
and procedures are all consolidated in an Internal Control Manual which
governs the operations of our money lending business and relevant staff
are required to abide by in conducting their behaviours and delivering
their target performance. In granting loans to clients, documents such as
loan application, proof of identity, employer/income verification, proof
of address and any relevant credit reports of potential borrowers. The
scope of money lending services provided by the money lending business
generally includes personal loans, and business loans on general working
capital. The Company tries to diversify the loan portfolio by providing to
different borrowers to lower the concentration risk. The Company does not
have preference for specific types of borrowers for loan acceptance (e.g.
job/business nature of borrower). The credit risk assessment was made
in case-by-case basis and the Company generally looks at the 5 Cs in
assessment of credit risk of borrowers, i.e. credit history, capacity to repay,
capital, the loan’s condition and associated collaterals. These include

(b)
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEENRR TN

(c)

8

but not limited to reviewing the financials of borrowers, considering
the borrower’s repayment history and evaluating whether the borrowers
are in bankruptcy, receivership or liquidation. Within a loan category,
the interest rates, the duration of the loan and repayment terms of the
loan vary and is determined by various factors such as background and
credibility of borrowers, their business plans and present and projected
operation performance, the collaterals or security to be made available by
these borrowers, and their repayment track records (if the loan is sought
by existing borrowers or former borrowers). The determination of the loan
terms reflects the risk level of the provision of loan and ensure the risk is
ata controllable level.

Key internal controls

The Group also assesses and decides the necessity and the value of
security/collaterals for granting of each loan, whether to an individual or
enterprise, on a case by case basis considering various factors, including
but not limited to, the repayment history, results of public search towards
the borrower, the value and location of the assets owned by the borrower
and the financial condition of the borrower.

For credit approval before granting loans to potential borrowers, the
Company performs credit assessment to assess the potential borrowers’
credit quality individually, such as their identity and background,
assessment on their creditability, financial background of the borrowers
(again, factors such as background and credibility of borrowers, their
business plans and present and projected operation performance, the
collateral security to be made available by these borrowers, and their
repayment track records (if the loan is sought by existing clients) are
considered), as well as the value and characteristics of the collaterals to
be pledged. The loan proposals will be prepared by the designated loan
officer and reviewed by risk management department of money lending
business on case specific issues in relation to the factors described above
to determing if they have been thoroughly considered. Risk management
department of money lending business will discuss each case in details
with loan officer to fine tune its loan proposal and risk management
department will make official comments on the submission draft. The loan
proposal together with the comments from risk management department
will then be sent to the approver(s), who are Director(s) designated with
such role and function for approval through physical meetings or emails.
Approver(s) may also comment, add pre-conditions and improve the
terms and conditions during this process. The relevant department head(s)
and approver(s) will sign off the proposals once approval is obtained for
proper record.

Aceso Life Science Group Limited  Annual Report 2023/24
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EERENRR TN

(d)

The Company has designated loan officer to closely monitor its loan
portfolio, including regular communication with the borrowers on
their financial position together with other measures such as monthly
assessment of valuation of collaterals (if any), repayment track record
of borrower(s), change of profile of borrower(s) (such as change of
employment and if there is additional liabilities on the part of the
borrower(s)), through which the Company will be able to keep updated
with the latest credit profile and risk associated with each individual
borrower and could take appropriate actions for recovery of a loan at the
earliest time. Further, the risk management department, which comprised
of officers with background in finance, auditing and experience in money
lending business, will review the risk level of each of the loans on a daily
basis and report to the senior management which includes Chief Executive
Officer, Financial Controller and the Board in some cases regularly on their
recommendation. From time to time, the risk management department of
the money lending business will alert the senior management on certain
events (e.g. failed repayment) and advise the Company to take appropriate
actions. The accounts department of the money lending business will also
keep track of the repayment schedule constantly and make alerts to senior
management, the Financial Controller and Chief Executive Officer in case
of failed or late repayment.

Recoverability and collection

At the end of each month, the designated loan officer will check if there is
any overdue balances or late payment and risk management department as
described above will perform an independent review on the loans portfolio
and closely monitor the status and report to the senior management.
Usually there would be internal discussions on a case-by-case basis on
what recovery actions to be taken so that the Company could recover
the most in a timely manner. Various potential means like phones calls,
seizure of collaterals, statutory demand letter and further legal actions
would be discussed. Reminder letter and statutory demand letter will be
issued to the borrower when considered appropriate if there is overdue
repayment. Where appropriate, legal action will be initiated against the
borrower for the recovery of the amount due and taking possession of
the collaterals pledged. Actions in seizure of collaterals and realization
of underlying collaterals would also be taken if necessary. Where
appropriate, the Company will also petition to the court for bankruptcy/
winding-up of the borrower and/or guarantor. Again, the recovery and
collection decisions and processes are included in the monthly risk
management report to the senior management.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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(e)

10

The Director who operates and oversees the money lending business
have extensive experiences and knowledge in the industry. The risk
management department has a senior financial manager of the Company’s
money lending business and holds a bachelor’s degree in business and an
associated degree in psychology, and has more than 15 years’ experiences
in the money lending industry. The Company’s management team, which
includes the chief executive officer, chief financial officer of the Company
and the Company’s financial controller and the company secretary, also
possesses over 10 years of experiences in the corporate and banking
industry and the field of accounting and auditing. Further, most of
the Board members also possess extensive experiences in corporate
financing, investments and banking and financial advisory services.

Compliance with Chapter 14 and/or 14A of the Listing Rules
and Money Lenders Ordinance

Our Group is required to, and has at all times, strictly comply with all
relevant laws and regulations. The Company has complied with those
requirements as set out in Chapter 14 and/or 14A of the Listing Rules
when it granted or extended the loans to each of the respective borrower
whose loan was still outstanding as at 31 March 2024.

In addition to the Listing Rules, the Money Lenders Ordinance constituted
a major governance on our Group’s money lending business in Hong
Kong. During the Year, we did not receive any objection from and was not
investigated by the Registrar of Money Lenders (currently performed by
the Registrar of Companies) nor the Commissioner of Police regarding the
renewal of the money lenders license.
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(f)  Amount of loan receivables secured by pledge of collaterals (f) REHSZNERLSEFNERERESHE
and guarantees, and nature of the collaterals DRERSHEE

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

—E_plE —T=F
=ZA=+—B =A=t-~H
HK$’million HK$'million
BHERET BEAT
Hong Kong money lending business BB E T
— Secured only by corporate notes, sharesand ~ —{Z A FEGR A RIZEE  BREF
properties BEEER 30 23
— Secured only by personal guarantees —EEAERERER - 30
— Secured only by corporate notes, receivable —EUARER - EIRFIBNE
and properties and personal guarantees EREAERERER 17 32
— Unsecured and no guarantee —EER R ER - 27
47 112
(g) Maturity profile of loan receivables () MEERREOIER
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
ot Joma] 11 - el =rE
ZA=+—B =A=+—H
HK$’million HK$'million
BHRET BEAT
Hong Kong money lending business
Due within 1 year 47 112
47 112

(h) Mortgage loan and personal loan interest rate

(h) WRBIARRBOFEFIE

The mortgage loan interest rate ranges from 8% to 15% per annum (2023: YZEBBNEZRFE BB EBW(—E =
8% to 15% per annum). The personal loan interest rate ranges from 11% F - 8%i15%) BB EF E 1% E
to 16% per annum (2023: 11% to 16% per annum). 16%(ZZF==F : N1%=E16%) °

T/ NEFR SREHNREEARAT 11



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEENWR DM
(i) Reasons for the movements in impairment provisions in the year

12

The provision of impairment recognised in the consolidated statement of
profit and loss for year ended 31 March 2024 are HK$88 million (2023:
reversal of impairment of approximately HK$22 million). The provision
of impairment was due to loan of approximately HK$238 million being
overdue during the Year.

The Company adopted the requirements in respect of ECL assessment set
forth in HKFRS 9 issued by the HKICPA in determining the impairment
loss allowance for its loan receivables. The details of the accounting
policies in respect of the impairment assessment of financial assets are
set out in the consolidated financial statements of the Group in the Annual
Report. The Company has taken into account the following factors on
the impairment assessment for the outstanding loans and unlisted debt
securities due from the connected parties and independent third parties
in accordance with the HKFRS 9: (i) the probability of default and the
likelihood that the borrowers may fail to pay back the loans. The Company
will perform due diligence on the financial statements and consider the
macro-environment and the latest announcements of the borrowers. The
repayment history of the borrowers will also be taken into account; (ii)
the loss given default and the expected cash shortfall between the cash
flows due to the Company in accordance with the contract and the cash
flows that the Company expects to receive. The Company will consider
the value of the collaterals pledged for the loans, if any; and (iii) forward-
looking market data such as gross domestic product will also impact
on the recoverability of the loans. The Company regularly monitors
the effectiveness of the criteria used to identify whether there has been
a significant increase in credit risk and revises them as appropriate to
ensure that the criteria are capable of identifying significant increase in
credit risk before the amount becomes past due.

As at 31 March 2024, the management had engaged an independent
qualified valuer to determine the expected credit losses of the Group’s
loans receivable (the “loans receivable ECL"). In assessing the loans
receivable ECL of the Group, a credit rating analysis of the underlying
debtors was adopted by reviewing the historical accounting information
to estimate the default risk. The Group applied different expected loss
rates to different classes of receivables according to their respective risk
characteristics. In determining the default risk, factors including but not
limited to, the ageing analysis of the receivables, the Group’s internal
assessment of the debtors’ credit worthiness, historical and forecast
occurrence of event of default, existence and valuation of the collaterals,
the relevant regulatory framework and government policies in Hong
Kong and global economic outlook in general and the specific economic
condition of Hong Kong would be considered. The rate of loans receivable
ECL ranged from 34% to 100% depending on the nature (2023: 3% to
61%), probability of default and loss of the loans receivable.
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Securities investment business

The Group had various securities in its investment portfolio such as listed equity
securities, unlisted equity securities, unlisted funds, unlisted debts, etc. A fair
value loss of approximately HK$242 million was recorded during the Year (2023:
fair value loss of approximately HK$82 million).

Property leasing business

During the Year, the rental income derived from 55 Mark Lane contributed
revenue of approximately HK$54 million (2023: approximately HK$55 million)
and the fair value loss on investment property was approximately HK$89 million
(2023: fair value loss of approximately HK$19 million).

Property development business

The Group has property development projects in Cambodia and Malaysia. In
Cambodia, the Council of Ministers approved the project company to establish
a special economic zone with a site area of 17,252,519 square meters at Koh
Kong Province, Cambodia. The project company of the Group shall have the sole
and exclusive right to develop the special economic zone with all the necessary
land use rights, including those for residential, industrial and commercial
development purposes. The project was still in its preliminary stage during the
Year.

The Group has another property development project in Malaysia. The project is
a residential and commercial mixed property development project located at Port
Dickson, Negeri Sembilan, Malaysia with a site area of 267,500 square meters
(or 2,879,343 square feets). The property is held from the government for a lease
term of 99 years expiring on 8 February 2097 for residential and commercial
building uses. The project was still in its preliminary stage during the Year.

EHFRERY

AEENREMAGTAEZREES - W EMBRA
ES o FFLEMBRAES  JEEMES - FLEH
BBE - AFEEHSATHEBRO2AEET
(CZ2-=F: X HEFENRAEET) °

MRERERYE

RARGETE - 55 Mark LaneFE & LA B BRIR A K954 5
BEL(CT-=F: H55E88T) MREY
¥ NTFEEBINANEEET(ZE =4
H9E BB T AFEER) -

MERBERRYE

REERRIBER S RATHIFEMELERIE
B -RRFE IREFTCHEEE QARIRRE
HWEBRAEEY —EmEEA17,252519F 5 KK
LEER o AEBZZIER RAREAE KB
REMNARCESRRTIES — VBT MR
EEPREEEE TEXELBEREARR
F o NAFE  ZEBDERVTSHEE -
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FERPA AR MIRIBER - 1A311267,500F 77 K (3
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

The Group had incurred a loss of approximately HK$809 million for the Year
(2023: approximately HK$208 million). Such loss was mainly attributable to
the net fair value losses in financial assets at fair value through profit or loss of
approximately HK$242 million (2023: approximately HK$82 million) and share
of losses of associates at approximately HK$325 million (2023: HK$131 million).

Revenue

During the Year, the total revenue was approximately HK$228 million (2023:
approximately HK$312 million), representing a decrease by approximately
HK$84 million, or approximately 27%. Such decrease was mainly attributable to
the decrease in revenue generated from the sales of construction machinery and
spare parts and rental income of construction machinery.

Sales of construction machinery and spare parts, rental income
from construction machinery and repair and maintenance and
transportation service income

During the Year, the sales of construction machinery and spare parts, rental
income generated from construction machinery and repair and maintenance
and transportation service income were approximately HK$21 million
(2023: approximately HK$65 million), approximately HK$136 million (2023:
approximately HK$160 million) and approximately HK$6 million (2023:
approximately HK$8 million), respectively. The decrease in revenue for sales of
construction machinery and spare parts was mainly attributable to the decrease in
the demand of brand new cranes manufactured in Japan. The decrease in rental
income was mainly attributable to the decline in occupancy rate of 85% (2023:
90%) as some major construction sites (e.g. Hong Kong International Airport 3rd
runway and Tseung Kwan O — Lam Tin Tunnel) have been completed.

Money lending, asset management, securities brokerage and
other financial services

During the Year, the revenue from money lending, asset management, securities
brokerage, and other financial services decreased by HK$7 million, or 38%. Such
decrease was mainly attributable to the decrease in loan receivable business.

14  Aceso Life Science Group Limited  Annual Report 2023/24
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Fair value losses on financial assets at fair value through profit or

loss (“FVTPL”), net

The details of the Group’s securities investments and the net fair value losses
recognised for the Year are set out as follows:

DaFEstE A RSt ARR (LAFE
AFEHRESLHARR I ZEMBEZLTF

EERBH

RAFE  AEEzEFRERECERR
ERFEFREINT

¥

Numberof ~ Percentage of Numberof ~ Percentage of Percentage offotal
sharesheld ~ shareholdings sharesheld ~ shareholdings Fair value Fairvalue Fairvalue (losses)/  assets ofthe Group
I March 2023 at31March203  at3tMach2024  al3tMarh2024  a3fMarch2023  at3!March 2024 gaing forthe Year  at31 March 2024
ROBCRE
ek RIBIZE WCECRE WCECRE WIBISE RIECME WEEEe  ZRZt-A
ZR=t-R  ZR=t-A  =ZR=t-R  =ZR=t-A  ZRZ+-R  ZRZt-H AFE  (EREEE
FRRABE  BREAL  FRROBE  ZBEESM CATE Z0FE (BR/ME  BEZEMM
(Noes) (note 1) HK§ millon HKS millon HKS million
(i) (Hit1) ERER ERET BEET
Name)(Stock Cote) &/ (BHRE)
Stendong H-Speed Holdngs Group Limed. | R EARAF Q) 3000 000% 300 0.00% - - - -
)]
Hliance nmatonlEduaton Lasing FEERHERERRERY 0 2001 3% 166% - - il - (1t 5
Holdings Limied (1563  (1563)
Canvel Group temetonl L (0%6) ~ E2ERERERLF99) 3624400 038% 362440 038% - - - -
Inper Pt Wermainel Holdngs Limed.~—~ BEATEBERERRA 3 28100000 191% 203100000 191% 1 1 - 007
({076} (1076)
P bt hodigs rerond Limed ()~ %5 Hxlﬁ”ﬁﬁ %) 4983000 046% 4983000 046% f = - =
Beig Popetes (Foldgg) Linied (9~ S RERR(ERBRAA(W) 14000 012% 8140000 012% f - - -
Vil Mind Hlding Company Limied (1520) i%hhﬁﬁ (150) 4 283,994,000 1424% 283994000 1311% 5 3 ) 075%
Bank f Qingdao Company Liried (366) ﬁ%ﬂﬂhnﬁﬁ e 5 13108000 023% - - B - ] -
Weathink Allnovaton Capil Limid ﬂ?%*ﬁﬁﬁ (AR § 29,860,000 0.28% 29,880,000 0.28% 10 { (o) 0.08%
(omeyWedtring esments i)~~~ ERERERAE)(1140)
(i)
Giend Ocean Advare Resouress Company LS BHERER L)) I 0,000,000 399% - - 1 - (1) -
Limied 69)
IR0 Technology Company Limtd (2708) SRRR AR A 09 1120000 017% 1120000 016% ! - {2 -
Mintva Gioup Holding L (onery Pover -~ S BARER A7 G1FR 8000000 028% 8000000 03%% f f - 00%%
Fireni Goup L) (397) ERtREERRAT)
(37)
HG Semionduco Lined (606 Tt HERRA 600y 1500000 026% 1500000 0% 3 f ] 00%%
RsiaEnery LogitesGroup Limed (35 SR EERRAR § 30630000 153% 30650000 153% 1 § 1 017
(3%1)
Clira i Goup (137 HERFIER (W) 0] i o 0% - - - -
hisin Group Holding Limed (2167) BREEERARAT ) § = = 15,186,000 203% = 1 %) 031%
NETup o SDAL T NET Group i, JWSDACWNET) 10 - - 300 02% - ! [l 008%
HT Rivemiood Muti-Growth Fund HT Rivenwood Mt-Growh Fund-—~—~~ 11 NATER AER NATER NATER 5 - - -
s China Fn Aants China Fund 1 NATER NATER NATSER NATER [ - { -
Rivgniood Forune Fund Riverwood Ubell Fnd AR AAER NATER AR I - m -
Ti quiy SP- Tisé Equiy SP-1 1 NATER A ER NATER NATER 8 - ) -
Finance ease Istment P Finance Lease vestment SP NATER NATER NATER NATER 3 3 1 070%
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Notes:
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The percentage of shareholdings is calculated with reference to the
monthly return of equity issuer on movements in securities for the
month ended 31 March 2024 of the issuers publicly available on the
website of the Stock Exchange.

Alliance International Education Leasing Holdings Limited (“Alliance
International”), and its subsidiaries (“Alliance International Group”)
were principally engaged in offering finance and operating lease
service and private higher education services.

The Group did not hold any shares of Alliance International as at 31
March 2024 (2023: 28,091,336 shares).

Imperial Pacific International Holdings Limited (“Imperial Pacific”) and
its subsidiaries (“Imperial Pacific Group”) were principally engaged
in the gaming and resort business, including the development of
an integrated resort on the Island of Saipan, Commonwealth of the
Northern Marina Islands.

Pursuant to Imperial Pacific Group’s interim report for the 6 months
ended 30 June 2022, Imperial Pacific Group recorded revenue of nil
and total comprehensive loss of approximately HK$503 million.

The Group held approximately 203 million shares of Imperial Pacific as
at 31 March 2023 and 2024, respectively.

Virtual Mind Holdings Company Limited (“Virtual Mind”) and its
subsidiaries (“Virtual Mind Group”) were principally engaged in the
design, manufacturing and trading of apparels provision of money
lending services and sale of trendy and cultural products.

The Group held approximately 284 million and nil shares of Virtual
Mind as at 31 March 2023 and 2024, respectively.
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Bank of Qingdao Company Limited (“Bank of Qingdao”) and its
subsidiaries (“Bank of Qingdao Group”) were principally engaged in
the provision of corporate and personal deposits, loans and advances,
settlement, financial market business, financial leasing, wealth
management and other services.

The Group had approximately 13.1 million and nil shares of Bank of
Qingdao as at 31 March 2023 and 2024, respectively.

Wealthink Al-Innovation Capital Limited (formerly Wealthking
Investments Limited) (“Wealthink”) and its subsidiaries (“Wealthink
Group”) has a principal investment objective to achieve earnings
in the form of medium to long term capital appreciation through
investing in a diversified portfolio of global investments in listed and
unlisted enterprises.

Pursuant to the results announcement of Wealthink Group for the
year ended 31 March 2024, Wealthink Group recorded revenue of
approximately HK$308 million and total comprehensive expenses of
approximately HK$151 million.

The Group had approximately 29,880,000 shares of Wealthink as at
31 March 2023 and 2024, respectively.

Grand Ocean Advances Resources Company Limited (“Grand Ocean”)
and its subsidiaries (“Grand Ocean Group”) has a principal activities
of production and sale of coal and minerals.

The Group had approximately 60 million and nil shares of Grand
Ocean as at 31 March 2023 and 2024, respectively.

Asia Energy Logistics Group Limited (“Asia Energy”) and its
subsidiaries (“Asia Energy Group”) has a principal activities of
shipping and logistics and telecommunication related business.

Pursuant to the annual report of Asia Energy Group for the year
ended 31 December 2023, Asia Energy Group recorded revenue of
approximately HK$143 million and total comprehensive income of
approximately HK$11 million.

The Group had approximately 31 million shares of Asia Energy as at
31 March 2023 and 2024, respectively.
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10.

11.

18

Zhixin Group Holding Limited (“Zhixin”) and its subsidiaries (“Zhixin
Group”) was principally engaged in the manufacturing and sale
of ready mixed concrete and precast concrete components in the
People’s Republic of China.

Pursuant to the annual report of Zhixin for the year ended 31
December 2023, Zhixin recorded revenue of approximately RMB512
million and total comprehensive income of approximately RMB10
million.

The Group had nil and approximately 12.8 million shares of Zhixin as
at 31 March 2023 and 2024, respectively.

VNET Group Inc. (“VNET”) and its subsidiaries (“VNET Group”) was
principally engaged in the business of data center and related services
service in the People’s Republic of China.

Pursuant to the annual report of VNET's for the year ended 31
December 2023, VNET recorded revenue of approximately RMB7,412
million and total comprehensive loss of approximately RMB2,669
million.

The Group had nil and approximately 0.33 million shares of VNET as
at 31 March 2023 and 2024, respectively.

HT Riverwood Multi-Growth Fund (formerly known as Riverwood
MultiGrowth Fund) (“Riverwood Fund”) mainly invests in listed
equities of companies located in the Greater China Region (which
includes Mainland China, Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan) or deriving
income and/or assets from the Greater China Region. Riverwood
Fund may invest in Exchange-Traded Funds (ETFs), U.S. Treasury
securities and derivative products.
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12.  Atlantis China Fund (“Atlantis Fund”) may invest in a wide range of
listed securities issued by listed companies established in or whose
principal place of business is located in the People’s Republic of
China (“PRGC") and Hong Kong, including but not limited to listed
equities, preferred stocks, convertible securities, notes and other
financial products. Atlantis Fund may hold ancillary liquid assets,
denominated principally in Hong Kong Dollars, Renminbi and
United States Dollars, including cash deposits and money market
instruments.

13.  Tisé Equity SP-1 is a segregate portfolio of Tisé Opportunities
SPC, an exempted company incorporated with limited liability and
registered as a segregated portfolio company under the laws of the
Cayman lIslands in March 2021, with an investment objective to
provide its investors with long-term capital appreciation.

The Group had various securities in its investment portfolio such as listed equity
securities, unlisted equity securities, unlisted funds, unlisted debts, etc. A fair
value loss of approximately HK$242 million was recorded during the Year (2023:
fair value loss of approximately HK$82 million).

During the Year, in relation to fair value loss in FVTPL of approximately HK$242
million, a total of HK$29 million was related to investment in Tisé Opportunities
SPC.

Impairment losses intangible assets

Based on the impairment testing on intangible assets, no impairment loss (2023:
reversal of impairment loss of HK$13 million) has been recognised in profit or
loss for the Year.

Fair vale loss on investment properties

During the Year, a fair value loss of approximately HK$89 million (2023: loss
of approximately HK$19 million) was recognised for property investment of the
Group.

Provision for expected credit losses on financial assets

During the Year, the Group recognised provision for expected credit losses on
financial assets of approximately HK$74 million (2023: reversal of provision
at approximately HK$35 million). The provision was mainly attributable to the
overdue of loan receivables. The Group has engaged an independent professional
valuer for assessing the allowance for expected credit losses on financial assets.

12.  Atlantis China Fund([Atlantis Fund]) a] 2 & 7
fEpE ARZEME (THE]) RBEBKIL
HEZEEMBMNRNTPRREEN LT
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Administrative expenses

During the Year, the administrative expenses were approximately HK$124 million
(2023: approximately HK$123 million), representing an increase of approximately
1% as compared with the year ended 31 March 2023 (the “Previous Year”).
Among the administrative expenses incurred during the Year, approximately
HK$18 million (2023: approximately HK$16 million) was related to depreciation
and non-cash in nature; while the remaining expenses of approximately HK$49
million (2023: approximately HK$51 million) were mainly related to staff costs.

Share of results of associates

During the Year, the share of losses of associates of approximately HK$325
million (2023: approximately HK$131 million) was mainly attributable to the
sharing of loss of our investment in Cambodia, where it reflected the change in
fair value of land held by the project company of the Group in Cambodia.

Share-based payment expenses

No share-based payment for share awards and emolument shares was granted in
the Year (2023: approximately HK$3 million).

Finance costs

During the Year, the finance costs were approximately HK$141 million (2023:
approximately HK$129 million), representing an increase of approximately
HK$12 million as compared with the Previous Year. The increase was mainly
attributable to the net effect of (i) the increase in exchange difference on
borrowings of approximately HK$9 million; (i) the increase in corporate note
interest of approximately HK$13 million and (iii) less interest expenses of
approximately HK$10 million arising from the bank and other borrowings.

Taxation

During the Year, the net income tax credit was approximately HK$14 million
(2023: income tax credit of approximately HK$5 million).
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Fair value losses on financial assets at fair value through other DAFEFEEHELHARMZEKS
comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”), net (TR AFEAZEARSHARM2EE
RIZEMFIEZATFEGIREH

The details of the listed securities investments and the net fair value losses R AFE - L HEHFRERCOHERA FEEE
recognised during the Year are set out below: SFEEFHRHEYIAT ¢

Percentage of
Percentage of Percentage of total assets
shareholdings  shareholdings Fair value Fair value Fairvalue  of the Group
at31March  at31March  at31March  at31March lossfor  at31March

223 2024 223 2024 the Year 2024

»

ZE-mE

i3 i3 S i3 =R
“EICE ZEIME ZE-ZE "“ECME =+—Rs
= = =R =R FEEEE

Zt-AZ Z=t+-B¢ =Zt-Bz Zt-Hz REFEZ #Ez
BRESE BRESM NFE LFE  AFEGR Bflt

Notes HK$'million ~ HK$'million  HK$'million
i3 EL b L b EL b
Name 1)
Goodwill International (Holdings) Limited ~ Goodwill International (Holdings) 1 754% 754% 3 3 - 0.06%
Limited
Co-Lead Holdings Limited Co-Lead Holdings Limtied 2 1.04% 1.04% 15 13 @) 0.27%
Quan Yu Tai Investment Company Limited 2HZREBRAA] 3 15% 15% %7 70 217) 144%
Oshidori International Holdings REEIRARAACY) 4 127% 127% ) 15 () 031%
Limited (622)
China Pearl Global Limited RARGERERAR 5 10.00% 10.00% 425 301 (124) 6.33%
Tonsin Petrochemical Investment Lt~ ¥ A{LEZRE b 16.67% 16.67% 4 3% () 0.73%
BRAR
Empire Victory Hong Kong Limited HEERERAT 7 410% 410% 10 9 (1) 0.19%
801 447 (354) 9.33%
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Notes:

22

Goodwill International (Holdings) Limited (“Goodwill Int'l”) invested
in a number of property investment projects in Hong Kong and the
PRC. The properties would be sold to market upon completion of
gach projects, and investors (including Goodwill Int'l) would receive
dividend.

Co-lead Holdings Limited is principally engaged in trading of
securities, provision of finance and holding of investments in financial
services industry.

Quan Yu Tai Investment Company Limited holds 90% equity interest
in He Ying Tung Investments Company Limited (“He Ying Tung”). He
Ying Tung, through its various indirect wholly-owned or non-wholly
owned subsidiaries, is principally engaged in property development
in the PRC. He Ying Tung principally has 3 property projects under
development located in the municipalities of Changsha, Chenzhou
and Hengyang of Hunan Province, the PRC, mainly consisting of
large-scale residential complex projects and integrated commercial
complex projects, as well as apartments, offices, shopping arcades,
cinemas and other supporting facilities.

Oshidori International Holdings Limited (“Oshidori”) principally
engages in investment holdings, tactical and/or strategical
investment, and the provisions of (i) securities brokerage services, (ii)
margin financing services, (iii) placing and underwriting services, (iv)
corporate finance advisory services, (iv) investment advisory and asset
management services, and provision of credit and lending services.
Pursuant to the annual report of Oshidori for the year ended 31
December 2023, Oshidori recorded revenue of approximately HK$60
million and total comprehensive loss of approximately HK$1,567
million.

The Group held 77,500,000 shares of Oshidori as at 31 March 2023
and 2024.

China Pearl Global Limited (“CPG”), through its wholly owned
subsidiary, holds a shopping mall in Fujian, Quanzhou, Fujian
Province, the People’s Republic of China with approximately 97,000
square meters (available lease out area over 65,000 square meters)
and 1,089 car parks, and it leases out the complex to lessees and
provides property management services to the shopping mall.

Aceso Life Science Group Limited  Annual Report 2023/24

Goodwill International (Holdings) Limited
([Goodwill IntIDFEEE Kk BKRE % [EF
WEREER - BAYMERESEA T
ER TS EE - MIREE (BFEGoodwill
Int'D) H T ER AR 2.

Co-lead Holdings Limited X B EEHX
% RHESHBERBEREESRREER

%%ﬁ&ﬁﬁ@@ﬁ%ﬁﬂ&%&ﬁﬁ

NEN([ 2B ) E90% A HE - M2 B GE
Hﬁ% Z2EIFEENBRARD TR

F*l%%%%%@%%oﬂ@ﬁi%
HEMEERTMEEE - DRIUNFRH
HMEERDT  MMNmhERET > 2
BREANEELRAEE MGAEAEE
URAE %“* BYES - Bk &
HM AR ERNE -

(S Tkﬁ@ AI(REEE) T ERE

BT KRB IR A A K 4R
‘7*%%“25}%&?& (i fFREE R
Mgﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ (iv) (bR B & B A AR
C(EREBERREEEIERS 0 MR
HEERY - REREZHRE_T_=
FH_A=+—RAILFEZF®R  BFE
EFWAKREE T MR EEIEAR
A1 567TEEHETT °

%#’-‘Z&?ﬁ@
VV)UD>HH+
F”H

E_ZFR-_BE_NMF=ZA=+—
H  ZNEBEFHE77,500,0000% B 2 2= /L

R ATRRIRBR A A ([R5 AIRERIR])
BEBE2EMBRARRFALNTREE
ARMNTEBEYH.L - HEELAR7,000
F 3K (AT HAHEFE#865,000F 75 K) &
10%§E$ﬁ'&ﬁﬁ%%$®&%H
EHEE -



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EERENRR TN

6. Tonsin Petrochemical Investment Limited principally engages in the
development of EcoPark in South-East Asia which focuses on waste
management and recycling industry with advanced technologies and
value-add processes.

7. Empire Victory Hong Kong Limited principally engages in the
provision of trading in petroleum and aluminum products.

Liquidity, financial resources and capital structure

As at 31 March 2024, the Group’s current assets and current liabilities were
approximately HK$1,265 million (31 March 2023: approximately HK$1,945
million) and HK$2,214 million (31 March 2023: approximately HK$2,855
million) respectively.

The Group has established a treasury policy with the objective of lowering cost of
funds. Therefore, funding for all its operations have been centrally reviewed and
monitored at the Group level. To manage the Group’s exposure to fluctuations in
interest rates on project, appropriate funding policies will be applied including
the use of bank and other borrowings, corporate note payables, convertible note
payables and issue of placement shares. The management will continue its efforts
in obtaining the most privileged rates and favourable terms to the Group for its
financing.
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Gearing ratio and indebtedness

The Group monitors its capital structure based on the gearing ratio. This ratio
is calculated as net debts divided by total capital. Total capital is calculated as
“equity” as shown in the consolidated statement of financial position plus net
debts. The capital structure (including its gearing ratio) as at 31 March 2024 and
31 March 2023 was as follows:

BREARLLERRY

AEBUNEERBHLRAEEEEREERG
B R ERREBFERNEAEETE - &
RARBRIZR A M BAOR R T IR 2 [k [ hnfE
BFEEAE RS WF=A=+—HBEK=
T =F-A=+t—BNELEB(BFEEEE

BELR)WNT :

31 March 2024 31 March 2023

—E-mE =%

=A=+—H =A=+—8H

HK$’million HK$'million

BHEET BEAT

(audited) (audited)

€t 19 (BER)

Bank and other borrowings RITREMBEER 1,660 1,743

Corporate note payables ERT 3R

— atamortised cost — R SR 520 572
—at FVTPL —UAAFEAEAEE(LAER 539 578
Total borrowings BERTE 2,719 2,893
Less: cash and cash equivalents B Be MR EEY (350) (187)
pledged bank deposits BEIIFRITIER (15) (30)

Net debts (v 2,354 2,676
Total equity RS 4EER 1,813 2,575
Total capital BB 4,167 5,251
Gearing ratio BEBELE 56% 51%
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As at 31 March 2024, the maturity and currency profile for the Group’s bankand R —Z—WMFE=A=+—H » KREBRITLHE

other borrowings and corporate note payables are set out as follows: HEERENCXZEIHAREREGSH
AR -

Within 1 year 2nd year 3-5 years Total

—£R k- =ELfE #5t

HK$’million  HK$’million  HK$’million  HK$’million
EEL:: BEET BEET BEET

GBP B 827 = = 827
US$ EH 17 = = 17
HKS BT 831 395 10 1,236

1,775 395 10 2,180

As at 31 March 2024, approximately 97% of the Group’s borrowings are secured WA —Z—pu&FE=F=+—H ' NEFHIT% Y

by (1) investment properties; (2) corporate note receivables; (3) property, plant (& T3 A(1)IREME : QWD EZE - 3)Y

and equipment; (4) financial assets; and (5) bank deposits. ¥ BERSEE: OEBREE ROBITER
Yt s o

The borrowings with aggregate amounts of approximately HK$988 million were 482549988 B BB T 2 B IR E & FI R =t
carried at fixed interest rates and approximately HK$672 million were carried at L RHET2E BB TTHE S IR IE B R K i
floating interest rates. °

G C

As at 31 March 2024, cash and cash equivalents and pledged bank depositswere  R—ZT—pqE=A=4+—H B4 RBELZE

denominated in the following currencies: MR BRI ITIER AT EEEHE -
HK$’million
BEET
HK$ BTT 236
GBP R 89
RMB ARE 24
US$ e 6
JPY BT 9
EUR BATT 1

365
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Interest rate risk

The Group’s pledged bank deposits and finance lease receivables bear fixed
interest rates. The Group’s cash at bank balances bear floating interest rates. The
Group also has borrowings, and obligation under finance leases. Exposure to
interest rate risk exists on those balances subject to floating interest rate when
there are unexpected adverse interest rate movements. The Group’s policy is to
manage its interest rate risk, working within an agreed framework, to ensure that
there are no undue exposures to significant interest rate movements and rates are
appropriately fixed when necessary.

Currency risk

The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong with most of the transactions
denominated and settled in HK$, US$ and GBP. The Group’s exposure to foreign
currency risk primarily arises from certain financial instruments including trade
receivables, bank balances and cash, trade payables, borrowings and obligation
under finance leases which are denominated in US$ and EUR. The Group does
not adopt any hedging strategy in the long run but the management continuously
monitors the foreign exchange risk exposure and might enter into foreign
exchange forward contracts on a case-by-case basis. The Group has not used
any hedging contracts to engage in speculative activities.

Credit risk and liquidity risk

The Group has adopted a prudent financial management approach towards its
treasury policies and thus maintained a healthy liquidity position throughout the
Year. The Group strives to reduce exposure to credit risk by performing ongoing
credit assessments and evaluations of the financial status of its customers. To
manage liquidity risk, the Board closely monitors the Group’s liquidity position
to ensure that the liquidity structure of the Group’s assets, liabilities and other
commitments can meet its funding requirements.

Risk management

The Group has established and maintained sufficient risk management
procedures to identify and control various types of risk within the organisation
and the external environment with active management participation and effective
internal control procedures in the best interest of the Group and its shareholders.

Major post-balance sheet date events

Subsequent to the end of the Year and up to the date of this report, there was no
other significant or important events that affects the business of the Group.

26  Aceso Life Science Group Limited  Annual Report 2023/24

FUEE B

AEEZ EEMRITER M EHERIKGKIA
ABIE R KGR o AEBZRITRSEHRIAF
BRI KGR o AEBITA ULEE MR KFEF
K RZEELBMEMERE - MBERERK
RN R EE) - ZFANFBMRG B 2 &8k
i E SR R R o AEBABRSERE ZAE
RANEREMEER - AERIEEHN XX
IREEIASERER - WNAFRREEE
TERE

B L B

AEERBBER  KBOIRBHUET - XTT
REFFAEREE - ARERHOINERRE
BREAXTEEB T EZETERTA - &
RESEWHIE  RITEBRLRE - EHEN
FE - BEMBEHEESE - AEEUERR
ERRELSITERE - BEREFERRINER
@RI Al REIZ ERIIE N AT LR HE LA - A&
B R AR S AR FRES

{55 B P3 B R B 35 & L B

AEENBEBEBRRCRREBENYHEES
i HEEAFEERRREORBESMN
AEEHNERETHENEE AR HEE
EPHF MR EEERR - REERBE
AR BEFETINEEAKENRDE DN
o NERAKENEE - BENMEMEAEN
MBPETRBENEEEEEL -

mpEEE
AEEDEY MR RARRERRRF - #A
ERE 2 BIR2 RN AU NEREIERF - bA
Hoih MIZHI AR B RINEIRFR T 2 LR
% EAKEREBR 2 &EMN °
MEEERHORRECEREH

BEAFERMNEEARERY  SEEMY
EREEXBIEASERS N -



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EERENRR TN

Contingent liabilities

As at 31 March 2024 and 2023, the Group had no material contingent liabilities.

Employees and remuneration policy

As at 31 March 2024, the Group had 151 staffs (31 March 2023: 155). The
Group generally recruits its employees from the open market or by referral and
enters into employment contracts with its employees. The Group offers attractive
remuneration packages to the employees. In addition to salaries, the employees
would be entitled to bonuses, subject to the Company’s and employees’
performance. The Group provides a defined contribution to the Mandatory
Provident Fund as required under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance (Chapter 485 of the Laws of Hong Kong) for the eligible employees.
The Group also adopted a share option scheme and share award scheme.

The operation staff consists of experienced machinery operators and mechanics.
While such employees are highly demanded in the market, the Group manages to
maintain a relatively stable workforce by continuous recruitment from the market
or through referrals. New employees are required to attend induction courses to
ensure that they are equipped with the necessary skills and knowledge to perform
their duties. In order to promote overall efficiency, the Group also offers technical
trainings to existing employees on the operation of more advanced construction
machinery from time to time. Selected operation staff are required to attend
external trainings which are conducted by the manufacturers of the construction
machines to acquire up-to-date technical skills and knowledge on the products
of the Group.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the payment of any final dividend to the
shareholders of the Company for the Year (2023: nil).

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS DURING
THE YEAR

On 27 July 2023, the Group entered into a sale and purchase agreement with
Yitai Share (Hongkong) Co., Limited (“Yitai HK"), a wholly-owned subsidiary
of Inner Mongolia Yitai Coal Co., Ltd.* (NZ H R RHE RN AR A
A]) ("Yitai”), pursuant to which the Group agreed to sell, and Yitai HK agreed
to acquire, 1,400,088,000 shares in the share capital of Hao Tian International
Construction Investment Group Limited (“Hao Tian International Construction
Investment”) (representing approximately 18.37% of the entire issued share
capital), an indirect non-wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company. The sale and
purchase was completed on 17 October 2023.

Save as disclosed above, the Group had not made any other material acquisition
or disposal of subsidiaries and associates during the Year.

* For igentification purposes only
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BUSINESS PROSPECTS

The Year was full of opportunities and challenges. The impact caused by
geopolitical tensions and military occupation, high inflation rate continues
to bring unprecedented challenges as it impacts long-term global economic
developments. However, the Group implements prudent business strategies to
establish a diversified business portfolio that can survive the uncertain market
conditions while exploring high-quality investment opportunities to explore the
growth potential of profit and capital value for shareholders and investors of the
Company.

The Management also recognised the growing global demand in natural
resources. The Group has put in additional resources in search of investment
opportunities in projects related to natural resources around the world.

The strategic investor, Yitai, has become a shareholder of Hao Tian International
Construction Investment which held 18.37% of the issued share capital of
Hao Tian International Construction Investment since 17 October 2023, which
represents a good opportunity to introduce a strategic investor to the Group.
Considering the strong investor profile of Yitai, it is expected that it will boost
the investor confidence in the market and may bring in additional resources and
investment opportunities to the Group and it will broaden the shareholder base of
Hao Tian International Construction Investment on the other hand.

The B shares of Yitai are listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange (stock code:
900948) and its H shares were listed on the Main Board of the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange and were subsequently voluntarily withdrawn from listing on 11 August
2023 (stock code before withdrawal of listing: 3948).

Yitai was ranked 221 in the 2023 Fortune China 500 listed companies and ranked
268 in the 2023 Fortune China 500, published in July 2023. According to All-
China Federation of Industry and Commerce (P ZE 2B TR %84 =), Yitai
was ranked 188 in the Top 500 Chinese Private Enterprise (FF B R {250058)
in 2022. Yitai was also ranked 16 in the Top 50 Chinese Coal Enterprise (F°
FE R 1 3£5058) in 2022 according to The China National Coal Association (FF
Bl ok 2 1%€). Yitai is the largest local coal enterprise in the Inner Mongolia
Autonomous Region and one of the large-scale coal enterprises in the PRC.

* For identification purposes only

28 Aceso Life Science Group Limited  Annual Report 2023/24

RERE

REZFRmEBMAE - EBEBRRLRES
AR BARESROFERETKAAARE
kB HEREENREBRELTHE -
AW AEEERERFHRE  AEYLZ
Tz ¥BHEE - BRES R ENARATR T
78 FARFRREERERE  RARARR
FREERMENREREBEIERES

EEEBCRANERHYRAERNT R EE
£ - AKBCRBBINEREZREBEAYE
RANEIRIARAE B I E S -

B-Z-=FtTA+LAE FRESBRRK
BERSFHEZREBRERREL P HITR
A18.37% N —BIIR - EEBIFRBANKE
Bx - ae—ARKEL ABRKEELE
AREXRBEFERRERRERNRIIHE - —
HEAERTIZREENEL > Z—TEAN
SEEKREZERMTERS -

FHRBRAE L BEFRX S EH (RERE -
900948) - HHIR B ABBBRAER L - BRI
“EC=F) A+ —BEXHREE LN OREE T
AT AR SEACRS © 3948) o

FE_=F+ AN _=FHE)F
BI5003% F AR - (FHREZHNE2216 - =
T =F(HE)PES00E ¥R - FRELTE
2680 - IFHREXBR T HEBS SR - FHRE
—E - —FHRBRREMFES0058F PR 5E1880L ©
BEPREXRTIEBERHN S _—_FPH
BRI E50588E R - FRAPIEI6M - FRE
NELERBREANMMTERDE  LERH
ABRUE R E L — o

Y EREEZ A



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EERENRR TN

The principal businesses of Yitai include coal production and operation (which
directly owns and controls 10 coal mines with resources reserve at 4,336
million tonnes and minable reserve at 2,126 million tonnes), rail transportation
operations (controls 3 operating railway line for the coal mines), coal-related
chemical operations and other operations.

According to the 2023 annual report of Yitai, it recorded audited revenue
of approximately RMB53 billion and net profit attributable to owners of
approximately RMB7.7 billion for the year ended 31 December 2023 and it
recorded net assets of approximately RMB46.4 billion and total assets of
approximately RMB85.4 billion as at 31 December 2023. The annual production
of commodity coal of Yitai was approximately 51.7 million tonnes and sold 67.8
million tonnes of coals during 2023.

Looking forward, the Group will remain cautious and sensibly uphold its risk
management policies, strengthen its capital management and implement
stringent cost control measures to uphold its profitability during downturn of
economy.

Money lending and financial services business

The Group will continue to expand the clients base and establish a strong track
record in order to strengthen the businesses of corporate financial advisory
services, asset management services and streamline the client base and gradually
phasing out the money lending business in the coming future. For the securities
brokerage services business, the Group will explore the involvement in the share
placement activities to enhance its revenue stream.

Property development business

Located in the Indo-China Peninsula, Cambodia is an important stop on the
ancient Maritime Silk Road and an important location for China to promote
the “One Belt, One Road” construction in the 21st century. Now Cambodia is
also preparing an economic transformation, with many business opportunities
emerging. Meanwhile, Cambodia has a decent investment environment and
the market is highly liberalised and internationalised, attracting the attention
and injection of global capital. While taking part in the development potential
of the land development project, the Group is also exploring more business
opportunities to invest in more business sectors in Cambodia and to share the
development dividend of this high growing emerging market in the future.

At the same time, Malaysia is one of the most popular countries in Asia. In
recent years, Malaysia’s GDP has continued to rise, which proves that Malaysia
has strong investment potential. The Group is also deploying and looking for
local high-quality projects, following the layout along the “One Belt, One Road”
regions. Looking forward, the Group remains confident in its existing businesses
and will continue to monitor the performance in order to maximise the returns to
its shareholders.

FHENIEXRHEERREERKSE (HERE
B RIESRPGEI0E - BIRE R4,336 8 EW N
ARERER2,126 B BME) - HKE®R (%
P R RN EE IR RE B FAR) ~ HRABRME
TERBREMELS -

BEFE_ZT_=ZFH BT _=F+=
A=+—HLFE  FREEZRALNAEAR
¥EH30(ETT - FTE B EINFF BN AARBIIE
T R-IE_=F+-A=1+—BFEENA
ARBEAAETT - MBEEHNARESMETT - I
TR FFREERETESLNTEENE - &
FIHESX678HEN -

RERRK - AN B KA TR RS T E
[E\Be B IR BOR - o H B ANE IR R AREUER AR Y
PR HIFEIE - AR RS @R R B
j] o

EREERBRERE

AEBRBERATPEARETEENER
L8 URERNCREEEREAXARE - &
EEERGED  UARBHERERGNEFE
WETHERERE B - BALLRE RS
H - ARBEERRZ2ERKEETHNOKE
AW S SR ©

MERRERE

URFEFEHRBRE LG LARZEDN
EZ2 U LR EHESIM LS B R
MERH - M5 RFFOERBLEEL -
BELFZEH - RN RIFREFRITFOKR
BRE - EmEREABEMBER( - ERS
EEREANBINEA - ERELHWEHRIA
BRERRENNRE  AEBNLEREZRD
# RERBRESEXGEE  KRANFE
ERIE R T ISEERALT

B - RS Y £ o — B B S
R o R - B REEGOPREEE - BHER
MEABRARLE TS o BB — B E
Wi - A EE TR E LY @ E B R
H - R2AR - AEEHBELBHATRE
D DRBEEERE - AHRRBAESEAD
% -

T/ NEFE SEHEFRREEFRAT 29



BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
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The biographical details of the Directors and the senior management of the Group
are as follows:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dr. Zhiliang Ou, J.P. (Australia), aged 55, was appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director on 11 June 2012 and was re-designated as an
Executive Director of the Company in August 2012. Dr. Qu is a member of the
executive committee, nomination committee and remuneration committee of
the Company. He is also a director of various subsidiaries of the Company.
Dr. Qu holds a Doctor of Philosophy degree in Civil & Resource Engineering
from The University of Western Australia, Australia. He also holds two Bachelor
of Engineering degrees in Engineering Management & Structural Engineering
respectively from Tongji University (2 <&2). Dr. Ou has over 30 years of
professional engineering and management experience in oil & gas, mining and
infrastructure industries both in Australia and China. He has been a senior staff
member in the world’s leading energy & resource firms including Kellogg Brown
& Root (formerly known as KBR Halliburton), WorleyParsons Pty Ltd., as well
as Sedgman Ltd., which is specializing in coal processing and handling plants.
Dr. Ou was an independent non-executive director of Rey Resources Limited (a
company listed on ASX focusing on exploration and developing energy resources
in Australia). Dr. Ou participated in a number of key energy and resource projects
around the world such as acting as the Lead Civil and Structural Engineer for
BHP Billiton RGP6 Jimblebar project, Rio Tinto iron ore Dove Siding expansion
project; Chevron Wheatstone Domgas LNG Pipeline project, Yemen LNG Project
(in the Republic of Yemen) and Western Australia Dampier to Bunbury Natural
Gas Pipeline (Stage 5B) project, etc. Dr. Ou also has extensive experience and
network in China. He was the general manager of Fujian Liming Construction
Company* (f812%& Z2RR 5L T #2 /2 R)) from 1993 to 1997. He was a Guest
Professor for Inner Mongolia University (P95 & A 22) and Inner Mongolia
University of Science & Technology (R 5 & BHE A EZ2) in China. Currently,
Dr. Ou is an executive director of Hao Tian International Construction Investment
Group Limited (stock code: 1341), which is a non-wholly owned subsidiary of
the Company and a company listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Fok Chi Tak, aged 48, was appointed as an Executive Director and a
member of the executive committee of the Company in September 2013. Mr.
Fok is also a director of various subsidiaries of the Company and has been the
Chief Financial Officer of the Company since December 2010. In addition to the
responsibility to oversee the Group’s finance unit and functions, Mr. Fok also
involves in the formulation of strategic plans for the business development of
the Group, fund raising activities and potential merger and acquisition activities
of the Group. Mr. Fok holds a master degree in business administration from
The University of Hong Kong. He is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants. Mr. Fok is also a fellow member of The Chartered Governance
Institute (formerly known as The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Administrators) and The Hong Kong Chartered Governance Institute (formerly
known as The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries). Mr. Fok currently
Serves as an executive director and the chief executive officer of Hao Tian
International Construction Investment Group Limited (stock code: 1341, a non-
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company), which is listed on the main board of
the Stock Exchange.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chan Ming Sun Jonathan, aged 51, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director of the Company in March 2012. Mr. Chan is the
chairman of each of the audit committee and remuneration committee and a
member of nomination committee of the Company. Mr. Chan graduated from the
University of New South Wales, Australia with a Bachelor of Commerce degree
in Accounting and Computer Information Systems. He is a fellow member of
each of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, Certified Practising
Accountants, Australia and The Hong Kong Institute of Directors. Mr. Chan has
over 20 years of experience in auditing, accounting, investment and financial
management. Mr. Chan is currently an investment manager of Sprint Asset
Management Limited. Mr. Chan is also an independent non-executive director of
each of China Dredging Environment Protection Holdings Limited (stock code:
871), Changhong Jiahua Holdings Limited (stock code: 3991) and Hao Tian
International Construction Investment Group Limited (stock code: 1341, a non-
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company), whose securities are listed on the
main board of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Chan was an independent non-gxecutive
director of each of Fujian Nuogi Co., Ltd. (stock code: 1353, whose shares were
delisted from the main board of the Stock Exchange with effect from 8 February
2021) from April 2017 to February 2021, Grand Peace Group Holdings Limited
(stock code: 8108, whose shares were delisted from GEM of the Stock Exchange
with effect from 27 August 2021) from March 2021 to August 2021 and Up
Energy Development Group Limited (stock code: 307, whose shares were delisted
from the main board of the Stock Exchange with effect from 5 January 2022) from
April 2017 to January 2022.

Mr. Lam Kwan Sing, aged 54, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director of the Company in August 2012. Mr. Lam is a member of each
of the audit committee, remuneration committee and nomination committee of
the Company. Mr. Lam has obtained a Bachelor of Arts in Accountancy degree
from the City University of Hong Kong. He has more than 25 years of working
experience in the commercial and corporate finance field. Mr. Lam is a director
of China Natural Resources, Inc. (a company listed on NASDAQ) since 2003.
Mr. Lam was an executive director of SFund International Holdings Limited
(stock code: 1367, whose shares were delisted from the main board of the Stock
Exchange with effect from 20 September 2022) from 2016 to 2022. He was also
an independent non- executive director of Summit Ascent Holdings Limited (stock
code: 102, which is listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange) from June
2019 to January 2024.

* For identification purposes only
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Mr. Mak Yiu Tong, aged 65, was appointed as an independent non-executive
Director on 12 July 2021. Mr. Mak is the chairman of the nomination committee
and a member of the audit committee of the Company. Mr. Mak graduated
from the China University of Political Science and Law with a Bachelor of Law
degree in 1998. Mr. Mak is a legal executive of Chiu, Szeto & Cheng, a firm of
solicitors in Hong Kong. Mr. Mak has been working in the legal industry for over
30 years. Mr. Mak currently serves as an independent non-executive director
of Talent Property Group Limited (stock code: 760) and Hao Tian International
Construction Investment Group Limited (stock code: 1341, a non-wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company), whose shares are listed on the main board of the
Stock Exchange. Mr. Mak served as an independent non-executive director of
each of Fujian Nuogi Co., Ltd. (stock code: 1353, whose shares were delisted
from the main board of the Stock Exchange with effect from 8 February 2021)
from April 2017 to February 2021 and Up Energy Development Group Limited
(stock code: 307, whose shares were delisted from the main board of the Stock
Exchange with effect from 5 January 2022) from April 2017 to January 2022.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Siu Chun Pong Raymond was appointed as the company secretary on 26
August 2022. Mr. Siu has been a practising solicitor of the High Court of Hong
Kong since 2005. Mr. Siu has over 18 years of experience in corporate finance
and regulatory compliance. He is the founder and the senior partner of Raymond
Siu & Lawyers. Prior to setting up and running his own solicitors’ firm, he has
been a partner of F. Zimmem & Co., Solicitors & Notaries from July 2012 to
August 2017. Mr. Siu obtained his Bachelor of Laws and Postgraduate Certificate
in Laws from The University of Hong Kong. He obtained his Master of Laws from
University College London.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to maintaining sound and well- established corporate
governance practices and procedures that are consistent with the Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Code”) set out in Appendix C1 to the Listing Rules.
The corporate governance principles of the Company emphasise on a quality
board of directors, sound internal control, transparency and accountability to all
shareholders of the Company.

The Company has applied the principles and complied with all relevant code
provisions of the CG Code throughout the Year, save and except Code Provision
C.2.1.

Under code provision C.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of the chairman and
chief executive should be separate and should not be performed by the same
individual. The Company has neither appointed a board member as the chairman
of the Board nor appointed a chief executive officer. Having considered the
business operation of the Group at the material time, it is believed that the Board,
which consists of experienced professionals, can function effectively as a whole,
and the executive Directors along with other members of senior management of
the Company are effective in overseeing the day-to-day operation of the Company
under the strong corporate governance structure in place.
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GOVERNANCE FRAMEWORK

The Board is collectively responsible for the long-term success of the Group and
for its leadership, strategic planning, risk management, corporate governance,
financial performance and culture. The Board has established audit committee (the
“Audit Committee”), remuneration committee (the “Remuneration Committee”),
Nomination Committee and executive committee (the “Executive Committee”)
to oversee particular aspects of the Company’s affairs, each with specific terms
of reference setting out their authority and duties. The terms of reference are
available on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

The Board
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Collectively responsible for promoting long-term success of the Company by providing leadership, strategic planning and
managing risk and supervising corporate governance, financial performance and culture
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Each committee has authority to obtain external professional advice and to seek
information from employees, and the Company will provide sufficient resources
to the committees for performance of its duties and responsibilities. Minutes of
the committees meetings are kept by the Company Secretary and all decisions
of the committees are reported to the Board. To further reinforce independence
and effectiveness, all Audit Committee members are independent non-executive
Directors, and the Nomination Committee and Remuneration Committee
comprise a majority of independent non-executive Directors as members. Details
and reports of the committees are set out below.
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BOARD COMPOSITION AND BOARD PRACTICES
Role and function

The Board has the responsibility of promoting the success of the Company by
formulating its strategic direction and supervising its operations and affairs in an
effective manner. Each Director has a fiduciary duty and statutory responsibilities
towards the Company.

Each Director is aware of his collective and individual responsibilities to all
Shareholders and that he should give sufficient time and attention to the affairs of
the Company.

With the objective of enhancing shareholder value, the Board is responsible for
the formulation and approval of overall business strategies and policies of the
Group, management of the business and affairs of the Group, and monitoring of
the performance of the management of the Group and is charged with presenting
a balanced, clear and understandable assessment of the Group’s performance,
position and prospects in its annual and interim results, other announcements
containing inside information and financial disclosures of the Company required
under the Listing Rules and other applicable rules.

Some of the key responsibilities of the Board include:

° establishing and maintaining the strategic direction and objectives of the
Group

° evaluating significant investment proposals, major acquisitions or
disposals

° appointment or re-appointment of Directors and members of the
committees

° ensuring the financial statements are prepared to give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Group

o ensuring that a framework of prudent and effective controls is in place to
enable risks to be assessed and managed

o monitoring major capital transactions or other significant operational or
financial matters

° monitoring the performance of management

Daily operations and management of the Group’s business are delegated to the
management.
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Composition

As at the date of this report, the Board comprises two executive Directors and

three independent non-executive Directors.

A

B IFITES ©

Membership of Board Committee(s)
EFZREZHA

Executive Directors:

BiTES:

Dr. Zhiliang Qu, J.P. (Australia)
BiEmELT - K FHLCEN)

Mr. Fok Chi Tak
ESEAE

Independent Non-executive Directors:

BWIERITESE :
Mr. Chan Ming Sun Jonathan
PR 88 28 55 4

Mr. Lam Kwan Sing
MBS E

Mr. Mak Yiu Tong
BRAES

Their biographical details of the Directors are set out on pages 30 to 32 of this

report.
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The three independent non-executive Directors, which represented more than
one-third of the entire Board, bring a wide range of business and financial
experience to the Board, which contributes to the effective direction of the Group
and the development of the Group’s strategies and policies and promotes checks
and balances of the management process to safeguard Shareholders’ interest.
The Board reviews regularly the Board's composition and considers that the
composition of the Board is well balanced with each Director having sound
knowledge, experience and expertise relevant to the business operations and
development of the Group. The Board is also satisfied that all independent non-
executive Directors meet the guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules
and are independent pursuant to the requirements of the guidelines and the
Company complied with the requirements under Rule 3.10(1) and Rule 3.10(2) of
the Listing Rules throughout the Year.

A'list of Directors and their respective role and function has been published on
the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange, and is also disclosed
in relevant corporate communications issued by the Company pursuant to the
Listing Rules.

Appointment and re-election of Directors

Formal procedures were adopted by the Board for governing the appointment, re-
election and removal of Directors in accordance with the articles of association of
the Company (the “Articles”).

Except for Mr. Fok Chi Tak, each Director has entered into a service contract or
a letter of appointment with the Company for a term of three years. All Directors
are subject to the retirement by rotation at least once every three years under the
Articles. Pursuant to the Articles, at each annual general meeting, one-third of the
Directors for the time being shall retire by rotation and the retiring Directors are
eligible for re- election in accordance with the Articles.

The Company may by ordinary resolution elect any person to be a Director either
to fill a casual vacancy on the Board, or as an addition to the existing Board. The
Board may from time to time appoint a Director either to fill a casual vacancy or as
an addition to the Board. Any Director so appointed by the Board shall hold office
only until the next following annual general meeting and shall then be eligible for
re- election.

If a Shareholder wishes to propose a person for election as a Director at a general
meeting of the Company, a Shareholder may serve the Company a written
notice and follow the designated procedures for nomination of Directors under
the Articles, which are available on the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange.
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Director’s commitment BERZ&E
The Board meets at least four times a year at quarterly intervals and holds EFE@BFEVRFELETINAEGHE TR E
additional meetings as and when the Board thinks appropriate to discuss matters SRABEBREINERITEE  UEEHTES
relating to the Group's strategies, business operations, performance, governance AN BEIRREE « ZiFEE - RKIB - EALREAK
and material investments. BEHHEZEH o
Attendance records of the Directors and committee members for the Year are set  EZNEE K ENAFE 2 B F L8 H 50
out below: N
Attendance/Number of meetings
HEERAY SBTERRB
Executive Audit  Nomination Remuneration General
Board  Committee  Committee ~ Committee ~ Committee meeting
EFE WTEAT FRRAT REZAT FHERAE BFXE
Total number of meetings BETERERY 12 6 3 1 2 1
Executive Directors: BoEE:
Mr. Xu Haiying (Note 1) E?i%f‘ﬁi(ﬁﬁ%ﬁ) 111 66 NATER NATER NATER 17
Dr. Zhiliang Qu EeEt 12112 66 NATER n 212 11
Mr. Fok Chi Tak Fﬁffﬁf‘ﬁi 1212 66 NARER NATER NATER 11
Independent Non-executive
Directors: BIESTES:
Mr. Chan Ming Sun Jonathan PReG4 L& 912 NATER 33 11 22 7
Mr. Lam Kwan Sing MERLE 912 NATER 33 11 22 1
Mr. Mak Yiu Tong EREEE 1212 NATER 33 1 NATER 1
Note: B 5T

1. Mr. Xu Haiying resigned as an executive Director on 23 February
2024,

The Board reviews the performance of the Directors regularly to ensure the
Directors have adequately and effectively performed their roles and devoted
sufficient time to the Company’s affairs. The Board was satisfied that the Directors
had a strong commitment to the Company and positively contributed to the Board
through their participation in the Company’s affairs and the Board’s discussions
and decisions, as reflected in their high attendance record on the Board and its
committee meetings during the Year.
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Board process

All Directors have full access to relevant information both at the meetings and at
regular intervals. Notice of not less than 14 days was given to Directors for the
reqular Board meetings. The Company Secretary assists the Board in preparing
the meeting agenda and, during which, the Directors are consulted for matters
to be included in the agenda for all regular meetings of the Board. It has been
the practice of the Board and accepted by all members of the Board that relevant
information of regular Board meetings will be sent to all Directors at least three
days (or other reasonable period) prior to the meetings.

Board meetings involve active participation, either in person or through other
electronic means of communication, by all of the Directors present. Board
minutes are prepared and kept by the Company Secretary recording in sufficient
details the matters considered and decisions reached by the Board or Board
committees, including any concerns raised or dissenting views mentioned by
any Director. All draft and final minutes of Board meetings and meetings of
committees are sent to Directors or Board committees members as appropriate
for comments, approval and records. Board records are available for inspection
by any Director upon request.

Matters on transactions where Directors are considered having a conflict of
interest or material interests would not be dealt with by way of written resolutions
and a separate Board meeting shall be held where independent non- executive
Directors who have no material interests should be present at such meeting.
Directors having a conflict of interest or material interests in a transaction shall,
before the meeting of the Board, declare his interest(s) therein in accordance
with the Articles, and shall abstain from voting on the resolution(s) and shall not
be counted in the quorum present at such Board meeting. Such declaration of
interests will be duly noted in the minutes of the relevant Board meeting.

The Company Secretary shall provide professional advice on governance matters
to the Directors. Members of the management have been reminded that they
have an obligation to provide the Board and the Board committees with adequate
information on a timely basis to enable each of them to make informed decisions.
All Directors are entitled to have access to Board papers, minutes and related
materials. The Board and each Director have separate and independent access
to the Group’s senior management. In addition, the Directors are able, upon
reasonable request, to seek independent professional advice under appropriate
circumstances, at the Company’s expense. The Board may resolve to provide
appropriate independent professional advice to the Directors to assist the relevant
Directors to discharge their duties.

With the support of the Company Secretary, the executive Directors seek to
ensure that all Directors are properly briefed on issues arising at Board meetings
and receive adequate and reliable information in a timely manner.
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Induction, information and ongoing professional development

Each newly-appointed Director is provided with a package of orientation materials
setting out the required duties and responsibilities of directors under the Listing
Rules and other relevant statutory requirements of Hong Kong and received an
induction training with external legal adviser on director’s duties and obligations
and meeting with management for an overview of the Group. The Directors are
kept informed from time to time on the latest development of any changes to the
regulatory requirements and the status of compliance of applicable rules and
regulations by the Company as well as business development and operation
plans of the Company.

In compliance with code provision C.1.4, the Company has arranged for, and
provided subsidies for, the Directors and the Company Secretary of the Company
to participate in continuous professional development organized in the form of
in- house training, seminars or other appropriate courses to keep them refreshed
of their knowledge, skill and understanding on the Group and its business or to
update their skills and knowledge on the latest development or changes in the
relevant laws, the Listing Rules and corporate governance practices.

All Directors are required to provide the Company with their training records on
an annual basis. For the Year, all Directors have participated in various training
and continuous professional development activities and/or were given training
materials at external seminars/training sessions.

Liability insurance for the Directors

Appropriate insurance cover on directors’ and officers’ liabilities has been
arranged and is in place to protect the Directors and officers of the Group from
their risk exposure arising from the businesses of the Group and potential
personal liabilities.
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Company has adopted a board diversity policy. A summary of such board
diversity policy, the measurable objectives set for implementing such board
diversity policy, and the progress made towards achieving those objectives are
disclosed below.

Summary of the hoard diversity policy

With a view to achieving a sustainable and balanced development, the Company
sees increasing diversity at the Board level as an essential element in supporting
the attainment of its strategic objectives and its sustainable development. In
designing the Board’s composition, the Board diversity has been considered
from a number of aspects, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, professional experience, skills and knowledge.
All Board member's appointments will be based on merit, and candidates will
be considered against objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits of
diversity on the Board.

Measurable Objectives

Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversified perspectives,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of services. The ultimate
decision will be based on merit and contribution that the selected candidates will
bring to the Board. The Board’s composition will be disclosed in the corporate
governance report annually in accordance with the Listing Rules.

Monitoring

The Nomination Committee is responsible for monitoring implementation of the
board diversity policy.

Diversity of the Board

The existing Board members are of different backgrounds, qualifications and
experiences, including extensive experiences in resources, auditing, accounting,
investment, corporate finance, project development and management. In view of
the present size and complexities of the operations and the nature of the risks and
challenges the Group faces, the Nomination Committee considers the Company
has achieved a right balance of skills, experience, knowledge and diversity
among the present Board members.

All Board members are male. The Company will appoint at least a director of
different gender on or before 31 December 2024.

Among the 151 staffs of the Group, 122 are male and 29 are female.
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EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

The Executive Committee was set up in June 2010. The Executive Committee
operates as a general management committee under the direct authority of the
Board to enhance the efficiency for business decisions. In accordance with
its terms of reference, the Executive Committee monitors the execution of the
Company’s strategic plans and operations of all business units of the Group and
discusses and makes decisions on matters relating to the management and day-
to-day operations of the Group.

As at the date of this report, the Executive Committee comprised of all existing
executive Directors, namely Dr. Zhiliang Ou and Mr. Fok Chi Tak.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established the Audit Committee in May 2006. The primary
duties of the Audit Committee are (a) making recommendations to the Board
on the appointment and removal of the external auditor; (b) reviewing the
financial statements and material advice in respect of financial reporting; and (c)
overseeing the internal control procedures of the Company. Meetings shall be
held at least twice a year.

This report has been reviewed by the Audit Committee.

As at the date of this report, the Audit Committee comprised of three independent
non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Chan Ming Sun Jonathan (chairman of the
committee), Mr. Lam Kwan Sing and Mr. Mak Yiu Tong.

The work performed by the Audit Committee during the Year is summarised as
follows:

(@)  reviewed the audited financial statements of the Group for the Previous
Year and unaudited interim financial statements of the Group for the six
months ended 30 September 2023 and the related results announcements;

(b)  reviewed the independence of the external auditor and engagement of
external auditor for annual audit;

(c)  reviewed the accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group
and the compliance with relevant accounting standards, the Listing Rules
and other statutory requirements;

(d)  reviewed the effectiveness of internal control and risk management
systems; and

(e)  recommended on the re-appointment, remuneration and terms of
engagement of the external auditor.
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During the Year, no issue brought to the attention of the management and/or the
Board were of significant importance to require disclosure in this annual report.

The Company has adopted a set of internal guidelines on whistle-blowing in
2013. Arrangement has been put in place by which employees can report any
concerns, including misconduct, impropriety or fraud in financial reporting
matters and accounting practices, in confidence and without fear of recrimination
for fair and independent investigation of such matters and for appropriate follow-
up action.

In addition, the Company has also adopted a policy that subject to prior approval
by Audit Committee, no employees or former employees of external auditor can
be appointed as director or senior executive of internal audit or finance function
of the Group, within 12 months preceding their employment by the external
auditor to enhance independent reporting by external auditor.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company set up the Nomination Committee in August 2009. The primary
duties of the Nomination Committee are (a) reviewing the structure, size and
composition of the Board and making recommendations to the Board on any
proposed change to the Board; (b) identifying suitably qualified candidates to
become members of the Board; (c) assessing the independence of independent
non-executive Directors; and (d) making recommendations on appointment, re-
election and removal of Directors and ensuring a succession plan is in place.

As at the date of this report, the Nomination Committee is comprised of one
executive Director, namely Dr. Zhiliang Ou and three independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Chan Ming Sun Jonathan, Mr. Lam Kwan Sing and Mr.
Mak Yiu Tong (chairman of the committee).

The work performed by the Nomination Committee during the Year is
summarised as follows:

(@) reviewed and recommended on the structure, size and composition of
the Board including the diversity as well as the competence, experience,
academic background and qualification of its members;

(b)  reviewed and assessed the independence of each independent non-
executive Director; and

(c)  recommended the nomination of Directors for re-election at the annual
general meeting.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company set up the Remuneration Committee in May 2006. The primary
duties of the Remuneration Committee are (a) evaluating the performance
and making recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policies and
structure for the remuneration of the Directors and senior management of the
Company; (b) establishing a formal and transparent procedure for developing
a policy on remuneration; (c) determining specific remuneration packages
for all executive Directors and senior management in the manner specified
in its terms of reference; (d) making recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration packages of independent non-executive Directors; (e) reviewing the
appropriateness and relevance of the remuneration policy; and (f) reviewing and
making recommendations to the Board as to the fairness and reasonableness of
the terms of any Director's service agreement, which are subject to the approval
of the Shareholders in general meeting pursuant to the Listing Rules.

As at the date of this report, the Remuneration Committee comprised of one
executive Director, namely Dr. Zhiliang Ou and two independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Chan Ming Sun Jonathan (chairman of the committee) and
Mr. Lam Kwan Sing.

The work performed by the Remuneration Committee during the Year is
summarised as follows:

(@)  reviewed and recommended on the remuneration packages of existing
Directors;

(b)  reviewed the appropriateness of the remuneration policy of the Company;
and

(c)  reviewed the share schemes of the Company.

During the process of consideration, no individual Director was involved in
decisions relating to his own remuneration.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance duties of the
Company including (a) developing and reviewing the Company’s policies and
practices on corporate governance; (b) reviewing and monitoring the training and
continuous professional development of Directors and senior management; (c)
reviewing and monitoring the Company's policies and practices on compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements; (d) developing, reviewing and monitoring
the code of conduct applicable to employees and Directors; and (g) reviewing the
Company’s compliance with the CG Code.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the financial
statements of the Group which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of
the Group on a going concern basis and in presenting the interim and annual
financial statements, announcements and other financial disclosures required
under the Listing Rules. Members of the management have provided the Board
with monthly updates and sufficient information for the Board to develop
and maintain a balanced and understandable assessment of the Company’s
performance, position and prospects.

The Directors ensure the preparation of the financial statements of the Group
is in accordance with the statutory requirements and the applicable accounting
standards. The Directors also ensure that the publication of the financial
statements of the Group is in a timely manner.

Auditor’s Remuneration

During the Year, the total fee paid/payable in respect of audit and non-audit
services provided by the external auditors is set out below:

CE 9% 27

EEMRANEANRTELEEEREUEER
NP MRRAEBEEIROR 2 A EERBHRK
ARZ25FHREEFBERR  RERLETR
AR 2 KM IR EAER T - EBEKE
EBAREZeRUENEHNTREER - U
HEZGHARFKRE - MR KA HIE M
e RGP 2 &HE o

EEMRAKE 2 MBERRIIBIOEEERKRK
EREERRE - EEMHEARERTIBAE
B2 AT R o

ZRET BN &

RAEE - BLONE R BRED TR AR B S AR K
RIGEN, R 2 B RAESINMT

Fee paid/payable
for the year ended
31 March 2024
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Audit services Z AR

Non-audit services

FEEBRT

Total st

The statement of the auditor of the Company regarding its reporting
responsibilities on the financial statements for the Year is set out in the
Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 71 to 77 of this report.
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NOMINATION POLICY

The Nomination Committee may invite nominations of candidates from Board

members for its consideration. The Nomination Committee may also propose

candidates who are not nominated by Board members. The factors in assessing
the suitability of a proposed candidate for director include:

e Dbusiness experience relevant and beneficial to the Company, diversity
in all its aspects, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, knowledge, professional experience and skills;

e character and integrity;

e accomplishments in personal careers;

° independence;

° willingness to devote adequate time to discharge duties as a Board
member;

and such other perspectives relevant to the Company’s business. The Nomination

Committee shall make recommendations of candidates for the Board’s
consideration and approval.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a dividend policy. Declaration and payment of
dividends are subject to the discretion of the Board. The Board would consider,
inter alia, the following factors before declaring or recommending dividend to the
Shareholders:

()

the Company’s actual and expected financial performance;
retained earnings and distributable reserves of the Company;

the level of the Company's debts to equity ratio, return on equity and the
relevant financial covenants;

any restrictions on payment of dividends that may be imposed by the
Company’s contracting parties;

the Company’s expected working capital requirements and future
expansion plans;

general economic conditions, business cycle of the Company’s business
and other internal or external factors that may have an impact on the
business or financial performance and position of the Company; and

any other factors that the Board may deem appropriate.

Any payment of dividend is also subject to compliance with applicable laws and
regulations including the laws of the Cayman Islands and the Articles.

The Board will continually review the dividend policy from time to time and there
can be no assurance that dividends will be paid in any particular amount for any
given period.
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INTERNAL CONTROL, RISK MANAGEMENT AND THEIR  ARBECIE - MR EER RHEBEMN

EFFECTIVENESS

The Board has the overall responsibility for overseeing sound and effective ~ =ES7B2 M A & 25 E AN £ B N 2P EE 15 K AR
internal controls and risk management for the Group to safeguard the interests & 3% 2 T2 1 M AW » LABBRS (RBE E AR R 2 7
of its shareholders and the assets of the Group at all times. In this connection, ~ ZEFIANEEE 2 EE o A& B Rt &7 A EPES 22
an internal control and risk management system has been established to provide ~ R ER EIRHIE - LA B (MIERE)RETE
reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss ~ HIRERERIREIEKR 21BN - WEIRSRIE (M
and to manage or mitigate, rather than eliminate, risks of failure to achieve the — FEJHER) REEERAEE XL B IZ 2 ER

Group’s business objectives.

The Company has in place an integrated framework of internal control which ~ ARARIEHIFE —EEBE S S HAIA S ATEM
is consistent with the principles outlined in the “Internal Control and Risk [ AIEBESIF B @R B 38 — EARNRE | FrE R EI 2
Management — A Basic Framework” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of 474 PUEBESHEIEZR - SFIBRMN T ¢

Certified Public Accountants as illustrated below:

Monitoring °
ER

Information and Communication e
HiBGEA

Control Activities °
BSiREE

[ ]
Risk Assessment °
BBEEFAE

[ ]
Control Environment °
EEHIRIE
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Ongoing assessment of control systems’ performance
FHEFT BT HIE 2 K37

Internal audits performed by internal audit department
A EZE FIETAEEZ

Information in sufficient details is provided to the right person timely
REREEATRET I FEZER

Channels of communication across the Group and with customers, suppliers and external parties
RUAEBEANPARERS - HEFREINN T ZBRERS

Channels of communication for people to report any suspected improprieties

R AERIBEA AR AETRIBEBERE

Policies and procedures for ensuring management directives are carried out

HIE A ERATERES ZBRREF

Control activities include performance review, segregation of duties, authorization, physical count,
access control, documentation and records, etc.

ERReRARER  BEST &g BEWRE  FHEES - FEREE

=5

~F

Identification, evaluation and assessment of the key risk factors affecting the achievement of the
Company’s objectives are performed regularly

EHEA - FTBEMRTATFEERARRIERZ FERARREE

Undertake proper actions to manage the risks so identified

HESR E1TEIAB AT A < Bk

Channels to communicate the Company’s commitment to integrity and high ethical standards to the
staff are established

RURBAE LHEERARTNBNSEFRAERDEETE

Organizational chart and limits of authority are set and communicated to staff concerned

il E I RIAEEE B TEE R R R E MAER

Reporting lines in accordance with organizational chart and line of authority are set

S CUNCIES S Sl i
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The internal audit department is responsible for conducting independent
reviews of the adequacy and effectiveness of the Group’s internal control and
risk management system, reporting regularly the results to the Board through
the Audit Committee and making recommendations to the relevant department
management for necessary actions.

During the Year, the internal audit department had conducted reviews on
the effectiveness of the internal control system covering all material factors
related to financial, operational, compliance controls, various functions for risk
management and physical and information security. Internal control reports
containing its findings and results were reported to the Audit Committee during
the Audit Committee meetings and had been delivered to all Directors for review.

The internal audit department had reported during the Audit Committee meetings
the key findings identified by the Company’s external auditors in respect of
the Group’s internal controls and discussed findings and actions or measures
taken in addressing those findings. The Company considers the internal control
systems and risk management were effective during the Year. No material issues
on the Group’s internal control system have been identified by the Group’s
internal audit department and the Company’s external auditors during the Year
which required significant rectification measures.

MODEL CODE FOR DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of the Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) set out in Appendix C3 to the
Listing Rules as its own code of conduct for Directors’ securities transactions.
The Company has made specific enquiry to all Directors and all Directors
confirmed that they have fully complied with the Model Codeg for the Year.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Siu Chun Pong Raymond was appointed as the company secretary on 26
August 2022. Mr. Siu has been a practising solicitor of the High Court of Hong
Kong since 2005. Mr. Siu has over 18 years of experience in corporate finance
and regulatory compliance. He is the founder and the senior partner of Raymond
Siu & Lawyers. Prior to setting up and running his own solicitors’ firm, he has
been a partner of F. Zimmern & Co., Solicitors & Notaries from July 2012 to
August 2017. Mr. Siu obtained his Bachelor of Laws and Postgraduate Certificate
in Laws from The University of Hong Kong. He obtained his Master of Laws from
University College London.

During the Year, Mr. Siu has received no less than 15 hours of relevant
professional trainings.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Board is committed to maintaining high degree of transparency to ensure that
the investors and the Shareholders receive accurate, comprehensive and timely
information of the Group by publication of announcements, circulars, interim
and annual reports and other corporate communications. All shareholders’
communications are also available on the Company’s website.

The annual general meeting of the Company provides a useful forum for
Shareholders to exchange views with the Board. All Directors will endeavour to
attend and the external auditor is also available at the annual general meeting
to address Shareholders’ queries. In case of any extraordinary general meeting
to approve a connected transaction or any other transaction that is subject
to independent Shareholders’ approval, members of the independent Board
committee will also endeavour to attend to address Shareholders’ queries.

Pursuant to Rule 13.39(4) of the Listing Rules, all votes of the Shareholders at
general meetings would be taken by poll.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS
Shareholders’ right to convene extraordinary general meeting

Pursuant to article 58 of the Articles, an extraordinary general meeting of the
Company (the “EGM") shall be convened on the requisition of any one or more
Shareholder(s) (the “Requisitionist(s)”) holding at the date of deposit of the
requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying
the right of voting at general meetings of the Company.

The Requisitionist(s) shall have the right, by written requisition to the Board or
the Company Secretary of the Company, to require an EGM to be called by the
Board for the transaction of any business specified in such requisition, and the
EGM shall be held within two months after the deposit of such requisition. If
within twenty-one days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene
such meeting, the Requisitionist(s) may do so in the same manner, and shall
be entitled to reimbursement of all reasonable expenses incurred by the
Requisitionist(s).
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Putting enquiries to the Board

To ensure effective communication between the Board and the Shareholders,
the Company has adopted a shareholders’ communication policy (the “Policy”),
which is available on the website of the Company. Under the Policy, information
of the Group shall be communicated to the Shareholders mainly through annual
general meetings, extraordinary general meetings, financial reports, corporate
communications and other corporate publications on the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange. Shareholders may at any time make a request
for the Company’s information to the extent that such information is publicly
available. Any such requests shall first be directed to the Company Secretary:

By post

Rooms 2501-2509, 25/F

Shui On Centre

6—8 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong

By email
Gavin.Kwai@acesogrouphk.com

Shareholders may also directly raise questions during the Shareholders’
meetings.

The Board conducted a review of the implementation and effectiveness of the
Policy during the Year and is satisfied with the results thereof given the above
measures.

Putting forward proposals at Shareholders’ meeting

Shareholders shall follow Article 58 of the Articles for including a resolution
at any general meeting. The requirements and procedures are set out above in
the paragraph headed “Shareholders’ right to convene extraordinary general
meeting”.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company believes that maintaining a high level of transparency is a key
to enhance investor relations. It is committed to a policy of open and timely
disclosure of corporate information to its shareholders and public investors.
The Company updates the Shareholders on its latest business developments
and financial performance through its annual reports, interim reports, circulars
and announcements. The website of the Company (http://www.acesogrouphk.
com) has provided an effective communication platform to the public and the
Shareholders.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There were no changes in the constitutional documents of the Company during
the Year. An up-to-date version of the Articles is available on the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange.
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The Directors are pleased to present their annual report and the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the Year.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. As at the date of this annual
report, its subsidiaries are principally engaged in (i) securities investment; (i)
provision of securities brokerage and financial services; (iii) asset management;
(iv) rental and trading of construction machinery; (v) provision of repair and
maintenance and transportation service; (vi) property development; (vii) property
leasing; and (viii) money lending. The principal activities of its subsidiaries are
set out in note 43 to the consolidated financial statements for the Year.

BUSINESS REVIEW
A review of the Group’s financial and business performance

A review of the Group’s business and the analysis using the financial key
performance indicators are set out on pages 5 to 29 of this annual report under
the paragraphs headed “Business Review” and “Financial Review” in the section
headed “Management, Discussion and Analysis” of this annual report. For the
Year, the Group had incurred a loss attributable to the owners of the Company
of approximately HK$462 million (2023: loss attributable to the owners of
approximately HK$264 million). The gearing ratio as at 31 March 2024 was
approximately 56% (31 March 2023: 51%).

Environmental, Social and Governance

The Group is committed to operating in compliance with the applicable
environmental laws as well as protecting the environment by minimising the
negative impact of the Group’s existing business activities on the environment.
During the Year, the Group strived to build an environmentally friendly enterprise
with enhancement of energy usage efficiency, implementation of various emission
reduction measures and improvement in resource usage efficiency. Details of the
environmental policies and performance are set out in the Environmental, Social
and Governance Report of the Company which is available on the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange.
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Relationship with Employees, Customers and Suppliers

The Group recognises the importance of having good working relationship with
its employees. During the Year, the Group has not experienced any significant
problems with its staff or any significant labour disputes. As at 31 March 2024,
the Group had a total of approximately 151 employees in Hong Kong and the
PRC. The Group’s remuneration policies are formulated according to market
practices, experiences, skills and performance of individual employees and are
reviewed every year. The Group has also adopted a share option scheme and a
share award scheme.

The Group understands the importance of maintaining a good relationship with
its customers and suppliers to its immediate and long-term business goals.
During the Year, the aggregate revenue and purchases attributable to the Group’s
five largest customers and suppliers were approximately 37.4% and 67.9% of
the Group’s total revenue and purchases respectively. As at 31 March 2024, the
majority of the Group’s five largest customers and suppliers have a length of
relationship with the Group for more than 10 years.

Compliance with laws and regulations with significant impact

Based on the best knowledge of the Directors, the Group has complied in all
material respect with laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the
Group.

Principal risks and Uncertainties

The Group identified and determined the major risks which may affect
the operations results and financial conditions of the Group through risk
management process, which including the following:

Risk in delay or default of payment in the Group’s money lending
business

As at 31 March 2024, the outstanding loan receivables of the money lending
business of the Group (net of impairment) was approximately HK$47 million,
representing approximately 1.0% of the total assets of the Group. Any delay or
default in payment of the loans will not have an adverse impact on the Group’s
working capital, cash flow and subsequently the profits of the Group.

To manage such risk, the Group requires borrowers to provide appropriate
security and closely monitors the loan receivable collection cycle from time to
time to ensure full and timely collection of the outstanding amounts due from the
borrowers. The Group will assess and decide to enforce the security provided by
the borrowers or take legal actions as appropriate. All exposures are subject to
regular review and assessment for possible impairment.
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Compliance risk

The Group operates financial services business through subsidiaries with
appropriate licenses to conduct regulated activities, insurance agency and money
lending. During the course of providing such financial services, the Group would
be exposed to compliance risk, including the risk of legal liability, being subject
to regulatory proceedings, disciplinary action, or loss of property or business
reputation arising from violation of laws, regulations and rules due to the
operation and management or practices of the Group or its personnel. In order
to effectively control compliance risk, the Group has put in place a practicable
compliance management system and provided resources and support to develop
lawful and compliance operations of the Group.

Financial risk
The Group’s diversified business is exposed to a variety of risks, such as
market risks, credit risk and liquidity risk. Further details of the financial risk

management objectives and policies are set out in note 37 to the consolidated
financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS
The results of the Group for the Year are set out in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income for the Year on pages 78 to 79 of

this annual report respectively.

No final dividend was recommended by the Directors for the Year (2023: nil).

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 March 2024, the Company’s reserves available for distribution amounted
to approximately HK$997 million (2023: HK$1,843 million).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in the property, plant and equipment of the Group are
set out in note 14a to the consolidated financial statements for the Year.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movement of share capital of the Company are set out in note 35 to the
consolidated financial statements for the Year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles and the
Companies Act of the Cayman Islands, which would oblige the Company to offer
new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing Shareholders.
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and assets and liabilities of the Group for the last five
financial years is set out on page 228 of this annual report.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed
any of the Company’s listed securities during the Year.

No share was cancelled during the Year.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the Year and up to the date of this annual report were:
Executive Directors

Dr. Zhiliang Ou, J.P. (Australia)

Mr. Fok Chi Tak

Mr. Xu Haiying (resigned on 23 February 2024)

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Chan Ming Sun Jonathan

Mr. Lam Kwan Sing

Mr. Mak Yiu Tong

According to the Articles, Mr. Fok Chi Tak and Mr. Mak Yiu Tong shall retire by

rotation and being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting.
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DIRECTORS SERVICE CONTRACTS

Except Mr. Fok Chi Tak, the executive Director, all Directors have entered into a
service contract or a letter of appointment with the Company for a term of three
years, which can be terminated by not less than three months’ notice in writing
served by either party on the other. No Director proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with any company
in the Group which is not determinable by the Group within one year without
compensation (other than statutory compensation).

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has confirmed their
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Board considers all
of the independent non-executive Directors are independent.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as provided in the paragraph headed “Related Party Transactions” below, no
other transaction, arrangement or contract of significance to which the Company,
its ultimate holding company, any of its fellow subsidiaries or subsidiaries was
a party and in which a director of the Company had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the Year or at any time during the
Year.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as provided in the paragraph headed “Related Party Transactions” below,
at no time during the Year was the Company, its controlling shareholders,
holding companies, or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party
to any arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of
the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate, and neither the Directors nor the chief executive, nor any of their
spouses or children under the age of 18, had any right to subscribe for the
securities of the Company, or had exercised any such right.

56 Aceso Life Science Group Limited  Annual Report 2023/24

EERHBHEN

RRTEFTESRELI  2REFCHAR
AR R =FZREEHNREER - ATHHE
P—HETE—APIR=(EAEEBAAL
FRH - ZERNEERRBFASLEECE
EMERAEEEM AR A AEENTGET
RECEEBERINETAIR—FRARIEZR
BaH o

BiIFRITES

RIE EMARRISEIA3ME - SBUIFITESD R
REBYE EXSAR/EBBUINTES
BAEMUAL -

EEREAXS - R aPH#
nt

BRI XIEs TR 5] —BRAAEIN  ARA] -
HEREBAR - BEAERR R E QB M B
NA BT LN AN B A R S A R AE
BRFELARAESERIFEARZNETHEE
EARREMBERRS - ZHAEL -

MERMNREEZRH

SRTIXIRs TR 5] —BAAEIN  ARA -
HEERRALR - £ A R s EAE I B A RISk Al
ZA P B 1 w1 B Y (2 B AT By ) RT L AR
ZH - BEEEAEBRE AR R EMEAM
FE R RERZEMERNG  BEE - =
2ITBAE - WEZEBRAMT/\RFLI
ERENBBAQF 2 EBSHIL EITEEFABRA
BRI o



REPORT OF DIRECTORS
EEERE

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES OF THE COMPANY AND ITS ASSOCIATED
CORPORATIONS

As at 31 March 2024, the interests and short positions of the Directors and chief
executives of the Company in shares of the Company (the “Shares”), underlying
Shares and debentures of the Company or its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SF0), as recorded in the register required to be kept by
the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code, were as follows:

Long positions in ordinary shares and underlying shares of the
Company
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Approximate

Number of percentage of

Name of Director/ Number of underlying Total total issued

chief executive Capacity Nature of interest Shares held Shares held interests  share capital

KERTT

Frd 48 R B 4 2305
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(Note 1)

i3)

Fok Chi Tak Beneficial owner Personal interest 60,871,152 = 60,871,152 0.82%
EEE BREAA AR

Zhiliang Qu Beneficial owner Personal interest 733,752 = 733,752 0.01%
BEm BalEA EAREzR

Chan Ming Sun Jonathan Beneficial owner Personal interest 733,752 - 733,752 0.01%
52200 BEBAA EAER

Lam Kwan Sing Beneficial owner Personal interest 733,752 — 733,752 0.01%
MEH BaEAA BN 3

Note: PaE

1. The percentage of shareholding is calculated on the basis of 7,381,776,805
Shares in issue as at 31 March 2024.

Other than as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2024, none of the Directors or
chief executives of the Company had any interests or short positions in any
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFQ) as recorded in the register
required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME AND SHARE AWARD SCHEME

a.  Share Option Scheme

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme”) which was adopted by the Shareholders at the annual general
meeting of the Company held on 25 September 2015 and remains valid for
a period of 10 years commencing on 25 September 2015 and will expire
on 24 September 2025. The major terms of the Share Option Scheme are
set out below:

(i)

(iv)

(vi)

58 Aceso Life Science Group Limited

The purpose is to provide incentives to the participants.

Subject to the restrictions under the Listing Rules, the participants
include any full-time or part-time employees, executives and
officers of the Company and any of its subsidiaries (including
executive directors, non-executive directors and independent non-
executive directors of the Company and any of its subsidiaries) and
business consultants and legal and other professional advisors of
the Company or its subsidiaries which, in the opinion of the Board,
has or had made contribution to the Group.

Subject to the restrictions under the Listing Rules, the number of
Shares issued and to be issued in respect of which options granted
and may be granted to any individual in any 12-month period is not
permitted to exceed 1% of the Shares in issue at any point of time,
without prior approval from the Company’s shareholders. Options
granted to a substantial shareholder or an independent non-
executive Director in excess of 0.1% of the Company’s share capital
must be approved in advance by the Company’s shargholders.

In relation to each grantee of the options granted under the Share
Option Scheme, the right of the grantee to exercise the option shall
be in accordance with the terms of the Share Option Scheme and
the Listing Rules (which shall not be less than 12 months) and the
period to be notified by the Board to each grantee which shall not
exceed 10 years from the date upon which the options is deemed to
be granted and accepted.

The exercise price of an option will be determined by the Board
and will not be less than the highest of: (1) the closing price of
the Share on the date of grant; (2) the average closing price of the
Share for the five business days immediately preceding the date of
grant; and (3) the nominal value of the Share.

A consideration of HK$1 is payable on acceptance of the offer of
grant of options.
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The total number of shares available for issue under the Share Option
Scheme was 328,430,310 Shares and the total number of options
available for grant issue under the Share Option Scheme as at 1 April
2023 and 31 March 2024 was 328,430,310 Shares and 328,430,310
Shares respectively. As at the date of this annual report, the total number
of shares available for issue and the total number of options available for
grant represents 4.45% of the issued shares of the Company (excluding
treasury shares).

As at 1 April 2023 and 31 March 2024, there was no outstanding options.
During the Year, there was no share options granted, exercised, lapsed,
forfeited or cancelled. The percentage to issued shares of the Company at
the date of this annual report was nil.

Share Award Scheme

The Company has adopted a share award scheme (the “Share Award
Scheme”) on 27 September 2013 and the scheme shall be valid and
effective for a term of ten years commencing from 27 September 2013 and
has expired on 26 September 2023. The major terms of the Share Award
Scheme are set out below:

(i) The purpose is to recognise the contributions by certain employees
of the Group and to give incentives to retain employees and to
attract suitable talents for the continual operation and future
development and expansion of the Group.

(i) Subject to the restrictions under the Listing Rules, the participants
include any individual being a director (including executive
director, non-executive director and independent non-executive
director), employee, officer, agent or consultant of the Company
or any of its subsidiaries or any other person as determined by the
Board who the Board considers, in its absolute discretion, have
contributed or will contribute to the Group.

(iii)  Subject to the restrictions under the Listing Rules, the aggregate
value of the Shares which may be issued to any individual at any
one time shall not exceed HK$5 million as at the date of such award
granted under the Share Award Scheme. The number of Shares
to satisfy the awards granted shall be allotted and issued by the
Board by obtaining a separate Shareholders’ approval at a general
meeting of the Company or utilising the general mandate granted
by the Shareholders at a general meeting of the Company from time
to time.

(iv)  Subject to the restrictions under the Listing Rules, in relation to
each grantee of the awards granted under the Share Award Scheme,
the awards shall vest in a period to be determined by the Directors
where the period must be at least six months, save for awards
granted to employees of the Group.

R-ZEBE-=ZFWUWA—BER_ZT_NF
ZA=+—H  REBRETS ]
TR 4280 5328,430,3100% » MARIEE
PRt & ] IR ENERERED R A
328,430,310% }2328,430,3100% - NEHRA
By - AIHERITRR D M B EUN AT IR B A EE
IR AN R EEITRG (TRIEE
TERZAD) #94.45% ©

R-E-_=ZFWUWA—BE-Z-_NF=A
=+—H0 ' BEREHOEBRE - RAF
§ - BHERE - 170« R S MEkEE
HRBERRHE - MERBE - GARRIEE
TR BE DA -

B {7 € W &1 &

AABERZE—=FNA - ++BER
f& 1D 82T 2 ([ A% 15 22 Eh T8l )) - %512
e E—=FNA-t+tBEF+F
HEAREERNER - E-_=ZFNA
THNBEHRM o R EREZEE
EREHT -

() BEMAREAKREETEEZE
Bl XWIRERE  SAKEREL
BUARRKRERNIBIEXG R AR
BNMBSIGEAT ©

(i) ZEMRAOREIT  2EERI
FRARAIEEMAMBARCE
Z(BEERTES  FRTEFRRE
VIFMITESR) B8 SMBE -
REHBERZERENALTHRES
BREZEFAEMAL  ME=S
ERNERSRECKATEHAR
SEELER -

(i) X EMMRAARET - RARERD
REEARLERERER - Ak
B m R (] B A B 1T 2 B RRE TS
BESEE BT - KARD R E
Bm#ETCBRNBESHAERTSE
BRARBBERAE ESTERFK
REEXBABRERRAR A RRA
?LK%%&Z-&%%E%&%
1T °

(v) X EMMRAERET - SRARERD
REN SRR 2 EARAM
5 ARRBENESEE MM
BB 2HRELBARNER - IE
BT AKE (RS 2 ZEFRIN o

T/ NFEFE EHEFRREEFRAT 99



REPORT OF DIRECTORS
EEERE

60

(v)  The number of shares to be granted will be determined by the
Board by reference to: (1) monthly salary of eligible employee;
(2) the average closing price of the share for the five business
days immediately preceding the date of grant; and (3) duration of
employment of eligible employee.

During the Year, there was no award Shares granted, vested, issued,
lapsed, forfeited or cancelled.

The total number of award Shares available for issue under the Share
Award Scheme before its expiry was 73,817,768 Shares being 1% of
the issued share capital of the Company as at the date of annual general
meeting of the Company held on 15 September 2023. The total number
of awards available for grant and shares available for issue (subject to the
listing approval) under the Share Award Scheme as at 1 April 2023 and 31
March 2024 were 44,202,862 Shares and nil Shares, respectively.

At the date of this annual report, given the Share Award Scheme has
already expired on 26 September 2023, the total number of Shares
available for issue ((i) the total number of awards available for grant under
the share award scheme and (ii) the outstanding and unvested shares) was
nil, which represents 0% of the issued Shares.

The number of shares that may be issued in respect of options and awards
granted under the Share Option Scheme and the Share Award Scheme
during the Year divided by the weighted average number of Shares in issue
(excluding treasury shares) for the Year was nil.

Share Schemes adopted by HTICI

HTICI, the non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company and whose
shares are listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 1341), has adopted a
share option scheme and a share award scheme on 23 October 2015 and
24 April 2020 respectively.

(a) Share Option Scheme of HTICI

The purpose of the share option scheme of HTICI is to provide
incentives or rewards to eligible persons who the board of directors
of HTICI (the “HTICI Board") considers, in its sole discretion, have
contributed or will contribute to the group of companies held by
HTICI (the “HTICI Group”).

Aceso Life Science Group Limited  Annual Report 2023/24
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Subject to the restrictions under the Listing Rules, the HTICI
Board may grant options (the “HTICI Options”) to eligible persons,
including directors of HTICI and its subsidiaries, to subscribe for
the shares of HTICI. Eligible persons of the share option scheme
of HTICI include, amongst others, any executives, any employee
(including proposed, full-time or part-time employee), a director
or proposed director (including an independent non-executive
director), a direct or indirect shareholder of any member of HTICI
and its subsidiaries and an associate of any of the aforementioned
persons.

Subject to the restrictions under the Listing Rules, options may be
exercised at any time from the date which options is deemed to be
granted and accepted and expired on the date as the HTICI Board
in its absolute discretion determine and which shall not exceeding
a period of 10 years from the date on which the HTICI Options are
accepted but subject to the previous for early termination thereof
contained in the share option scheme of HTICI.

The total number of shares of HTICI available for issue under the
Share Option Scheme of HTICI was 100,000,000 Shares. The
total number of HTICI Options available for grant under the share
option scheme of HTICI was 100,000,000 shares of HTICI and
100,000,000 of HTICI Shares as at 1 April 2023 and 31 March
2024, respectively. At 31 March 2024, the total number of of HTICI
shares and HTICI Options available for grant represents 1.31% of
the issued shares of HTICI.

The share option scheme of HTICI shall be valid and effective for
a term of ten years commencing from 23 October 2015 and will
expire on 22 October 2025.

Any grant of HTICI Options to any director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder (as such term as defined in the Listing
Rules) of HTICI, or any of their respective associates under the
share option scheme of HTICI is subject to the prior approval
of the independent non-executive directors of HTICI (excluding
independent non-executive directors who or whose associates is
the grantee of an option).

2 EMARRERET - ZRERZ
BRREEFGNRAAEBRAL(RR
SREFERREMENBLRRZ
ER)REBRE(ZREREZRR
BBEKRE]D  ARBRRERZR
BRERD - ERBERERRERR
BT A ERALTRE(EHBER)
SREFERRENENB QBT
AR B QA ZERMITERAR ~ £
EE(BREEE - 2BIFBES)
EXNrEER(BRBILIFNITE
=) BERSEERRIA KL L ER
ATHEEA -

2 EMARRERET - BAER 8
BEREERAERLEEME AL
BERSTTEE - WRERBERERRE
ExesERNBETCRBER -
BB EMZERERERK
BREREE RET10FHR - AR
B2 RBIFRE R E B RS 8T
FIRXMIERHRLE

RIEZRBERERRE R RER S
AHETHERBEREZRRERD
2 5328,430,3100% - RZE ==
FMA-—BERR-_Z_MFE=H
=t—B REEXRERERRE
BREGSA HIREMERERZ
RICE B D #8051 /100,000,000
P& 12100,000,0000% - R T _MFE=
A=1+—8  A#HEHHEREER
ERBREBRND REZREBRERIKE
Bhregh 2 XERERRER
BITRRIDH91.31% o

SREREREEEREFSZE
MHE —E—RAF+A-+=A#
BHI0FERERRER - RN =Z
—HE+A-+=—AFH -

RIE 2 KB E R R E R RER S
AERERERRETMNES - =
ZITRABHTERR(ERZR L™
MADMES A ZEMBEAR K
EAI R RBIR 2R RE B RERK
- HREREBIIFRTES(T
BRES RBREARAZBILIEHR
TESFHEBE A -

T/ NEFE SEHEFNBREEERAT 61



REPORT OF DIRECTORS
EEERE

62

The maximum number of shares in HTICI issued and to be issued
upon exercise of the HTICI Options granted to each eligible person
(including both exercised and outstanding HTICI Options) in any
12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the shares in HTICI in
issue for the time. Any further grant of HTICI Options in excess of
this limit is subject to shareholders’ approval in a general meeting
of HTICI. Where any grant of options to a substantial shareholder
or an independent non-executive director of HTICI, or any of their
respective associates, would result in the shares of HTICI issued
and to be issued upon exercise of all HTICI Options already granted
and to be granted (including HTICI Options exercised, cancelled
and outstanding) to such person in the 12-month period up to and
including the date of such grant representing in aggregate over
0.1% of the shares of HTICI in issue on the date of such grant, such
further grant of the HTICI Options shall be subject to prior approval
of the shareholders of HTICI with such person and its associates
abstaining from voting in favour of general meeting of HTICI.

The subscription price is determined by the HTICI Board, and shall
not be less than the highest of (i) the closing price of the shares
of HTICI as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet
on the date of offer; (ii) the average closing price of the shares of
HTICI as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet for
the five business days immediately preceding the offer date or (iii)
the nominal value of the shares of HTICI.

HTICI Options granted shall be taken up upon payment of HK$1 as
consideration for the grant of HTICI Options.

During the Year, there was no share options granted, exercised,
lapsed, forfeited or cancelled.
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(b)

Share Award Scheme of HTICI

HTICI has adopted the share award scheme on 24 April 2020.
Unless early terminated by the board of directors of HTICI, the
share award scheme of HTICI shall be valid and effective for a term
of 10 years commencing on the adoption date (i.e. 24 April 2020)
and will expire on 23 April 2030. The remaining life of the share
award scheme is 6 years.

The share award scheme of HTICI serves as an incentive measure to
recognise the contributions by selected participants and to provide
them with incentives in order to retain them; and to attract the right
talents for promoting the future development and expansion of the
HTICI Group, with a view to achieving the objective of increasing
the value of the HTICI Group by motivating the participants to strive
for the continual operation and future development and expansion
of the HTICI Group and aligning the interests of the participants and
the shareholders of HTICI.

Subject to the restrictions under the Listing Rules, participants
include any director (including executive director, non-executive
director and independent non-executive director), employee
(whether full time or part time), officer, agent or consultant of HTICI
or any of its subsidiaries or any of its affiliates or any other person
as determined by the board of directors of HTICI, whom the board
of directors of HTICI considers, in its absolute discretion, has
contributed or will contribute to the HTICI Group.

There was no maximum entitiement of each participant under the
share award scheme of HTICI.

No price shall be payable on acceptance of the awards.

The board of directors of HTICI has resolved to grant (i) a total
of 196,274,929 award shares of HTICI to selected grantees who
are not connected with HTICI on 24 April 2020; and (ii) a total of
65,475,610 award shares of HTICI to selected grantees who are
connected with HTICI on 29 June 2020. The award shares of HTICI
granted under the scheme are subject to a vesting scale in three
equal tranches.

(b)
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Further details of the Share Award Scheme are set out in note 36 to

the consolidated financial statements.

Details of the movement of the award Shares during the Year were as
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During the Year, a total of 6,500,001 award shares have been vested and
issued to the grantees who are not connected with HTICI in April 2023 at nil
consideration and a total of 21,325,204 award shares have been vested and issued
0 the grantees who are connected with HTICI in June 2023 at nil consideration.
The weighted average closing price of the shares of HTICI immediately before
the dates on which the award Shares were vested was HK$0.298. There was no
outstanding award shares of HTICI as at 31 March 2024.

There was no purchase price of the unvested award Shares as at 1 April 2023 and
31 March 2024.

The total number of awards of HTICI available for grant (which is subject to the
listing approval) under the share award scheme as at 1 April 2023 and 31 March
2024 were 497,444,013 shares (which represents 6.55% of the issued shares of
HTICI) and 500,364,744 shares (which represents 6.56% of the issued shares of
HTICI) respectively.

At the date of this annual report, the total number of shares available for issue
of the share award scheme of HTICI ((i) the total number of awards available
for grant under the share award scheme of HTICI and (ii) the outstanding and
unvested award shares of HTICI) was 525,269,218 shares, which represents
6.89% of the issued shares of HTICI.

The number of shares of HTICI that may be issued in respect of HTICI Options
and awards of HTICI granted under the share option scheme and the share award
scheme of HTICI during the Year divided by the weighted average number of
shares of HTICI in issue (excluding treasury shares) for the Year was nil.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Details of the equity-linked agreements entered into during the Year or subsisted
at the end of the Year are set out below:
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Options
Share options granted to Co-High

In 2020, the Group has been actively seeking opportunities to diversify its
businesses and to expand its businesses into bioscience industry. By partnering
with Co-High Investment Management Limited (“Co-High”), the Group can tap

o the bioscience industry. Apart from forming a joint venture, the Company
and Co-High entered into a conditional option deed (the “Share Option Deed”)
on 9 July 2020 in respect of the grant of the 609,188,681 options (the “Co-High
Share Option(s)”) to Co-High for subscription of an aggregate of 609,188,681
new Shares (the “Co-High Option Share(s)”) at the initial exercise price of
HK$0.25 per Co-High Option Share (subject to adjustments) during the period
commencing from the date of the Share Option Deed and ending on the third
anniversary of that date. The Share Option Deed, the grant of Co-High Share
Options and the issue of the Co-High Option Shares were approved by the
Shareholders at an extraordinary general meeting held on 3 September 2020 and
the other conditions precedent were also fulfilled. As of the date of this report,
none of the subscription rights attaching to the Co-High Share Options has been
exercised by Co-High. For more details, please refer to the announcements of
the Company dated 5 June 2020 and 3 September 2020, and the circular of the
Company dated 14 August 2020.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The significant related party transactions entered into by the Group during the
Year set out in note 39 to the consolidated financial statements. Those related
party transactions do not constitute connected transactions under Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND EEBRRN A2 F) D B HRR B 15 R
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING HAECHEGRXE

SHARES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 March 2024, so far as is known to the Directors or chief executives of HR-ZZT_PUF=ZA=+—H ' HEFH AL A
the Company, the following persons (other than a Director or chief executives ~ EZBITHRABAA ° M TA T (ESEHARFE
of the Company) had interests or short positions of 5% or more in the shares ~ Z4TERA BERIN AR R RIIAD R ABRER {7 o
and underlying shares of the Company which were recorded in the register of ~ 5%k A L ZHEHSAR - BEERIARE

substantial shareholders maintained under Section 336 of the SFO: ;.Eﬁ“ﬁ/‘*ﬁd)fz E5 M A EIRAEBGREFEL
FERFFLMA
Approximate
Number of Number of percentage of
ordinary Shares underlying Total total issued
Name of Shareholder held Shares held  Capacity interests share capital
HERT
Fris @R FrizHR 2301
BRke 2R e BRiZ®E =K Hae #Bwaskt
(Note 1)
(FizE1)
Li Shao Yu (*Ms. Li") (Note 2) 3,742,000,773 - Interest of controlled corporations 4353,285,115 58.97%
FOF(FLL)) (:E2) RPN AR
611,284,342 —  Beneficial owner
ERBEEA
Asia Link Capital Investment Holdings 3,357,218,773 — Beneficial owner 3,464,768,773 46.94%
Limited(“Asia Link") (Note 2) EREA
DRI E AR A R 2 8 (T 3Rk ) (B 107,550,000 ~ Interest of controlled corporations
i*2) SRt YNl Fid
Huang Shiying (Note 3) 800,000,000 —  Interest of controlled corporations 800,000,000 10.83%
A () SRt YNGIL Fid
Huang Tao (Note 3) 800,000,000 - Interest of controlled corporations 800,000,000 10.83%
iR SRVl Fd
Century Golden Resources Investment Co., 800,000,000 —  Beneficial owner 800,000,000 10.83%
Ltd. (“Century Golden”) (Note 3) BRBEBA

Century Golden Resources Investment Co.,
Ltd.(Century Golden ) (FftE3)

Haitong Securities Co., Limited (*HSCL") - 1,948,333,333  Security interest 1,948,333,338 26.39%
(Note 4) ERER

BREFRHARRA
(WLM%D(W?@
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Notes:

The percentage of shareholding is calculated on the basis of 7,381,776,805
Shares in issue as at 31 March 2024.

Ms. Li was beneficially interested in a total of 4,353,285,115 Shares, among
which, 611,284,342 Shares were held by Ms. Li as beneficial owner, and
3,742,000,773 Shares were held by (i) Asia Link as to 3,357,218,773 Shares,
(i) Team Success Venture Holdings Limited as to 230,900,000 Shares, (iii)
TRXY Development (HK) Limited as to 46,332,000 Shares, and (iv) Glory
Century Limited as to 107,550,000 Shares, all of which were beneficially
owned by Ms. Li.

Each of Mr. Huang Shiying and Mr. Huang Tao was deemed to be interested in
800,000,000 Shares held by Century Golden pursuant to the SFO by virtue of
his controlling interest in Century Golden.

HSCL, through Haitong International Holdings Limited, which is its directly
wholly-owned subsidiary, held 64.4% of the issued shares in Haitong
International Securities Group Limited, which in turn held 100% of the issued
shares in Haitong International Financial Products (Singapore) Pte. Ltd (“HIFP
Singapore”). HIFP Singapore held the security interest in those 1,948,333,333
Shares.

Other than disclosed above, as at 31 March 2024, the Company has not been
notified by any persons (other than Directors or chief executives of the Company)
who have interests or short positions in any shares or underlying shares of the
Company, which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions
of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register required to
be kept under Section 336 of the SFO.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole or
any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or existed
during the Year.

TAX RELIEF

The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation available to the
Shareholders by reason of their holding of the Shares.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is recommended by the
Remuneration Committee and determined by the Board on the basis of their
merit, qualifications and competence.

The emoluments of the Directors are recommended by the Remuneration
Committee and determined by the Board having regard to the Company’s
operating results, individual performance and comparable market standards.

The Company has adopted the Share Option Scheme and the Share Award
Scheme as incentives to the Directors and eligible employees.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the Year, the aggregate revenue and purchases attributable to the Group’s
five largest customers and suppliers were approximately 37.4% and 67.9% of the
Group’s total revenue and purchases respectively and the revenue and purchase
attributable to the Group’s largest customer and supplier were approximately
12.72% and 44.9% of the Group’s total revenue and purchases respectively.

At no time during the Year did a Director, an associate of a Director or a
shareholder of the Company (which to the knowledge of the Directors owns more
than 5% of the Company’s share capital) have an interest in any of the Group’s
five largest customers or suppliers.

DIRECTORS’ INDEMNITY

According to the Articles, the Directors for the time being of the Company
shall be indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets and profits of the
Company from and against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and
expenses which they or any of them, shall or may incur or sustain by reason of
any act done, concurred in or omitted in or about the execution of their duty in
their respective offices.

The Company has taken out appropriate insurance cover in respect of legal action
against the Directors during the Year.
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DONATIONS

During the Year, the Group made donations of HK$2,532,498 to charitable and
non-profit-making organisations.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and to the
best knowledge of the Directors, during the Year, at least 25% of the Company’s
issued Shares were held by the public as required under Rule 8.08 of the Listing
Rules.

AUDITORS

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the Year were audited by
Moore CPA Limited (“MOORE"), whose term of office will retire at the close of
the forthcoming annual general meeting. A resolution for the re-appointment
of MOORE as the auditor of the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming
annual general meeting.

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the years ended 31 March
2023 and 31 March 2022 were audited by ZHONGHUI ANDA CPA Limited.

0On behalf of the Board

Fok Chi Tak
Executive Director

Hong Kong, 26 June 2024
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
VR

K| MOORE

To the shareholders of Aceso Life Science Group Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Aceso Life Science
Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to
as the “Group”) set out on pages 78 to 227, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 March 2024, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated
statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of material accounting policy information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 March 2024, and of
its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(the “HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in compliance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
(“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards
are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of
most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon,
and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Moore CPA Limited g X
&
801-806 Silvercord, Tower 1, B -&:—
30 Canton Road, Tsimshatsui, =
Kowloon, Hong Kong % E
B
T +852 2375 3180 B
F +8522375 3828 p e
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www.moore.hk % 'EZ—E'
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

Key audit matter
WREHER

PR T EH S IR (1))

How our audit addressed the key audit matter
EMEd NIRRT ERETRE

Impairment assessment of interests in associates
REE LRI SR ET

We identified the impairment assessment of interests in associates as a key audit matter due
to the significance of the balance to the Group’s consolidated financial statements and the
involvement of estimation uncertainty and the significant assumptions and judgments.
HREHAERER BEEEGAMEREAMNSBEA - BRI THAN
REABRLAE  EERRBE AR ER IRETEEAEREN S
TH o

Interests in associates are carried in the consolidated statement of financial position at cost and
adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group's share of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income of the associates, less impairment in the carrying values of the interests. As such, the
Group is required to assess at the end of each reporting period whether there is any indication
that the carrying amount of interests in associates may be impaired. For those associates in
which such indication exists, the Group assessed the carrying amounts for impairment.
RS R A2 RN ERE MBI R NIRRT - WRERELRE - U
BR BEEEEEHEATBRRAMZERS  AERKAEERE
At - EREER SRS AR R AT KRBT E 17 i
ZEHEAEDRE - REEERT R BERA)  EEEGTERELE
HfE -

Management assessed whether there was any impairment of the carrying values of investments
in associates by calculating the recoverable amount. The impairment assessment requires
management to exercise significant management judgment and estimates, including among
other things, estimating the fair value of the assets owned by the associate.

BRERA E RS ETEREE AR RENREERSFEEAR
B o RETEEREREELENTRAE Rt Hh R HERR
BENMEENATE

As disclosed in Note 18 to the consolidated financial statements, the Group’s share of
impairment loss of HK$325 million has been recongised by the Group in arriving at the
carrying amount of the Group’s interests in an associate based on the impairment assessment.
FERE MBRRM T8 RE - REFAENE B3t ERERBELRA
R 2 REERDNEERSEEET -
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Our procedures in relation to the valuation of interests in associates included:
BFRREE AR B MENEF R -

Assessed the appropriateness of the management's accounting for the
Group’s interests in associates on equity method of accounting basis;
AEREEHARERME AR ER ST RENEE
f

Understood and evaluated the management's process for identifying the
existence of impairment indicators in respect of the Group’s interests in
associates;

BRI EERERARENEE DR BRRARE T
ERETREF

Where indicators of impairment have been identified, discussed with
management and valuer how the Group determined the recoverable
amounts, including the valuation methodologies selected and key inputs
adopted, for the associate’s underlying assets;
MEBANFEAENS - HEEERMLEMNHR B5E
MAEEHE A AIREEEN R NE S - REMENR
ERERFTRMEBRE AR

Assessed the competence, capabilities and objectivity of the valuer
performing the valuation on the underlying assets; and
AMEETIHEAEMENREMNES  H REEN
IS4

Evaluated the appropriateness of the valuation methodologies and the
reasonableness of the recoverable amounts of that associate, including
the key inputs and assumptions used, which the management used for
their estimation of recoverable amount of the associate.
AHEMEDENEE L RZME DRz AREeE AR
- BEERERARETZHE AR TKE S BNERE
ABRRAARE
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

Key audit matter
WREHER

PR B eS8 (1)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter
EMEd NIRRT ERETRE

Fair value measurement of investment property in the United Kingdom (“UK”)
RERBEMRCOFEME

We identified the fair value measurement of investment property in UK as a key audit matter
due to the significance of the halance to the Group’s consolidated financial statements and the
involvement of estimation uncertainty and the significant assumptions and judgments.
BRHAREREME AT EAERERENZE  RARLERY &
BirenBRimEBEN IH&&HJT%&&&EKF“&M%

The fair values of the Group’s investment properties were determined by adopting the valuation
techniques with significant unobservable inputs, assumptions of market conditions and
judgments on appropriate valuation techniques and inputs adopted. The Group also worked
closely with the independent qualified valuer, to establish and determine the appropriate
valuation techniques.

EEREMENATENRBARAAGEATABRRGABRNGER
m TMARSNEMRANEE HERMNEAZROEREE - &R
B EE A BROMEMRNSE  NRUNETEENGER -

As disclosed in Note 16 to the consolidated financial statements, the Group’s investment
property in UK as at 31 March 2024 amounted to HK$1,451 million (2023 HK$1,518 million).
BINGRE W MRMTI6PTHRE - ERER_Z-_ME=A=1T—HME
BRENENEEEISIBERT(CE_=F  1518R&AT) °

Qur procedures in relation to valuation of investment property in UK included:
FZMHEBEREDERENEFRE -

Reviewing the valuation report from independent qualified valuer and
holding discussion with management and the valuer to understand the
valuation basis, methodology used and underlying assumptions applied;
ERBUAERMEMOMBERS  TRERENGEM
il TRAERNGERE E&ﬂ%$?“'

Evaluating management's process in respect of reviewing the valuation
performed by independent qualified valuer;
AMEEREHBY A ERMEMETHENEERE

Evaluating the competence, capabilities and objectivity of the
independent qualified valuer;
B A BIAERMORE BN NEEY

Obtaining the underlying data including comparables of market

transactions being used by the independent qualified valuer and
assessing whether they are appropriate and reasonable; and

ﬁﬁéﬂ BEELAERGEMAERNTELR
X5 Wit EBEHRE G ERAE Kk

Performing market research and analysis to assess whether the change
in fair value of the investment property that resulted from the valuation
was reasonable and consistent with market trends to our knowledge
ETTIHARMA - HEEESBRENEAT f“
RARE  URREBREMAANTSEE—
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OTHER MATTER

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 March
2023 were audited by another auditor, who expressed an unmodified opinion on
those statements on 28 June 2023.

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises all the information in the Company’s annual report, but does not
include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.
The other information is expected to be made available to us after the date of this
auditor’s report.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other
information and we will not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information identified above when it becomes
available and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued
by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are responsible
for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis
of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. We
report our opinion solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgment
and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform
audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the

reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by
the directors.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B ZBERE
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Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Qur conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated
financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the
consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B ZBERE

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during
our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to
communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably
be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, actions taken to
eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in
our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Moore CPA Limited

Certified Public Accountants

Registered Public Interest Entity Auditors
Kong Shao Fung

Practicing Certificate Number: P07996

Hong Kong, 26 June 2024
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
HERSRAEMERRE

For the year ended 31 March 2024 HZE—Z—_NF=A=+—HILFE

2024 2023
ot <ol 1 - 3 —E-=F
Notes HK$’million HK$'million
M35 BEET BEATT
Revenue A 5 228 312
Cost of revenue NI %N (111) (171)
Gross profit EH 117 14
Other income HEHUA 6 49 49
Fair value (losses)/gains: AEEEER), s (292) (50)
— investment properties —REME (89) (19)
— financial assets at fair value through —AAFEFTE R EE LA
profit or loss (“FVTPL”) ABH (AR E=E
BHEZ(FABREDZ
CHMEE (242) (82)
— financial liabilities at FVTPL — AT EFTE B & LA
ABZZemas 39 51
Other (losses)/gains, net Hib(E518), W5 F58 7 (33) 63
Administrative expenses TERAX (124) (123)
(Impairment losses)/reversal of impairment losses: CRU{EETE) R (& E5iE & @ (74) 48
—intangible assets — B EE - 13
— financial assets (expected credit losses) —cMEEFEHEEER) (74) 35
Share-based payment expenses AR KA - 3)
Share of results of associates DIEEE R RIEE (325) (131)
Share of results of joint ventures DMEEEDEEE - (78)
Finance costs A A 8 (141) (129)
Loss hefore taxation FRIRBIES IR 9 (823) (213)
Income tax credit FrigfiE e 11 14 5
Loss for the year FAER (809) (208)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
HREeBEm Rk HMEEKER

For the year ended 31 March 2024 HZE—Z—_NF=A=+—HILtFE

2024 2023
ot <ol 1 - 3 —E-=F
Notes HK$’million HK$'million
BaE BEET BEET
Other comprehensive (expenses)/income Hfth 2 mE BEE), UL » BRI
after tax: % :
ltems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss: T8 EBF FAEE 8z 2 HH -
Fair value loss on investments in equity WA EFEAHEEETA
instruments at fair value through other EfemEes((AAFE
comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”) FrEA HBE AEME
HEz]) 2w TARRE
2 N HEEBE (354) (127)
ltems that may be reclassified to profit or loss: ~ AJGEEFT 7 E B 2 HE -
Share of associates’ exchange differences on DRI E N RIIREGINETS
translating foreign operation EECZERERE (4) 3
Exchange differences on translating foreign BEGINEREE Y
operations EH ZE5E (15) (70)
Other comprehensive expenses for the year, FRHEMEERS - Rz
net of tax (373) (194)
Total comprehensive expenses for the year £ A2 EBATHE#E (1,182) (402)
(Loss)/profit for the year attributable to: ~ FE{LEE R (B518), BF :
Owners of the Company RAElE=RFEA (462) (264)
Non-controlling interests eI 2 (347) 96
(809) (208)
Total comprehensive (expenses)/income FE{EER2E B 2@
for the year attributable to: 8]
Owners of the Company RARESZEEA (724) (438)
Non-controlling interests FEPERR A A (458) 36
(1,182) (402)
Loss per share W|IEER 12
Basic (HK cents per share) AR (BN (6.35) (3.61)
Diluted (HK cents per share) BE (BB (6.35) (3.61)

T/ NFEFE EHESRBREEFERAT 79



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

RaMERRERE

Asat31March2024 R—-_Z—pE=HA=+—H

2024 2023
ot~ o 1) - —E-=F
Notes HK$’million HK$'million
BisE BEEET BEET
Non-current assets JERBNEE
Property, plant and equipment Wz - B NERE 143 216 235
Right-of-use assets FREEE 15 18 27
Artworks iy i 14b 19 19
Investment properties wEYSE 16 1,458 1518
Intangible assets mH A E 17 171 171
Interests in associates kNGl 18 798 1,130
Interests in joint ventures REEPE R 19 - 2
Financial assets at FVTOCI AT EFEAEHEZETA
HivzHliems SREE 20 447 801
Properties for development BRPYE 23 326 352
Other financial assets EtemEE 1 -
Corporate note receivables FEUR (b RIR 22 - 42
Deferred tax assets BIERIBEE 33 58 54
Other receivables and deposits HEip W sIE kAT 2 25 9 5
Total non-current assets JEREREMRE 3,521 4,356
Current assets REEE
Inventories FE 2 2
Trade receivables B 5 EWEIE 24 208 115
Other receivables, deposits and prepayments HAEURIE - 5T e RFER
IE 25 18 30
Financial assets at FVTPL AT EEEHEZ(ETA
Bz emEE 26 119 415
Loan receivables FEWE R 21 47 145
Finance lease receivables B E A E R YGRIE 1 2
Corporate note receivables FEWERE 22 501 465
Pledged bank deposits SIEMRITIER 27 15 30
Trusted and segregated bank accounts S MBI RITERP 27 4 554
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBEEFEEYD 27 350 187
Total current assets mENEEEE 1,265 1,945
Total assets HE#E 4,786 6,301
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
wRE PR R

Asat31 March2024 M-ZT-_WE=A=+—H

2024 2023
ot~ o 1) - —E-=F
Notes HK$’million HK$'million
BIsE BEEET BEAT
Current liabilities RBAE
Lease liabilities HEAE 28 10 14
Bank and other borrowings RITREMBEER 29 1,633 1,702
Corporate note payables e ERIE 30 420 435
Trade payables B SN RIR 31 6 13
Other payables, deposits received and accruals — EL b B~ FKIH
BURET & R IERTFRIE 32 129 666
Income tax payables FERTFTSHL 16 25
Total current liabilities mEREEE 2,214 2,855
Net current liabilities Bid IN-Rgd ] (949) (910)
Total assets less current liabilities SEHERETHAR 2,572 3,446
Non-current liabilities ERBAE
Lease liabilities HEAE 28 9 15
Deferred tax liabilities EETIEAE 33 84 100
Bank and other borrowings RITREMBEER 29 27 4
Corporate note payables R ERE 30 100 137
Financial liabilities at FVTPL AT EEEHEZETA
Bazemas 34 539 578
Total non-current liabilities FRBARER 759 871
NET ASSETS HERE 1,813 2575
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
REMBRRER

Asat31 March2024 M-ZT-_MWE=A=+—H

2024 2023
ot~ o 1) - —E-=F
Notes HK$’million HK$'million
BisE BEEET BEET

EQUITY #E
Share capital &N 35 73 73
Reserves B 848 1,476
921 1,549
Non-controlling interests eI 2 892 1,026
TOTAL EQUITY WA 1,813 2575

The consolidated financial statements on pages 78 to 227 were approved and FIRENTBE e BEHmEREHESTeN -
authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 26 June 2024 and are signed ZHHENSNAZHSNEBERAETIE - AT

on its behalf by: EEREREEZo
Fok Chi Tak Chan Ming Sun Jonathan
ExfE PRER S
Director Director
EE EE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FENRERE

For the year ended 31 March 2024 HZE—Z—_NF=A=+—HILtFE

Atibutabl to owners of the Company

BURNHARG
Share-hased
Share Share  Treasuy  payment Other —~ FVTOC  Translation ~ Accumulated Non-conbollng —~~ Tolal
oaptal  pemim  shaes resene resewe  reseme resene logses Tl inlersls  equily
HATER
BRg(
A2
DS [ilit:¥4

Bk BRRR RERR AREE  RUER B HEBR  RHER B GHREQ  HOME
s HKS'million ~ HKSmillon ~ WKSmillon  HKSmillon  HKSmilion  HKSmillion  HKSmillon  HKSmillon  HKSmilion  HKSmilion  HKSmillion
i EEET  EEMT  EEET  EEMT  EEMT  EEET  EEMT EEMT  EEET  EEET EEMR

A3 March 2022 and 1 April 2022 Ko8ZZEZAZH-AR

ZE_TERR-A [ 41 ] 3 ] (184 $ ) 2 i W
Loss oty EfgE - - - - - - - ] ) % )
O comprehenshe (expenses) inomelor - EAE TR
e year
Firdelssoninesenisequy — WATEHEAERHAALS
st a VTOCH RANEZBRTARE A
ThEE = = = = = (1Y = - (1t ) )
St ofessoiss oonngecifnss o HRBELFAERNERES
Hansating foregn ogreion (EREE - - - - - - i - 1 2 3
Echargedifoencesntnsing iy 2580 SREE/ERZR
Opeeon - - - - - - ) - ) ) )
Tod compretensie e fr e e EMRERLGE - - - - - (i i} il 9 ¥ ()

Transactons withequty hldes HERREARS:

Conlionof s Rl i) i} - f - - - - - - - -
Renurhassof s Bk i - - ¢l - - - - - 0 - l
I staeavcs isdbyasisday  —FENBRAEAZEERR

i) 33 0] = 3 3

Dpsddfassidayibothssmool~— £E-FHEAARTEREY
kil i) = ) ] 1R 1%
0 ] ) () 18 10
A 31 Merch 2003 R-8-=#=3=1-A K 461t ) B! (3 ) ] (2% 154 10 25
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

REERBER

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #HZ=—=

THE=ZA=+—RHIFE

Atibutabl to owners of the Company

BURNEARGE
Share-based
Share S Treasy  paymedt  Oher  FVIOCI  Tranclation  Accumulated Non-contollng ~~ Total
ol premim chaes  rsene  vsene reseneresene losses  Toll  imests equiy
HATER
BRRg(
itARH2
DLE%S fikge
B BRER GHRG ABGR RAGR 0 R MRGR  RMER & FNRNE  REED
loes  HSmilion ~ HKS'willon  HKSmiion ~ WKSmillion  HKS'millon  HKSmilion HKSmillon  HKSmilion  HKSmillon  HKSmillion  HKSmillon
Ui EEET  BEET  BEMT  BEET  BEMT AEET EENT  EEET MR EEET  EEER
At 31 March 2023 and 1 April 2023 \ZBZZEZRZT-AR
Z8ZZEmA-A 1 4511 (1) 3 (58) (299) () (%) 159 1,026 25T
Lsfor ey EfER - - - - - - ) () M [
e competersvegenis o ey EREMAERR
Firvs s o esnens equiy nsumensd A FER 8RR\ R A
I PEkE ERTARED
ThgE () () (80) (364)
St of st exchnge s o sy BB R ATAZ B SRR
forin opeion (EREE i) i) 0) 1]
Echng e on i oein g B8 &kt 0B 28 (1) (M) B W
Totd comprernse ienesfor e e ERRERYEE () M @ M ) (L
Transactons with equity holders HEgRRARE:
Disosd ofaubsiday Wit ool E—HBDAALEREY
AR 4 ity ffy il ]
31 Merch 2004 R-E-mE=R=1-A 1 41 () ] ft (372) (3 (3.409) o 02 1413
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

ﬁ = iﬂﬁlﬂl’;

For the year ended 31 March 2024 HZE_—Z—NF=A=+—HILFE

2024 2023
—E=_MmF —E-=F
HK$’million HK$'million
BEET BEAT
Cash flows from operating activities BEXEMBRERE
Loss before taxation BRELATES 1B (823) (213)
Adjustments for; AT S EELFAE
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ME - BB RS ETE 37 40
Depreciation of right-of-use assets ﬁﬁﬁ BEENE 13 12
Fair value losses/(gains): NEEEE (W)
— investment properties —&5%% 89 19
—financial assets at FVTPL AN EFERHEZLETA
?E s S RBE 242 82
—financial liabilities at FVTPL -URAFEAEBEE LA
BazemasE (39) (51)
Finance costs BhE KA 1M 129
Interest earned on corporate note receivables JRE s £ 2 22 R R EN I B (27) (28)
Interest earned on bank deposits IRITIF SR ERERF B (8) )
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment MEYE « BB MG 2 W - (6)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—HBAR 2 - 0
Gain on disposal of associates HERE R E 2 W - ™
Gain on early settlement of corporate note payables IRRIEEEMNPEE s K — (54)
Provision for (reversal of) impairment losses: BEEEREED)
— intangible assets —EBRAE = (13)
— financial assets (expected credit 10ss) —i‘mﬁéﬁ? (FREREEE1E) 74 35)
Provision for liabilities arising from financial assets at NHEFTEREB(L A ABE
FVTPL Z@Eﬁﬁ%;ﬁ%iﬁ’]ﬁﬁ%ﬁ 27 -
Share-based payment expenses AR R - 3
Share of results of associates DIGEEE AR EE 325 131
DMEBEDEEE - 78

Share of results of joint ventures
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

“‘I_\éiﬁlﬁiﬁliﬁ

For the year ended 31 March 2024 HZE—Z—_NF=A=+—HILFE

2024 2023
—ZE_mEF —T=F
HK$’million HK$'million
BEET BEAT
Operating profit before working capital and other changes  ‘&i& & & K F b & ) B 48 & i 7l 51 90
Working capital and other changes LiBEEe REMES
Finance lease receivables BEHEEKEIE 1 4
Financial assets at FVTPL AT EFE2REEZEETA
BRcemEE 29 24
Inventories rE 2 19
Additions of assets held for rental and FEHREW R EREHEDN
subsequently held for sale BENE (25) (23)
Loans receivables FEWE R 14 67
Other payables, deposits received, accruals and Hih IR - BEWETS -
contract liabilities EEERARENEE (14) (14)
Other receivables, deposits and prepayments HAaEWRogE - 5] RFER
HIE 15 3)
Trade receivables B 5 W IR (93) 43
Trade payables B SN B (7) 7
Cash (used in)/generated from operations e (TR, FrsEe (27) 214
Income tax paid EAFEE (10) -
Net cash (used in)/generated from operating BEEBFA), FREALSHE
activities (37) 214
Cash flows from investing activities BRETHREELRE
Consideration paid for acquisition of a corporate note WHEREKEEZRR 2 ENRE
receivable (370) (396)
Acquisition of financial assets at FVTOCI WHELAAHESTE B REZ (LG A
Hih2EWm REE - (112)
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEWE - BEKEE (2) (24)
Deposit paid for purchase of property, BEWE  BEIEEZ
plant and equipment BEffEE (9) -
Placement in pledged bank deposits FHEEMIRITER - )
Repayment of corporate note receivables BERWTEEEAMSHIR 403 392
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment & ¥ « B M REATS A - 8
Proceeds from disposal of associates SR R A TS sIE 3 16
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets at FVTPL HENRAFEFFERHEEA
BRz eREEMSRE 25 10
Proceeds from disposal of joint ventures HEEEPFEMERIA 2 =
Interest received 2HFE 8 2
Proceeds from disposal of a subsidiary & —ERB A RS HIA - 1
Withdrawal of pledged deposits TR E IR 15 =
Net cash from/(used in) investing activities RETBFRE (FEREBHE 75 (112)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

n'l_\éiﬁlﬁﬁ.;%%

For the year ended 31 March 2024 HZE_—Z—NF=A=+—HILFE

2024 2023
—E=_MmF —E-=F
HK$’million HK$'million
BEET BEET

Cash flows from financing activities MEEBRERERE
Repayment of bank and other borrowings EERERITREMEE (787) (506)
Interest paid BRFLE (142) (113)
Repayment of corporate note payables EEREMNEZE (52) (73)
Advance from/(repayment of) a loan 2R Q / BB —LZHMBRARESY

from a director of a subsidiary =/ (H 3‘” 1 (20)
Lease liabilities paid Eﬁ?ﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁ (16) (14)
Repurchase of shares HEEIRR D - 9
Proceeds from bank and other borrowings RIT R EMEEEHRIA 693 381
Proceeds from disposal of interests in subsidiaries without %55 M /& A &)k ﬁﬁ]ﬁﬂf%i%

loss of control HlEPTISRIE 420 156
Proceeds from issue of corporate note payables BITERE ﬁﬁ?%%”\ - 100
Net cash generated from/(used in) financing BB EBFRE (B REBHE

activities 117 (98)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents ReRREEFEMEmM 155 4
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year REVz2BeRESEEY 187 195
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net INESTE R BB FRE . B 8 (12)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year RERZEERASEEY 350 187
Analysis of cash and cash equivalents BeRBEF/MZAR
Bank and cash balances RITRIR B MR 350 187
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
8 MR

For the year ended 31 March 2024 HZE—Z—_NF=A=+—HILFE

1.

88

GENERAL INFORMATION

Aceso Life Science Group Limited (the “Company” together with its
subsidiaries, the “Group”) is an exempted limited liability company
incorporated in the Cayman Islands. In the opinion of the directors of the
Company, the immediate and ultimate holding company of the Company
is Asia Link Capital Investment Holdings Limited, which is incorporated in
the British Virgin Islands (“BVI”), and the ultimate controlling shareholder
of the Company is Ms. Li Shao Yu. The address of its registered office is
Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.0. Box 2681, Grand Cayman, KY-1111,
Cayman Islands. The principal place of business in Hong Kong is Rooms
2501-2509, 25/F, Shui On Centre, 6-8 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong
Kong. The ordinary shares of the Company are listed on the Main Board of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The Company is an investment holding company and the principal
activities of the Group include: (i) securities investment; (ii) provision of
securities brokerage and financial services; (iii) asset management; (iv)
rental and trading of construction machinery; (v) provision of repair and
maintenance and transportation service; (vi) property development; (vii)
property leasing; and (viii) money lending.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
Dollars (“HK$"), which is also the functional currency of the Company and
rounded to the nearest million (“million”), unless otherwise stated.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
eI RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2024 HZE—Z—_NF=A=+—HILtFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“OHK[F:RSS”) AND CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING
POLICY

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) for the first time, which are mandatorily
effective for the Group’s annual period beginning on 1 April 2023 for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements:

Amendments to HKAS 8
BB ERIELE (IBF]AN)
Amendments to HKAS 12

BB B ERIFE125R(ERTA)

Amendments to HKAS 12
ARG ERE125R(EFTA)
Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKFRS Practice Statement 2
BEASHENE IR RE BB MELRNEBREF2RUSETA)
HKFRS 17 (including the October 2020 and

February 2022 Amendments to HKFRS 17)
ARV EENFITRER_E_EFT+AR=ZZ =

Z AZ BB BRERERNEATHR(EFTA))

Except as described below, the application of the new and amendments
to HKFRSs in the current year has had no material impact on the Group’s
financial positions and performance for the current and prior years and/or
on the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial statements.

2.

R REEETEEBMGHE
BRI ([ FRAMBHSEER ) RE
BUREE

REFERFENZHETERMBHE
ERRREETE

RAFE - AEB D RNREMR A MEHREK
REXRATIaEFBEAMAG(FE
SETE NG )R A B BN MELE
AIREERTAR - ZEMATEREEITAR
R-ZE-_=—FNA—-AfaNFENFER
B -

Definition of Accounting Estimates

BiHhET 2 EE

Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising
from a Single Transaction

HE-—QHEFEERBRERZIEL
IR

International Tax Reform-Pillar Two Model Rules

BIRTISoRE — 8 AR AR Al

Disclosure of Accounting Policies

FEERCHKE

Insurance Contracts

REBREH
BTSN - RANFE BRI &R

BEERNEETAHEREERANEE K
BEFENTHERRRRAL, X% EH
EMBBRRAB BB BEATE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBERRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2024 HZE—Z—_NF=A=+—HILFE

2.

90

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) AND CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING
POLICY (CONTINUED)

Impacts on application of Amendments to HKAS 1 and
HKFRS Practice Statement 2 Disclosure of Accounting
Policies

The Group has applied the amendments for the first time in the current
year. HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements is amended to replace
all instances of the term “significant accounting policies” with “material
accounting policy information”. Accounting policy information is material
if, when considered together with other information included in an entity’s
financial statements, it can reasonably be expected to influence decisions
that the primary users of general purpose financial statements make on the
basis of those financial statements.

The amendments also clarify that accounting policy information may be
material because of the nature of the related transactions, other events
or conditions, even if the amounts are immaterial. However, not all
accounting policy information relating to material transactions, other
gvents or conditions is itself material. If an entity chooses to disclose
immaterial accounting policy information, such information must not
obscure material accounting policy information.

HKFRS Practice Statement 2 Making Materiality Juaggments (the “Practice
Statement”) is also amended to illustrate how an entity applies the “four-
step materiality process” to accounting policy disclosures and to judge
whether information about an accounting policy is material to its financial
statements. Guidance and examples are added to the Practice Statement.

The application of the amendments in current year has had no material
impact on the Group’s financial positions and performance but has
affected the disclosure of the Group’s accounting policies set out in Note 3
to the consolidated financial statements.

In accordance with the guidance set out in the amendments, accounting
policy information that is standardised information, or information that
only duplicates or summarises the requirements of the HKFRSs, is
considered immaterial accounting policy information and is no longer
disclosed in the notes to the consolidated financial statements so as not to
obscure the material accounting policy information disclosed in the notes
to the consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

eI RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2024 HZE—Z—_NF=A=+—HILtFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) AND CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING
POLICY (CONTINUED)

Changes in accounting policy as a result of application of
the HKICPA guidance on the accounting implications of the
abolition of the Mandatory Provident Fund (“MPF”) - Long
Service Payment (“LSP”) offsetting mechanism in Hong
Kong

The Group has several subsidiaries operating in Hong Kong which are
obliged to pay LSP to employees under certain circumstances. Meanwhile,
the Group makes mandatory MPF contributions to the trustee who
administers the assets held in a trust solely for the retirement benefits
of each individual employee. Offsetting of LSP against an employeg’s
accrued retirement benefits derived from employers” MPF contributions
was allowed under the Employment Ordinance (Chapter 57 of the Laws
of Hong Kong). In June 2022, the Government of the HKSAR gazetted the
Employment and Retirement Schemes Legislation (Offsetting Arrangement)
(Amendment) Ordinance 2022 (the “Amendment Ordinance”) which
abolishes the use of the accrued benefits derived from employers’
mandatory MPF contributions to offset severance payment and LSP (the
“Abolition”). The Abolition will officially take effect on 1 May 2025 (the
“Transition Date”). In addition, under the Amendment Ordinance, the last
month’s salary immediately preceding the Transition Date (instead of the
date of termination of employment) is used to calculate the portion of LSP
in respect of the employment period before the Transition Date.

In July 2023, the HKICPA published “Accounting implications of the
abolition of the MPF-LSP offsetting mechanism in Hong Kong” which
provides guidance for the accounting for the offsetting mechanism
and the impact arising from abolition of the MPF-LSP offsetting
mechanism in Hong Kong. In light of this, the Group has implemented
the guidance published by the HKICPA in connection with the LSP
obligation retrospectively so as to provide more reliable and more
relevant information about the effects of the offsetting mechanism and the
Abolition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBERRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2024 HZE—Z—_NF=A=+—HILFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO 2. ERHIIREEIEEMBEE

92

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) AND CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING
POLICY (CONTINUED)

Changes in accounting policy as a result of application of
the HKICPA guidance on the accounting implications of the
abolition of the Mandatory Provident Fund (“MPF”) - Long
Service Payment (“LSP”) offsetting mechanism in Hong
Kong (Continued)

The Group considered the accrued benefits arising from employer MPF
contributions that have been vested with the employee and which could
be used to offset the employee’s LSP benefits as a deemed contribution by
the employee towards the LSP. Historically, the Group has been applying
the practical expedient in paragraph 93(b) of HKAS 19 to account for the
deemed employee contributions as a reduction of the service cost in the
period in which the related service is rendered.

Based on the HKICPA’s guidance, as a result of the Abolition, these
contributions are no longer considered “linked solely to the employee’s
service in that period” since the mandatory employer MPF contributions
after the Transition Date can still be used to offset the pre-transition LSP
obligation. Therefore, it would not be appropriate to view the contributions
as “independent of the number of years of service” and the practical
expedient in paragraph 93(b) of HKAS 19 is no longer applicable. Instead,
these deemed contributions should be attributed to periods of service in
the same manner as the gross LSP benefit applying paragraph 93(a) of
HKAS 19. Accordingly, the Group has recognised a cumulative catch-
up adjustment in profit or loss for the service cost, interest expense and
remeasurement effect from changes in actuarial assumptions for the
year ended 31 March 2024, with corresponding adjustment to the LSP
obligation. The cumulative catch-up adjustment is calculated as the
difference at the enactment date (16 June 2022) between the carrying
amount of the LSP liability calculated under paragraph 93(b) of HKAS 19
before the Abolition and the carrying amount of the LSP liability calculated
under paragraph 93(a) of HKAS 19 after the Abolition.

This change in accounting policy did not have any impact on the opening
balance of equity at 1 April 2023, and the cash flows amounts for the
year ended 31 March 2024. The application of amendments to HKFRS
does not have any significant impact on the Group’s financial positions
and performance and/or on the disclosures set out in these consolidated
financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

eI RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2024 HZE—Z—_NF=A=+—HILtFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) AND CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING
POLICY (CONTINUED)

Amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following amendments to HKFRSs
that have been issued but are not yet effective:

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28
ARV BREERFI0R R B BT ERFE 285 (1BETA)

Amendments to HKFRS 16
BB BmEERFEI65R(SFTA)
Amendments to HKAS 1

BB EFERIFE1R(EETA)

Amendments to HKAS 1

ARG ERE15(EE]A)

Amendments to HKAS 7 and HKFRS 7
BEAGTEAETRREBV B RELRNETR(SETA)
Amendments to HKAS 21

ARG ERE21R (ST A)

i Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be

determined.
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024.
d Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2025.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application of all
amendments to HKFRSs will have no material impact on the consolidated
financial statements in the foreseeable future.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBERRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2024 HZE—Z—_NF=A=+—HILFE

3.

94

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

3.1 Basis of preparation of consolidated financial

statements

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. For the purpose
of preparation of the consolidated financial statements, information
is considered material if such information is reasonably expected
to influence decisions made by primary users. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Listing Rules and by the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis, except for investment properties and certain
financial instruments that are measured at fair values at the end
of each reporting period, as explained in the material accounting
policy information set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that
price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits
by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to
another market participant that would use the asset in its highest
and best use.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
eI RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2024 HZE_—Z—NF=A=+—HILFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

3.2 Material accounting policy information
Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the Company
and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the Company:

e has power over the investee;

e s exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

e has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.
Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at cost
less accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated
to each of the Group’s cash-generating units (or group of cash-
generating units) that is expected to benefit from the synergies
of the combination, which represent the lowest level at which the
goodwill is monitored for internal management purposes and not
larger than an operating segment.

A cash-generating unit (or group of cash-generating units) to
which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
annually or more frequently when there is indication that the unit
may be impaired. If the recoverable amount is less than its carrying
amount, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill and then to the other assets on a pro-rata
basis based on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit (or
group of cash-generating units).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRI

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #EHZE_—ZFT_NF=-A=+—HILtFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3. RERSUBRECEEREX
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL BETBURE HE (1)
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)
3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued) 3.2 EXEMBEZIHEGE
Interests in subsidiaries RBATZHER

Interests in subsidiaries are stated at cost less any accumulated
impairment loss.

Investments in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in the
financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but is not
control or joint control over those policies.

A'joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that have
joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net assets of the
joint arrangement. Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing
of control of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions
about the relevant activities require unanimous consent of the
parties sharing control.
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The results and assets and liabilities of associates and joint
ventures are incorporated in these consolidated financial statements
using the equity method of accounting. The financial statements of
associates and joint ventures used for equity accounting purposes
are prepared using uniform accounting policies as those of the
Group for like transactions and events in similar circumstances.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
eI RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2024 HZE—Z—_NF=A=+—HILtFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)
Investments in associates and joint ventures (Continued)

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is accounted
for using the equity method from the date on which the investee
becomes an associate or a joint venture. On acquisition of the
investment in an associate or a joint venture, any excess of the cost
of the investment over the Group’s share of the net fair value of
the identifiable assets and liabilities of the investee is recognised
as goodwill, which is included within the carrying amount of the
investment. Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of
the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of the investment,
after reassessment, is recognised immediately in profit or loss in

the period in which the investment is acquired.

The Group assesses whether there is an objective evidence that
the interest in an associate or a joint venture may be impaired.
When any objective evidence exists, the entire carrying amount
of the investment (including goodwill) is tested for impairment
in accordance with HKAS 36 as a single asset by comparing its
recoverable amount (higher of value in use and fair value less
costs of disposal) with its carrying amount. Any impairment loss
recognised is not allocated to any asset, including goodwill, that
forms part of the carrying amount of the investment. Any reversal
of that impairment loss is recognised in accordance with HKAS
36 to the extent that the recoverable amount of the investment

subsequently increases.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRI

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #EHZE_—ZFT_NF=-A=+—HILtFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3. RERSUBRECEEREX
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL BETBURE HE (1)
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)
3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued) 3.2 EXEMBEZIHEGE
Revenue from contracts with customers REEREHHKE

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied, i.e., when “control” of the goods or services
underlying the particular performance obligation is transferred to
the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or a bundle
of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of distinct goods or
services that are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised over
time by reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction of
the relevant performance obligation if one of the following criteria is
met:

e the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the Group’s performance as the Group
performs;

e the Group’s performance creates or enhances an asset that
the customer controls as the Group performs; or

e the Group’s performance does not create an asset with
an alternative use to the Group and the Group has an
enforceable right to payment for performance completed to
date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the
customer obtains control of the distinct good or service.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
eI RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2024 HZE_—Z—NF=A=+—HILFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

3. REGESMBHRZEEREX
B BREHE )

3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

Over time revenue recognition: measurement of
progress towards complete satisfaction of a performance
obligation

Output method

The progress towards complete satisfaction of a performance
obligation is measured based on output method, which is to
recognise revenue on the basis of direct measurements of the value
of the goods or services transferred to the customer to date relative
to the remaining goods or services promised under the contract,
that best depict the Group’s performance in transferring control of
goods or services.

As a practical expedient, if the Group has a right to consideration in
an amount that corresponds directly with the value of the Group’s
performance completed to date, the Group recognises revenue in
the amount to which the Group has the right to invoice.

Leases
The Group as a lessee
Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption
to leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the
commencement date and do not contain a purchase option. It also
applies the recognition exemption for lease of low-value assets
(such as tablets and personal computers, small items of office
furniture and telephones). Lease payments on short-term leases
and leases of low-value assets are recognised as expense on a
straight-line basis or another systematic basis over the lease term.

3.2 EXEHBREHG

REER SRS (W)

BRMERNE ERAERH®R
HEENE

EM%E

EEMERBNEBERIERED
FETE  BERES BItREFE
BHE @ RB ARG N T AR
ZHEGERIRBHEEEER
- UERKE  bEERBRAS
B 72 58 7% 7 o ok AR 7S 12 ) U5 TE A
BHEETRIZE -

ER—RAIfTEE L MAKE
BRENEREBEZSETKNELD
EHNEEERYENSRWENR
B AIAKBUAREEEEMRE
SRR BRI

HA
LB /AT
REHERKEEEERE

AEBEHHEHA MG AHERFRD
TZEAIKURTETSBEEER
MEEREMEHHERAH R - &
ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁé?%@ﬁﬁw & A
Bl PMMBARE ERF)NHE
Eﬁ%ﬁmmﬁ REEE MEE
BEEEHENEENRNEHRARE
RERER S - RGELERRRF
F o

T/ NFEFE EHRESRREEFERAT 99



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRI

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #EHZE_—ZFT_NF=-A=+—HILtFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)
Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any
remeasurement of lease liabilities.

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably certain to
obtain ownership of the underlying leased assets at the end of the
lease term are depreciated from commencement date to the end of
the useful life. Otherwise, right-of-use assets are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the shorter of its estimated useful life and
the lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets that do not meet the
definition of investment property as a separate line item on the
consolidated statement of financial position.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group recognises and
measures the lease liability at the present value of lease payments
that are unpaid at that date. In calculating the present value of lease
payments, the Group uses the incremental borrowing rate at the
lease commencement date if the interest rate implicit in the lease is
not readily determinable.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are adjusted by
interest accretion and lease payments.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate line item on the
consolidated statement of financial position.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
eI RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2024 HZE—Z—_NF=A=+—HILtFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)
Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessor
Classification and measurement of leases

Leases for which the Group is a lessor are classified as finance
or operating leases. Whenever the terms of the lease transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an
underlying asset to the lessee, the contract is classified as a finance
lease. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or loss
on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Initial
direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating
lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset, and
such costs are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis
over the lease term except for investment properties measured
under fair value model.

Interest and rental income which are derived from the Group’s
ordinary course of business are presented as revenue.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRI

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #EHZE_—ZFT_NF=-A=+—HILtFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3. RERSUBRECEEREX
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL BETBURE HE (1)
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)
3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued) 3.2 EXEMBEZIHEGE

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional currency
of that entity (foreign currencies) are recognised at the rates of
exchanges prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At the end
of the reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-
monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date
when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items,
and on the retranslation of monetary items, are recognised in profit
or loss in the period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s operations are
translated into the presentation currency of the Group (i.e. HK$)
using exchange rates prevailing at the end of each reporting period.
Income and expenses items are translated at the average exchange
rates for the period, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly
during that period, in which case the exchange rates at the date
of transactions are used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in
equity under the heading of translation reserve (attributed to non-
controlling interests as appropriate).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
eI RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2024 HZE—Z—_NF=A=+—HILtFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)

3. REGESMBHRZEEREX
B BREHE )

3.2 EXEHBREHG

Taxation

Income tax credit represents the sum of current and deferred
income tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from (loss)/profit before tax because of
income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and
items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for
current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets
are generally recognised for all deductible temporary differences
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available
against which those deductible temporary differences can be
utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised
if the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting
profit and at the time of the transaction does not give rise to equal
taxable and deductible temporary differences. In addition, deferred
tax liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises
from the initial recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associates, and interests in joint ventures, except where the Group
is able to control the reversal of the temporary difference and it
is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible
temporary differences associated with such investments and
interests are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that
there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the
benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected to
reverse in the foreseeable future.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRI

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #EHZE_—ZFT_NF=-A=+—HILtFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3. RERSUBRECEEREX
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL BETBURE HE (1)
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued) 3.2 EXEMBEZIHEGE

Taxation (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all
or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or
the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the
tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the
Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or
settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing transactions
in which the Group recognises the right-of-use assets and the
related lease liabilities, the Group first determines whether the tax
deductions are attributable to the right-of-use assets or the lease
liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are attributable
to the lease liabilities, the Group applies HKAS 12 requirements
to the lease liabilities and the related assets separately. The Group
recognises a deferred tax asset related to lease liabilities to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against
which the deductible temporary difference can be utilised and a
deferred tax liability for all taxable temporary differences.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied to the same
taxable entity by the same taxation authority.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
eI RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2024 HZE_—Z—NF=A=+—HILFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively. Where
current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial accounting for a
business combination, the tax effect is included in the accounting
for the business combination.

Borrowing costs

All borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they are incurred.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if
any.

When the Group makes payments for ownership interests of
properties which includes both leasehold land and building
elements, the entire consideration is allocated between the
leasehold land and the building elements in proportion to the
relative fair values at initial recognition. To the extent the allocation
of the relevant payments can be made reliably, interest in leasehold
land is presented as “right-of-use assets” in the consolidated
statement of financial position except for those that are classified
and accounted for as investment properties under the fair value
model. When the consideration cannot be allocated reliably
between non-lease building element and undivided interest in the
underlying leasehold land, the entire properties are classified as
property, plant and equipment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRI

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #EHZE_—ZFT_NF=-A=+—HILtFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3. REGEMBRERCEEREX
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ErtRREE )
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)
Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

If a property becomes an investment property because its use has
changed as evidenced by end of owner-occupation, any difference
between the carrying amount and the fair value of that item
(including the relevant leasehold land classified as right-of-use
assets) at the date of transfer is recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in revaluation reserve. On the subsequent
sale or retirement of the property, the relevant revaluation reserve
will be transferred directly to retained profits.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets less
their residual values over their estimated useful lives, using the
straight-line method. The estimated useful lives, residual values
and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on
a prospective basis.

Artworks

Artworks are stated at cost less accumulated impairment l0ss.

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or for
capital appreciation.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including any
directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment properties are measured at fair value, adjusted to
exclude any prepaid or accrued operating lease income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
eI RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2024 HZE—Z—_NF=A=+—HILtFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)

Investment properties (Continued)

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of investment
properties are included in profit or loss for the period in which they

arise.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives (including brand
name, customer list and securities brokerage licenses) acquired in
a business combination are recognised separately from goodwill
and are initially recognised at their fair value at the acquisition date
(which is regarded as their cost) and are carried at cost less any

subsequent accumulated impairment losses.

Impairment on property, plant and equipment, right-of-
use assets and, intangible assets other than goodwill and

properties for development

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets
and properties for development to determine whether there is any
indication that these assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any
such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the relevant asset
is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss
(if any). Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for
impairment at least annually, and whenever there is an indication

that they may be impaired.

The recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment, right-
of-use assets and properties for development are estimated
individually. When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable
amount individually, the Group estimates the recoverable amount

of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRI

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #EHZE_—ZFT_NF=-A=+—HILtFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)

Impairment on property, plant and equipment, right-of-
use assets, intangible assets other than goodwill and
properties for development (Continued)

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-
tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the asset (or a cash-
generating unit) for which the estimates of future cash flows have
not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount
of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable
amount.

Properties for development

Properties for development which are intended to be sold upon
completion of development are classified as non-current assets
until when development of the properties has commenced and
carried at cost less impairment. Cost is determined on a specific
identification basis including allocation of the related development
expenditure incurred and where appropriate, borrowing costs
capitalised.

Financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a

group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
eI RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2024 HZE_—Z—NF=A=+—HILFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability and of
allocating interest income and interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash receipts and payments (including all fees and
points paid or received that form an integral part of the effective
interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial asset or financial liability,
or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount
on initial recognition.

Interest income which are derived from the Group’s ordinary course
of business are presented as revenue.

Financial assets
Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

e the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is to collect contractual cash flows; and

e the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured as at FVTOCI:

° the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is achieved by both selling and collecting
contractual cash flows; and

e the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash

flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal amount outstanding.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRI

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #EHZE_—ZFT_NF=-A=+—HILtFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at FVTPL,
except that at initial recognition of a financial asset the Group may
irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in fair value of
an equity investment in other comprehensive income if that equity
investment is neither held for trading nor contingent consideration
recognised by an acquirer in a business combination to which
HKFRS 3 Business Combinations applies.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a financial asset
that are required to be measured at the amortised cost or FVTOCI as
measured at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces
an accounting mismatch.

(i) Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method for financial assets measured subsequently
at amortised cost and debt instruments/receivables
subsequently measured at FVTOCI. Interest income is
calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the gross
carrying amount of a financial asset, except for financial
assets that have subsequently become credit-impaired (see
below). For financial assets that have subsequently become
credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by applying
the effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the
financial asset from the next reporting period. If the credit
risk on the credit-impaired financial instrument improves so
that the financial asset is no longer credit-impaired, interest
income is recognised by applying the effective interest
rate to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset
from the beginning of the reporting period following the
determination that the asset is no longer credit-impaired.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2024 HZE_—Z—NF=A=+—HILFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

(i) Equity instruments designated as at FVTOCI

Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI are
subsequently measured at fair value with gains and losses
arising from changes in fair value recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the FVTOCI
reserve; and are not subject to impairment assessment. The
cumulative gain or loss will not be reclassified to profit or
loss on disposal of the equity investments, and will continue
to be held in the FVTOCI reserve.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBERRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2024 HZE—Z—_NF=A=+—HILFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL

ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(CONTINUED)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

(iii)  Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being
measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI or designated as

FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the
end of each reporting period, with any fair value gains or
losses recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss
recognised in profit or loss includes any dividend or interest
earmed on the financial asset and is included in the “other

gains and losses” line item.

Impairment of financial assets subject to impairment assessment

under HKFRS 9

The Group performs impairment assessment under expected credit
loss (“ECL”) model on financial assets (including trade receivables,
loan receivables, corporate note receivables, other receivables
and deposits, and bank balances which are subject to impairment
assessment under HKFRS 9. The amount of ECL is updated at
each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial

recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all possible
default events over the expected life of the relevant instrument. In
contrast, 12-month ECL (“12m ECL”") represents the portion of
lifetime ECL that is expected to result from default events that are
possible within 12 months after the reporting date. Assessments
are done based on the Group’s historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors, general
economic conditions and an assessment of both the current
conditions at the reporting date as well as the forecast of future

conditions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
eI RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2024 HZE_—Z—NF=A=+—HILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade receivables.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss allowance
equal to 12 months ECL, unless there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, in which case the
Group recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment of whether lifetime
ECL should be recognised is based on significant increases in the
likelihood or risk of a default occurring since initial recognition.

(i) Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as
at the reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on
the financial instrument as at the date of initial recognition.
In making this assessment, the Group considers both
quantitative and qualitative information that is reasonable
and supportable, including historical experience and
forward-looking information that is available without undue
cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has increased
significantly:

e anactual or expected significant deterioration in the
financial instrument’s external (if available) or internal
credit rating;

e significant deterioration in external market indicators
of credit risk, e.g. a significant increase in the credit
spread, the credit default swap prices for the debtor;

e existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected to
cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to
meet its debt obligations;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRI

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #EHZE_—ZFT_NF=-A=+—HILtFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3. REGEMBRERCEEREX
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ErtRREE )
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued) 3.2 EXEMBEZIHEGE

Financial instruments (Continued) ST A

Financial assets (Continuea) ZREEE)

() EERRBEZZMNE

(i) Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

e an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor;

e an actual or expected significant adverse change
in the regulatory, economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that results in a significant
decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt
obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise.

Despite the foregoing, the Group assumes that the credit risk
on a debt instrument has not increased significantly since
initial recognition if the debt instrument is determined to
have low credit risk at the reporting date. A debt instrument
is determined to have low credit risk if (i) it has a low risk
of default, (ii) the borrower has a strong capacity to meet its
contractual cash flow obligations in the near term and (iii)
adverse changes in economic and business conditions in the
longer term may, but will not necessarily, reduce the ability
of the borrower to fulfil its contractual cash flow obligations.
The Group considers a debt instrument to have low credit
risk when it has an internal or external credit rating of
“investment grade” as per globally understood definitions.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the criteria
used to identify whether there has been a significant increase
in credit risk and revises them as appropriate to ensure that
the criteria are capable of identifying significant increase in
credit risk before the amount becomes past due.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
eI RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2024 HZE—Z—_NF=A=+—HILtFE

REGSMBERRCBEEREX
B BREHE )

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3.
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued) 3.2 EXEMBEZIEGE

Financial instruments (Continued) SMI A
Financial assets (Continuea) ZREEE)
(i) Definition of default (i) BROER
For internal credit risk management, the Group considers RAFEERRERMS @+
an event of default occurs when information developed SEREEABELENENT
internally or obtained from external sources indicates that HNEBAREIE KL KRB - B A
the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors, including the TRAGEREEA(BELRAE
Group, in full (without taking into account any collaterals E)2BERTERAEER
held by the Group). ERNEETR) - BIBEELD
ESL
Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that default bR bt RN - AEERR -
has occurred when a financial asset is more than 90 days fi & B & EE B EREB 1B 90K - Al
past due unless the Group has reasonable and supportable BAEENEMN  BRIEAEEA
information to demonstrate that a more lagging default R ERNELNZER A
criterion is more appropriate. BEMEEAEER - BlIfER
Eﬁ o
(i) Credit-impaired financial assets (i) EERESREE

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events
that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash
flows of that financial asset have occurred. Evidence that a
financial asset is credit-impaired includes observable data
about the following events:

(@) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
borrower;

(b)  a breach of contract, such as a default or past due
event;

(c) the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower a
concession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise
consider; or

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganization.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRI

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #EHZE_—ZFT_NF=-A=+—HILtFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
(iv)  Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the counterparty is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of
recovery, for example, when the counterparty has been
placed under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings. Financial assets written off may still be
subject to enforcement activities under the Group’s
recovery procedures, taking into account legal advice where
appropriate. A write-off constitutes a derecognition event.
Any subsequent recoveries are recognised in profit or loss.

(v)  Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability
of default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the
loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default. The
assessment of the probability of default and loss given
default is based on historical data and forward-looking
information. Estimation of ECL reflects an unbiased and
probability-weighted amount that is determined with the
respective risks of default occurring as the weights. The
Group uses a practical expedient in estimating ECL on
trade receivables using a provision matrix taking into
consideration historical credit loss experience and forward
looking information that is available without undue cost or
effort.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all contractual
cash flows that are due to the Group in accordance with
the contract and the cash flows that the Group expects to
receive, discounted at the effective interest rate determined
at initial recognition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

eI RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2024 HZE—Z—_NF=A=+—HILtFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Foreign exchange gains and losses

The carrying amount of financial assets that are denominated
in a foreign currency is determined in that foreign currency and
translated at the spot rate at the end of each reporting period.
Specifically:

o For financial assets measured at amortised cost that are
not part of a designated hedging relationship, exchange
differences are recognised in profit or loss in the ‘Other
gains and losses’ line item as part of the net foreign
exchange gains/(losses);

e For financial assets measured at FVTPL that are not part of
a designated hedging relationship, exchange differences are
recognised in profit or loss in the ‘Other gains and losses’
ling item as part of the gain/(loss) from changes in fair value
of financial assets;

e For equity instruments measured at FVTOCI, exchange
differences are recognised in other comprehensive income
in the fair value through other comprehensive income/
revaluation reserve.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRI

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #EHZE_—ZFT_NF=-A=+—HILtFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method or at FVTPL.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the financial
liability is (i) contingent consideration of an acquirer in a business
combination to which HKFRS 3 applies, (ii) held for trading or (iii)
it is designated as at FVTPL.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities including bank and other borrowings, corporate
note payables, trade payables and, other payables and deposits
received are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest method.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
eI RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #H =

4.

—TECF=A=+—HIFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION

In the application of the Group’s material accounting policy information,
which are described in note 3, the directors of the Company are required
to make judgments, estimates and assumptions about the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from
other sources. The estimates and underlying assumptions are based on
historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant.
Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an on-going
basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in
which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in
the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.

Critical judgments in applying accounting policies

Hao Tian International Construction Investment Group Limited (“HTICI”)
is a subsidiary of the Group although the Group has less than majority of
the ownership interest and voting rights in HTICI. HTICI is listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange, and its subsidiaries are principally
engaged in (i) securities investment; (ii) provision of securities brokerage
and financial services; (iii) asset management; (iv) rental and trading
of construction machinery; (v) provision of repair and maintenance and
transportation services; (vi) property development; and (vii) money
lending.

During the financial year ended 31 March 2024, the Group’s shareholding
in HTICI decreased from 47.4% to 29.02% after the disposal of shares
of HTICI which was completed on 17 October 2023, details of which
are set out in Note 41(c). The directors of the Company reassessed
whether the Group continues to have control over HTICI as the decrease
in the shareholding interests of the Group in HTICI indicates that there
are changes to the elements of control over HTICI. The reassessment
of control was based on whether the Group has the practical ability to
direct the relevant activities of HTICI and its subsidiaries (“HTICI Group”)
unilaterally. In making the judgment, the directors of the Company
considered various factors, including the Group’s absolute size of
holdings, the relative size and dispersion of other shareholders’ holdings,
attendances and voting patterns at previous shareholders’ meetings, and
relevant voting arrangements with certain shareholders of HTICI. After
reassessment, the directors of the Company concluded that the Group
continues to have sufficiently dominant voting interest in HTICI to direct
the relevant activities of HTICI Group and therefore the Group continues to
have control over HTIC| Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBERRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2024 HZE—Z—_NF=A=+—HILFE

4.

120 Aceso Life Science Group Limited

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION (CONTINUED)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
Fair value measurement of financial instruments

As at 31 March 2024, certain of the Group’s financial assets classified
at FVTOCI and FVTPL are unlisted and measured at fair values with fair
values being determined based on significant unobservable inputs using
valuation techniques. Judgment and estimation are required in establishing
the relevant valuation techniques and the relevant inputs thereof.
Changes in assumptions relating to these factors could result in material
adjustments to the fair values of these instruments. See note 38 for further
disclosures.

Provision of ECL for trade receivables

The Group uses practical expedient in estimating ECL on trade receivables
which are not assessed individually using a provision matrix. The
provision rates are based on aging of debtors as groupings of various
debtors taking into consideration the Group’s historical default rates and
forward-looking information that is reasonable and supportable available
without undue costs or effort. At every reporting date, the historical
observed default rates are reassessed and changes in the forward-looking
information are considered.

The information about the ECL and the Group’s trade receivables are
disclosed in notes 37 and 24, respectively.

Provision of ECL for loan and interest receivables and
corporate note receivables

Management regularly reviews the impairment assessment and
evaluates the ECL of the loan and interest receivables and corporate note
receivables.

Appropriate impairment allowance is recognised in profit or loss. In
assessing whether the credit risk has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group compares the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument at the reporting date with the risk perceived at the
date of initial recognition. In making this assessment, the loan and interest
receivables from borrowers and corporate note receivables are assessed
individually by the management of the Group, based on the financial
background, financial condition and historical settlement records,
including past due dates and probability of default, of each borrower
and reasonable and supportable forward-looking information (such as
macroeconomic factors including Gross Domestic Product (“GDP”)
growth and unemployment rate with adjustment on different scenarios of
gconomic environment prospect) that is available without undue cost or
effort.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
eI RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2024 HZE—Z—_NF=A=+—HILtFE

4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Provision of ECL for loan and interest receivables and
corporate note receivables (Continued)

Each borrower is assigned a risk grading under internal credit ratings to
calculate the ECL, taking into consideration of the estimates of expected
cash shortfalls which are driven by the estimates of probability of
default and the amount and timing of cash flows that are expected from
foreclosure on the collateral (if any) less the costs of selling the collateral.
At every reporting date, the financial background, financial condition and
historical settlement records of each borrower are reassessed and changes
in the forward—looking information are considered. The management
further assesses the amount of exposure of default by assessing the
potential loss in view of the credit risk on credit-impaired loan and interest
receivables to which the Group is exposed and enables the Group to
take appropriate corrective actions promptly. In assessing the amount of
exposure of default, the Group takes into account the timing of cash flows
that are expected from foreclosure on the collateral less the costs of selling
the collateral. The provision of ECL is sensitive to changes in estimates.

The information about the ECL and the Group’s loan receivables
and corporate note receivables are disclosed in Notes 37, 21 and 22
respectively.

Estimated impairment of associates

As at 31 March 2024, one of the associates, CESIZ (Cambodia) Co.,
Ltd (“CESIZ”), owns a land in a special economic zone approved by
the Council of Ministers (the “Special Economic Zone”) with a size of
17,252,519 sequare meters at Koh Kong Province, Cambodia (the “Project
Land”), in view the Project Land is located in a developing country which
may be affected by the global economic challenges, the Group performed
impairment assessment on its interests in this associate. Determining
whether impairment loss should be recognised requires an estimation of
the recoverable amount of the relevant associate which is the higher of
value in use and fair value less costs of disposal.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRI

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #HZ=—=

4.

122 Aceso Life Science Group Limited

THE=ZA=+—RHIFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Estimated impairment of associates (Continued)

In assessing the recoverable amount of the Group’s interests in this
associate, the management considered the net realizable value on the
Project Land as the source of proceeds from the ultimate disposal of the
investment.

The information about the impairment assessment of the associate is
disclosed in Note 18.

Impairment assessment of property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets, properties for development and intangible
assets

Property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets and intangible assets
are stated at costs less accumulated depreciation/amortisation and
impairment, if any; Properties for development are stated at costs less
impairment, if any. In determining whether an asset is impaired, the Group
has to exercise judgment and make estimation, particularly in assessing:
(1) whether an event has occurred or any indicators that may affect the
asset value; (2) whether the carrying value of an asset can be supported
by the recoverable amount, in the case of value in use, the net present
value of future cash flows which are estimated based upon the continued
use of the asset; and (3) the appropriate key assumptions to be applied
in estimating the recoverable amounts including cash flow projections
and an appropriate discount rate. When it is not possible to estimate the
recoverable amount of an individual asset (including right-of-use assets),
the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit
to which the assets belongs, including allocation of corporate assets
when a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be established,
otherwise recoverable amount is determined at the smallest group of
cash generating units, for which the relevant corporate assets have
been allocated. Changing the assumptions and estimates, including
the discount rates, future selling prices and future construction costs or
the growth rate in the cash flow projections, could materially affect the
recoverable amounts.

As at 31 March 2024, the carrying amounts of property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets and properties for development subject to impairment
assessment were HK$216 million, HK$18 million and HK$326 million,
respectively (2023: HK$235 million, HK$27 million and HK$352 million,
respectively). No impairment losses have been recognised (2023: nil).

As at 31 March 2024, no intangible assets (with indefinite useful lives)
was subject to impairment assessment (2023: HK$158 million; with
reversal of impairment of HK$13 million).

Details of the impairment assessment of intangible assets are disclosed in
note 17.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
eI RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2024 HZE—Z—_NF=A=+—HILtFE

4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Fair values of investment properties

Investment properties are stated at fair values based on the valuation
performed by independent professional valuers (the “Valuers”) not
connected with the Group. The determination of the fair values involve
certain assumptions of market conditions. In determining the fair values,
the Valuers have based on method of valuations which involve certain
unobservable inputs including, among other factors, capitalisation rate,
discount rate and comparable transaction price used in the valuations as
set out in note 16.

In relying on the valuation reports, the directors of the Company have
exercised their judgments and are satisfied that the assumptions used in
the valuations are reflective of the current market conditions. Changes
to these assumptions would result in changes in the fair values of the
Group’s investment properties and the corresponding adjustments to the
amount of gain or loss reported in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income.

As at 31 March 2024, the carrying amount of the Group’s investment
properties is HK$1,458 million (2023: HK$1,518 million).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRI

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #EHZE_—ZFT_NF=-A=+—HILtFE

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(a) Description of segments and principal activities

Information reported to the board of directors, being the chief
operating decision maker (“CODM”), for the purposes of resource
allocation and assessment of segment performance focuses on
types of goods or services delivered or provided.

The Group’s reportable segments under HKFRS 8 Operating
Segments are as follows:

(i) Rental and sale of construction machinery and spare parts
business: The Group offers crawler cranes of different
sizes, other mobile cranes, aerial platforms and foundation
equipment in its construction machinery rental fleet in Hong
Kong. The Group also sells construction machinery and
spare parts in Hong Kong and Macau.

(i)~ Provision of repair and maintenance and transportation
service business: The Group provides repair and
maintenance service for construction machinery, in
particular the crawler cranes, in Hong Kong. The Group
also provides transportation services which include local
container delivery, construction site delivery and heavy
machinery transport in Hong Kong.

(iii)  Money lending business: The Group holds money lending
licenses and offers mortgaged loan and personal loan
businesses in Hong Kong.

(iv)  Provision of asset management, securities brokerage and
other financial service business: The Group holds Securities
and Future Commission licenses for conducting type 1
(dealing in securities), type 4 (advising on securities) and
type 9 (asset management) regulated activities under the
Securities and Futures Ordinance and provides a wide range
of financial services in Hong Kong.

(v)  Property leasing business: The Group holds a commercial
property in London, the United Kingdom (the “UK"), for
leasing.

(vi)  Property development business: The Group holds properties
for development in Malaysia through a subsidiary.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
eI RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #H =

5.

—TECF=A=+—HIFE

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

(b)

Segment profit or loss

The segment profit or loss for the reportable segments provided to
the CODM and reconciliation to loss before taxation for the years
ended 31 March 2024 and 2023 are as follows:

There were no intersegment sales during the years. No operating
segments have been aggregated in arriving at the reportable
segments of the Group.

The CODM makes decisions according to operating results of each
segment. No analysis of segment asset and segment liability is
presented as the CODM does not regularly review such information
for the purposes of resources allocation and performance
assessment. Therefore, only segment revenue and segment results
are presented.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRI

For the year ended 31 March 2024 HZE—Z—_NF=A=+—HILFE

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. WARSEEH (&
(CONTINUED)
(b) Segment profit or loss (Continued) (b) SERZ R
2024
s 3
Provision
of asset
Rental and  Provision of management,
saleof  repairand securities
construction  maintenance brokerage
machinery and and other
and spare transportation Money financial ~ Property  Property
parts service lending  services easing development Total
RitEE
BEBBRE RUKER £E.
FESHER  REUR BHERR

R EBRE BE EtemMEE MREE  WRER @t
BE#T BE¥T BE#T BE#T BE¥T BEET  BEET
HKS million KRS million KRS million KRS million ~ HKS million  HKS million  HKS million

Segment revenue FBEA
External revenue SRIA 1571 § 4 1 54 - 28
Seqment results before the following flems:  TBR DA TR BRI 2 9 BEE - 61 3 1 1 Y - 108
- Deprecietion il (28) (1) - - - - (29)
- Falr valug losses -NTEER - - - = (69) - (69)
~ Impairment losses of fnancial assels 2 REEREER

(expected credt losses) (BHEEER) - = (68) - - - (68)
~ terest income -HMEKRA 1 - - 4 = = 5
- Finance costs ~BARK (4) = (1) - (29) - (30)
Seqment results R 30 2 (88) 5 (12) - (123)
Unallocated: AR
~ Qther ncome —EfHA i
- Fair value losses ~NFEER (203)
- Other losses ~HthER (33)
- Administratve expenses ~E% (65)
- Depreciaton =il (21)
~Reversal of impaiment losses of financial — 2 REERESE

assets (expected creditlosses) (BEEEER AR 14
- Share of results of associates N VN E (325)
- Finance costs ~WERK (111)
Loss before taxation RiaER (823)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2024 HZE—Z—_NF=A=+—HILtFE

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. ItABRDEBEHE (18)
(CONTINUED)
(b) Segment profit or loss (Continued) (b) SEERZGHE)
2023
“EC-CE
Provision
0f asset
Provision of management,
Rental and sale ~ repair and securities
0of construction maintenance and brokerage and
machinery and ~ transportation other financial Property
spare parts senvice  Money lending services Property leasing  development Tota
REEE
BERHR  RESER BR-
BRSHAE  REMR BHELR
REE  EERE HE EteERE  WERE  NEER &
BEAT  BERT  EEAT  BEBT BEAT  BERM BERR
HkSmiion ~ HKSmillon —~ HKSmilion ~ HKSmilion ~ HKSmillion  HKSmillion  HKSmillion
Segment revenue ABRA
External evenue HRMA 205 § 1 ] % - 312
Seqment results before the following ftams:  ¥BRDA TS BRI 2 H SEE - 0 g 21 10 49 =
~ Depreciction il (3) = = = = =
—Fair value losses -RTEREE - - - (19) = 1
~Reversal of impairment osses: -WEERAD -
- intangible assels -EEE 13 - - - - - 13
~financial assets (expected creditlosses) -~ £ BEE (BHEEEE) 5 - i 4 - - %
~Interest income ~HEHA - - - 1 - - 1
- Financ cost ~BERK (3) - (1) - (24) - (28)
Segment results PHEE 5 g 3 15 6 - 10
Unallocated: AR
- Other income ~HflA 48
- Fair value losses -LYEFE (31)
- Other gains -Efoks 5
- Depreciation il (20)
- Administativ expenses ~-TBE% (89)
~Reversal of impairment osses of francial — £ R EE BHEEHE)
assels (Bxpected credit osses) REFEEE g
~ Share-based payment expenses ~NROFANRRS ()
- Share of results of associates -HEBENAEE (131)
-~ Share of results ofjoint ventures -HEABLERE (18)
- Finance costs ~BARA (101)
Loss before tavation RRAER (213)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRI

For the year ended 31 March 2024 HZE—Z—_NF=A=+—HILFE

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. IRABRDEBEHE(8)
(CONTINUED)
(b) Segment profit or loss (Continued) (b) SERZ R
2024
ok a2
Provision
Provision of of asset
Rental and repair and management,
saleof  maintenance securities
construction and brokerage and
machinery and ~tranportation other financial Property Property
spare parts service  Money lending services leasing  development  Unallocated Total
RitaE
REMRR RHEKER R 2%
RS REUR ERREM
HERNE EBR ik Rk EELN NERR AR it
Hk§'million ~~ HK§'million ~ HKS'million  HKS'million ~ HKS'million ~ HKS'million  HKS'million  HK§'million
BEET  HEET BEET  HEET AEET LR BEET BEET
Amounts included in the FAN BRI E SR
measure of segment proft
0rloss:
Depreciaion e 2 1 - - - - 2 50
Impaiment osses onfnancl £ BFEERERL (BHE - - 8 - - - (14) I}
assels (expected redt )
[oss)
Finances ¢osls BERA 4 - 1 - % - 11 14
03
St
Provision of asset
Provision of management,
Rental and sale repair and securfies
of consfruction  maintenance and brokerage and
machineryand — transportaion other financial Property Property
spare pats sevice — Money lending Sevices leasing ~ cevelopment  Unallocated Total
RitEE
BERRR  RESER BR &
ERTH  REMR BB
HERKE  BakE HE  2ERE  VEHE  MEER VAL &5
HSmilion — HKSmilion  HKSmilon  HKSmilon  HKSmilion  HKSmilion  HKSmilin  HKSmilion
BEST EEAT  REAT  BEET  BEET  BEAT  BREAT REAR
Amountsincluded n the SAN BRI EC R
measure of segment profi
orloss:
Depreciaton Vil 3 - - - - - 2 5
Reversal ofimpament SREENERLER(ERE f) - (1 4 - - ] (3)
lssesonfnanciaassels—~ EFE)
(expected credit loss)
Finanoes costs HANK 3 - 1 - 4 - 10 12
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
eI RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2024 HZE—Z—_NF=A=+—HILtFE

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. ItABRDEBEHE (18)
(CONTINUED)
(c) Geographical information (c) HEBEE
The geographical information about the Group’s revenue from RSB BN R ABEEA (R
external customers by location of operations and the non-current KEEE D) ARIEREEE (2R
assets other than financial instruments and deferred tax assets in TERINREERIBEE(BEER
which the assets are physically located is detailed below: FfE) 2 Hlm B R FFtan T -
Revenue Non-current assets
KA ERENEE
For the year ended 31 March As at 31 March
BE=A=1+—HLEE ®W=RA=+—H
2024 2023 2024 2023

—E_NE —_T-=F ZBNE —_T_=fF
HK$’million HK$'million  HK$’million HK$'million
BEET BHEATT BEET BEETT

Hong Kong B8 174 256 409 432
UK 4 54 55 1,473 1,540

The People’s Republic of hEE AR HAE
China (the “PRC") =) = = = 5
Macau B - 1 - -
Malaysia BRI - - 326 352
Cambodia RIFZE - - 798 1,127
228 312 3,006 3,456
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBERRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2024 HZE—Z—_NF=A=+—HILFE

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. IRABRDEBEHE(8)
(CONTINUED)
(d) Information about major customers (d) RAREEERZEH
There is no external customer which contributed over 10% of the HE-_Z_NFEFRN_FE_=F=H
total revenue of the Group for the years ended 31 March 2024 and =t+—HILFE  BELHAEEEZ
2023. I AGEBHA10% 2 SNEBR = o
(e) Revenue summary (e) UWrAHE
Disaggregated revenue hy segments SHFEFEBIRA
For the year ended 31 March 2024 BE —FE_E=H=+—HIFFF
Segments
At
Provision
Provision of of asset
Rental and repair and management,
sale of  maintenance securities
construction and brokerage and
machinery and transportation Money other financial Property
spare parts service lending services leasing Total
BEBER RUEEEE
fRASH REKERRR EHEERAM
HE BE UREBEH id- RS WEEE &t

HKS'million ~ HKS'million ~ HK$'million ~ HK$'million ~ HK§'million  HK$'million
HRET HRET HRET HRET HRET HRET

Sale of construction machingryand ~ BEMH K

spare parts ERZHHE 2 - - - - 2
Repair and maintgnance and BERRRNRERRY
{ransportation service income WA = b - - - b

Commission income generated from ~ EEER  EFHLLRE
asset management, securities teRRBEE 2z Ae

brokerage and other financial 0N
Services - - - 1 - 1
Rental of construction machingry BEBHESRA 136 - - - - 136
Leasing of investment properties REMFRERA = - - - 54 54
Interest income from money lending ~ FCEF S A = - 4 - - 4
Interest income from margin financing ~ REEREMSMA - - - b - b
157 b 4 1 94 228
Timing of revenug recognition WARERER
Ata point in time RE-ERIH 2 - - 1 - 2
Over time Rk 136 b 4 b 54 206
Total & 157 b 4 1 94 228
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2024 HZE—Z—_NF=A=+—HILtFE

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. WARSEEE (&
(CONTINUED)
(e) Revenue summary (Continued) (e) WABIE(E
Disaggregated revenue by segments (Continued) 75 EBUL A (H8)
For the year ended 31 March 2023 BE T - —F=H=1+—HIFFEF
Segments
k!
Provision
0f asset
Provision of management,
Rental and sale repair and securities
of construction - maintenance and brokerage and
machineryand transportation Mongy ~ other financial Property
spare parts service lending services leasing Total
BEHNR REAEER:
BRZH RELBRRE BB REM
HE #E  NREBRHK HE SRS NERE &t

Hk§milion ~ HKSmillion HK$’miHi6ﬁ Hk§milion — HKSmillion ~ HKSmillion
BEAT BEAT BEAT BEAT BEAT BEAT

Sale of construction machineryand ~ BE#HR

spare parts BRZHEE 65 - - - - 65
Repair and maintenance and BERREARERRE
{ransportation service income WA = 8 = = - 8

Commission income genrated from  BEER « EHRELRA
asset management, securities tepRBEE 2R

brokerage and other financial LON
Services = = = b = b
Rental of construction machinry BEBERSHA 160 - - - - 160
Leasing of investment properties REMFRERA - - - - 5 5
Interest income from money lending ~ HEFEMA - - 14 - - 14
Interest income from margin financing ~ RESEEFEHA - - - 4 - 4
25 8 1 10 5% 32
Timing of revenus recognition LN S
Ata point in time RE-EHY 65 - - b - i
Over time FeEs R 160 8 14 4 5 241
Total & 205 8 14 10 5 312
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBERRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2024 HZE—Z—_NF=A=+—HILFE

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 3.

(CONTINUED)
(e) Revenue summary (Continued)

Disaggregated revenue by segments (Continued)

Performance obligations information about the Group’s revenue is
summarised below:

(@) Revenue from contracts with customers
(i) Sale of construction machinery and spare parts

The performance obligation is satisfied upon delivery
of the products and payment is generally due within
0-30 days from delivery.

(i)  Repair and maintenance and transportation service

The performance obligation is satisfied over time as
services are rendered and payment is generally due
from 0-30 days from the date of billing.

(i)  Commission income generated from asset
management, securities brokerage and other financial
services

Commission income from asset management and
other financial services are recognised as income in
accordance with the terms of the relevant agreement;
commission income from dealing in securities are
recognised on a trade date basis.

(b)  Revenue from other sources

() Rental of construction machinery
Rental income is recognised on a straight-line basis
over the lease term. The Group leased own machinery
to third parties for a period of one to three months
and payment is generally due from 0-30 days from
the date of billing.

(i)  Leasing of investment properties

Rental income is recognised on a straight-line basis
over the lease term.

(iii)  Interest income from money lending and margin
financing

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis
using the effective interest method.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2024 HZE—Z—_NF=A=+—HILtFE

6. OTHER INCOME 6. HMkA
2024 2023
—ZE_mE —E-=F
HK$’million HK$'million
BHERET BEATL
Interest earned on: BATSERR AL :
— corporate note receivables —REREESE 27 28
— bank deposits —RITTER 8 2
Government grant BB = 1
Rental income from warehouses BREHESKA 5 5
Compensation received for termination ofa A% L&) 2 F1ES
lease - 6
Others HAh 9 7
49 49
7. OTHER (LOSSES)/GAINS, NET 7. EBEMESE) WMERE
2024 2023
—E_mE —E-=F
HK$’million HK$'million
HERHET BEAT
Foreign exchange (losses)/gains HNE (B518) /W (6) 1
Gain on disposal of property, plant and HEME - BE kE#E W=
equipment - 6
Gain on disposal of associates HEBERNEZ W& - 1
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary PE—FERBAR 2w - 1
Gain on early settlement of a corporate note ~ $RATE I BN P EE K 2 M
payable (note 30) (B 7E30) - 54
Provision for liabilities arising from financial AR FEstE BEB (LT ABRZE
assets at FVTPL (note (a)) RMEEELNEBRE
(BT 7E(a) (27) —
(33) 63
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBERRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2024 HZE—Z—_NF=A=+—HILFE

1.

134 Aceso Life Science Group Limited

OTHER (LOSSES)/GAINS, NET (CONTINUED) 1. gﬂﬂ(ﬁ?ﬁ)/&ﬁ@ﬁ(-%)
Note: BiRE
(a)  The provision for liabilities arising from financial assets at FVTPL (8 MNAFEABEESHABRZEH
represented the provision on the legal dispute with the fund manager BEEEMEBERBEEREERARSEMR
who handles the unlisted debt instruments held by the Group as shown FIELTEBIANESEREAZHD
in Note 26. ARG - M EE26FTR ©
Based on the agreement signed with the fund manager, the Group was RIFHESEBARIINHE  A5E
liable to pay a total of HK$27 million to the fund manager as part of ERESEEASIMNRI2IEEET -
the handling charge of the instruments; such liabilities have previously ERZETIENI S FEE : MHTzE26
been netted off from the carrying amount of the financial assets at % ZEBEER_E-=F=A
FVTPL as disclosed in Note 26 as at 31 March 2023. Zt—HEURFEFEBEEZEA
BazoREERMESRR -
During the year ended 31 March 2024, the Group had a legal dispute REBEE-Z-_MF=A=+—HLFE
with the fund manager, where the fund manager asked for settlement of HE - AEEHEESEER AL LR
HK$27 million while the Group counter argued the fund manager had W ReBBEABREBEEET
been mishandling the unlisted debt instruments, accordingly the Group MASERBEBEESERALIELTE
was seeking for refund of the original investment cost of HK$7 million BIRERETE EHEASEERRE
and waiver of the handling charge of HK$27 million. In August 2023, REERATEEB TR EEBT
the Group won the case during the first trial, but the fund manager NFEE - —T-_=FNAF  AEER
appealed to the court which overturned the original verdict in January —ERBF BEESEEARERIEHR
2024, FF EBRRZZE_MFE-AER TR
# o
The Group has immediately appealed the court and up to the date of AEFEBNEERRE £ BER
this report, the verdict has not been given. Based on the legal advice, WERH - HREARTE - RBEEEE
the upcoming verdict will be final and conclusive and is of the opinion R AIEE M AR R &L BRE M
that while the result cannot be ascertain, it is probable that the Group B UREBRETEREER BEXE
would lose. Given the economic downturn in the PRC debt market, BB g BER - ZREFEEBHMISL
the directors of the Company considered that the Group is not able EAER  AAAESRALIEEEE
to realise the unlisted debts instruments in the foreseeable future. RAITERARRSIRIE EHEBHLE -
Accordingly, the Group has written down the fair value of the unlisted b AEBEBHZEFRLMEBIAZ
debts instruments as zero and made a provision of HK$27 million in AFEREAS  YHREE—ZT
relation to the handling charges during the year ended 31 March 2024. FZA=+—HLEFEHENFEERE
HrEEAT -
FINANCE COSTS 8. MEREF
2024 2023
ot <o - 3 B4
HK$’million HK$'million
BEET BEABTT
Interest expenses arising from: NTEIEZHERAE :
— bank and other borrowings —RITREMEE 89 99
— corporate note payables —ERTERE 53 40
— lease liabilities —HEaE 1 1
Exchange difference on borrowings BEZELEZE (2) M)
141 129

Annual Report 2023/24



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
eI RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2024 HZE—Z—_NF=A=+—HILtFE

9.

LOSS BEFORE TAXATION

This is stated at after charging/(crediting) the following:

9. FRMAIGIR

TR, G A AT S IEEE -

2024 2023
ot S 1 - —EC=4F
HK$’million HK$'million
BEET BEATL
Auditor's remuneration THMNE ) 2 2
Cost of inventories sold (included in cost 2 &EFEMKA G AU AL A)
of revenue) 20 58
Depreciation of property, plant and M - BENMREITE
equipment 37 40
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEERE 13 12
Total depreciation weERsE \ \ 50 52
Less: depreciation of property, plantand & : Y13 - B MEREITERTA
equipment included in cost of NI ZN
revenue (29) (32)
21 20
Direct operating expenses from REYMHEMEEZBEREERY
investment properties 39 36
Gain on disposal of items of property, HEME - WFE&&HEEER 2 W
plant and equipment 75 - (6)
Staff costs (including director’s BEIXNAN(BRRESHS) :
remuneration):
— Salaries, bonuses and allowances —H® - TE4L KRR 84 90
— Retirement benefit scheme — R REFET K
contributions 2 2
— Share-based payments — AR FE A 3R - 3
Total staff cost 488 TR 86 9%
Less: staff cost included in cost of B B IAAET ABARKAR
revenue (39) (42)
47 53
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBERRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2024 HZE—Z—_NF=A=+—HILFE

(a)

10. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ 10. EEREFETRABZEE&RIE
EMOLUMENTS AND BENEFITS #
The emoluments of each director are as follows: (a) FES=ZHMEWMT :
2024
—Z-mE
Salaries, Retirement
allowances benefit
and benefits scheme Share-based
Fees inkind contributions payments Total
e R RHET BB {n
ne REWET HBER EAGR it
Notes HK$’'million HK$'million HK$'million HK$'million HK$’million
st EEET HEET BHEET BHEET HEET
Executive directors RTES
Xu Haiying TEE (i) - 0.5 - - 0.5
Dr. Zhiliang Ou, J.P. BEsEt  ATaT - 0.6 - - 0.6
Fok Chi Tak EEE - 4.1 - 0.3 5
- 5.8 - 0.3 6.1
Independent non-executive ~ WIFHRITEE
directors
Chan Ming Sun, Jonathan Prép st 0.2 - - - 0.2
Mak Yiu Tong BRE 0.2 - - - 0.2
Lam Kwan Sing MEH 0.2 - - - 0.2
0.6 - - - 0.6
Senior consultant SiRERN
Ms. Li Shao Yu FpFhat (i 5 13.2 . . 13.2
Total ait 0.6 19.0 - 0.3 19.9
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
eI RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2024 HZE—Z—_NF=A=+—HILtFE

10. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ 10. EFRERTHRARZE & RIE
EMOLUMENTS AND BENEFITS (CONTINUED) F (/|
(a) The emoluments of each director are as follows: (a) BHEFZE&WMT : @

(Continued)

2023
i S
Salaries,  Retirement
allowances henefit
and benefits scheme  Share-based
Fees inkind  contributions payments Total
He o 2B RINEF PARR A7
we REWREMN FEER FAER Bat
Notes  HK$million ~ HK$million ~ HK$million ~ HK$million  HK$'million
Mz BEAT BEST BEAT BEST HEATL
Executive directors BITES
Xu Haiying TBE (i) - 06 - - 06
Dr. Zhiliang Ou, J.P. BEREL  AT#L - 06 - - 06
Fok Chi Tak ExE - 48 - 1. 6.1
- 6.0 - 13 73
Independent non-executive ~ HWIEHTES
directors
Chan Ming Sun, Jonathan BRensk 02 - - - 02
Mak Yiu Tong BRE 02 - - - 02
Lam Kwan Sing MEH 02 - - - 02
0.6 - - - 06
Senior consultant EiREER
Ms. Li Shao Yu TOFELL (ii) - 132 - - 132
Total 5t 0.6 192 - 13 211

PRRTEEZHE T ZRRERERARDA
EAREEEHRRERE ZME - LBk
HITEEZME I 2 ANEREELARRES
R RIS < B -

The executive directors” emoluments shown above were mainly
for their services in connection with the management of the affairs
of the Company and the Group. The independent non-executive
directors’ emoluments shown above were mainly for their services
as directors of the Company.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBERRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2024 HZE—Z—MF=A=+—HILFE

10. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
EMOLUMENTS AND BENEFITS (CONTINUED)

(a)

(b)

The emoluments of each director are as follows:
(Continued)

Notes:

(i) Mr. Xu Haiying resigned as executive director of the Company
on 23 February 2024.

(i)~ Ms. Li Shao Yu is a controlling shareholder of the Company.
Five highest paid individuals

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the Group,
one (2023: one) was the director of the Company and one
(2023: one) was the senior consultant of the Company, whose
emoluments are included in the disclosure set out in Note 10(a).
The emoluments of the highest paid individuals except director and
senior consultant are as follows:

10. EERFETHARZHME KIS
(&)

(a)

(b)

SESZHMemT - (8

Bt

() HHEELER-_Z-_WMNF_-A
ZH=HEAARARRITES -

(i) FIFLETR/ARTNERIR
IEFHERZENRET

EAEEFMER2ARERET
B —Z(CZE=ZF: —R)AK
RABEE B—H(CZE=F: —
B)VEANREAER  HMeE R
AT M FE10@@FTIHEE R - BrE
ERERERI - HisE 2 @5
BTIM&mT :

2024 2023

o 1} 3 ZEZ=F

HK$’million HK$'million

BEET BEET

Salaries, allowances and benefits inkind ¥ & ~ J28E R E Y2 F 7 3
Share-based payment AR AR FE AT R - 1
7 4
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2024 HZE—Z—_NF=A=+—HILtFE

10. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ 10. EEREFETHRABZEE&RIE
EMOLUMENTS AND BENEFITS (CONTINUED) F(#8)
(b) Five highest paid individuals (Continued) (b) HEFEERSZMERNRI R
The emoluments fell within the following bands: e 5 EE -
2024 2023
—E_mE —EC-=F
HK$1,000,001—HK$1,500,000 1,000,0017% 7t—1,500,0007 7T 2 3
HK$4,500,001-HK$5,000,000 1,500,0017% 7£-2,000,0007 7T 1 -
3 3
During the year ended 31 March 2024, no emoluments were paid BE_Z-_MEF=A=+—HL*F
by the Group to the directors of the Company or five highest paid ER ZK%ﬁEﬁFﬂZKQET%%E}Zﬂ
individuals as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group ZFMERzBEINE I NME
or as compensation for loss of office (2023: nil). There was no ERBIARE B S ABR 2Bk
arrangement under which a director waived or agreed to waive any BEmECT_=F: | - HEZ
emoluments during the year ended 31 March 2024 (2023: nil). TNF=A=+T—HLFE  #

BEENESRBRETMANE 2
T T —=F : ) -

11. INCOME TAX CREDIT 11. FAifSIRIER
2024 2023
—E-MmF —Eo=F
HK$’million HK$'million
BEET BEBT
Current income tax BNERFT1S T
— Current year —REE
—Hong Kong — BB 4 9
- UK —HE 3 -
— Over-provision in prior years —BAFERERE - (4)
7 5
Deferred tax (note 33) EIEFT1S R (B 5E33)
— Current year —REE (21) (10)
(14) (5)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBERRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2024 HZE—Z—_NF=A=+—HILFE

11. INCOME TAX CREDIT (CONTINUED) 11.

The reconciliation between the income tax credit and the product of loss

FrisRIE% ()
A BRSBTS RS R 2 BB S E

before tax multiplied by the Hong Kong profits tax rate is as follows:

ARRAEBNERRERELCERS

LN CP S (I

2024 2023
—ZE_mE —E-=F
HK$’million HK$'million
BHRET BEATL
Loss before income tax BRATISTAIE B (823) (213)
Less: Share of results of associates B MBS AR EE 325 131
Share of results of joint ventures PMEBEEER - 78
(498) (4)

Calculated at a tax rate of 16.5% (2023 RI65%HEFE(ZT =5 -

16.5%) 16.5%) (82) (1)
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries Hip R AR B AR ENRE 2

operating in other jurisdictions FE (4) ©]
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes THHBAX 62 30
Income not subject to tax BEFHUA (2) (30)
Tax loss for which no deferred income tax AERELEREE B EE

amount was recognised 12 3
Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax BRI AER 2 BIEEE

losses - ()
Over-provision in prior years BAFERERE = (4)
Income tax credit FTiSiRe (14) (5)

Under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime of Hong Kong, the first HK$2
million of profits of the qualifying group entity will be taxed at 8.25%,
and profits above HK$2 million will be taxed at 16.5%. The profits of
group entities not qualifying for the two-tiered profits tax rates regime will
continue to be taxed at a flat rate of 16.5%. Accordingly, the Hong Kong
profit tax of the qualifying group entity is calculated at 8.25% on the first
HK$2 million of the estimated assessable profits and at 16.5% on the
estimated assessable profits above HK$2 million.

UK profits tax is calculated at the rate of 19% (2023: 19%) on the estimated
assessable profit.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
eI RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2024 HZE—Z—_NF=A=+—HILtFE

12. LOSS PER SHARE 12.
Basic and diluted
Basic and diluted loss per share was calculated by dividing the loss for the

year attributable to the owners of the Company by the weighted average
number of ordinary shares in issue during the year.

BEREGIR
EXRME
BREARBEEREARAERREA

A 4F S 1B I A 4F PO B 34T AR 2 7
TP BEH -

2024 2023
ot Jo] 1 - T =
Loss for the year attributable to the owners of the  ANQ Bz #5H AFE(RFREIE
Company (HK$'million) (BEHBT) (462) (264)
Weighted average number of ordinary shares in -~ B 3877 3@ 2 INAEF 988
issue (million shares) (BER) 7,274 7,318
Basic and diluted loss per share (HK cents) BRERREFEEE) (6.35) (3.61)

The computation of diluted loss per share does not assume the exercise of
the outstanding share options of the Company because the exercise price
of those options was higher than the average market price for shares for
the year ended 31 March 2023.

The weighted average number of ordinary shares adopted in the
calculation of basic and diluted loss per share for both years have been
arrived at after deducting treasury shares held by the Group.

No adjustment is made in arriving at diluted loss per share for 2024
and 2023 in respect of the outstanding share awards of HTICI as these
potential ordinary shares have anti-dilutive effects on loss per share of the
Group.

AEEREEEBRYERKRARTZHEAR
TENEREETE  REARBE_T
T=FZ AT HIEFENREERE
ZITEERRERD 2 FHHIE

Rt B EFENSRER N EGE B
BRA RO B RN RE S BTy AN ER AR SR ]
FANEFRMRE

HRNBENERREAEEEREBERAS
RESERE AR EE_FT_MER—
T _FERBEERRE AN ZRBERE
RIRE AR IR B0 SRR T T
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRI

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #EHZE_—ZFT_NF=-A=+—HILtFE

13. DIVIDENDS 13. B2
No dividend has been paid or declared by the Company during the year Eizi_ T -_MFE=A=+—H ¢$F$
ended 31 March 2024 (2023: nil). AETEENSEREARE(ZE ==
F:m) e
14a.PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14a. 1% - BRE R lE
Furniture,
Leasehold land Leasehold fixtures and
and buildings  improvements  equipment Motor vehicles  Machingries Yacht Total
BRLHR B

BF HENREE RERZRE RE #i i1 b
HKS million HKS million HiSmilion ~— HKSmilon — HKSmillon — HKSmilon — HKSmillion
BEAET BEET BEET BEEL  ASET  BEAL  BEER

Nots (o)

fiH(b)
Cost &
Asat1 April 2022 jme e 1) Bl 0 16 1 3 0 7 550
Additions HE Pl = - - 0 - 5
Disposal & ) - - - Q - B)
Transterto inventores (note () 8RS0 - - = = () - (#)
Transfr from right-0f-use asses ERRRTAERE - - - 1 4 - 5
Bxchange alignment B A% - = - - ) - (1)
Asat 31 March 2023 and R=EZ=F=A=1+-Ak

1 Aprl 2003 R-E-ZEMA-A 5 16 7 4 09 75 53

Addiions hE - - - 2 lj - A
Disposal i - - - ?) - - ?)
Transter to nventores (note () AL - - = = (6) - (6)
Transfer o investment properties BREERENE 9) - - - - - 9)
As at 31 March 2024 R-E-ME=A=1-H 43 16 1 4 430 7 579
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2024 HZE—Z—_NF=A=+—HILtFE

14a.PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14a. 9% - BB K fE (i)

(CONTINUED)
Furniture,
Leasehold land Leasehold  fixtures and
and buildings  improvements  equipment  Motor vehicles  Machingries Yacht Total
HELHR il -
BF BEWEEE RERRG bl | 1] i it
Hk$million HK§ million HkSmilion  HKSmilion — HKSmilion — HKSmillon — HKSmillion
BEAT  BEET  EBEEET  BEAT  BEAT BERT  BEAR
Note (o)
()
Accumulated depreciation and FHAERFEE
impairment
Asat 1 April 2022 ACE-—ENA-H 2 13 b = /A 5 31
Charge for the year il 1 1 1 - % 2 j
Transfr from right-0f-use asses ERplRREE - = = - 1 . 1
Disposal & 1 - - - - - )
Transterto inventores (note () BREE(MH() - - = = (%) - (26)
Bxchange dlignment [E 3 % - - - = U] - 1)
As at 31 March 2023 and RZF-=FZfA=+-HkK
1 April 2023 RZE-ZENA-H Al 14 1 - 232 54 328
Charge for th year Rk 1 1 - 1 32 2 ]
Transfer to iventories (nofe (c) BREEMNHC) - - - - 1y - 0
Transfer o investment propertes BRERANE (1) - - - - - (1)
Disposal & - - - (1) - - (1)
Asat 31 March 2024 R-E-mE=A=1-H Al 15 1 - 260 56 359
Carrying amount FEE
As at 31 March 2024 RZE-ME=A=1-A /3 1 - 4 170 19 216
As at 31 Merch 2023 R_E_=F=fA=1-A 3 2 - 4 i 2 %
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBERRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2024 HZE—Z—_NF=A=+—HILFE

14a.PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14a. 9% - BE R iE (18)
(CONTINUED)
Notes: BiRE

(a)  The above items of property, plant and equipment after taking into (a)
account the residual values, are depreciated on a straight-line basis at
the following rates per annum:

Leasehold land and buildings HE T RETF
Leasehold improvements HEMEEE

Furniture, fixtures and office equipment R - HEBRIFARE
Motor vehicles "B

Machineries T

Yacht e

The Group has pledged owned properties and certain machineries with
carrying amounts of HK$106 million (31 March 2023: HK$125 million)
to secure general banking facilities for bank borrowings granted to the
Group (note 29).

Leasehold land and buildings are properties situated in the United
Kingdom for a lease term of 999 years less ten days from and
including 1 January 2020.

(b)  For both years, the machineries were held by the Group for (b)
generating rental income under operating leases from its rental
construction machinery business.

(c)  The Group, in the course of its ordinary activities, routinely sells its (c)
machinery (originally under property, plant and equipment) that it
has held for rental to others. During the year ended 31 March 2024,
related sales of rental machineries that included in revenue and
cost of sales amounted to HK$2 million (2023: HK$19 million) and
HK$2 million (2023: HK$15 million), respectively.

In the opinion of the management, sales of these machineries,
which included under revenue and costs of sales, is part of the
ordinary course of business of the Group.

L - BERRETIREBEF SR
BER  BATFRUEBRETET
£

Over the
lease terms
1278 5P
10% to 20%
20% to 25%
10% to 25%
10%

5%

AEBDEAERELIESEET(Z
E-_=F=ZA=+—H:12588% )
ZEHEMERBTHER  (FATEEE
RIRITEE 2 —RIBITRE 2 ER(HE
29) ©

HELHREFEEMREBRIERNNY
¥ HEAIFRIOK BT _TF
—A—B(BEEEBH)EH -

AEBERMEFEANELHEELH
WM AFERN - ARNEERE
2

RBEESBREFY  AEETHLEES
EREZ#WN(RBYE  BEKERE)
FTHMAL REBEZ-_ZTZ-_mNF=A
=t+—BHLEFER st ABEESWRARK
AHIEEEEHM Z HEED R A2E &
BIT(CE_=F 195888 L) M2ES
BIL(CZE-_=F : 558HBT) °

ERBRA - KSR E B A
ERARRART - AAKERRES
t— 35 -

14h.ARTWORKS 14bh. &7 &
The amounts represents the aggregate cost of art paintings held by RN AREEEAENENME 2 BK
the Group. These art paintings are not held for trading purposes. No Ko ZEBRMENFTAILIFNZ S AR
impairment loss is recognised as in the opinion of the directors of the B o NATRIEERE  BIMEHMERERR
Company, the recoverable amounts of the art paintings are at least BHERE  ErlEe£EE PENERRE
equivalent to their carrying amounts as at the end of the reporting period. HARABRE(E ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEMBHRERM T
For the year ended 31 March 2024 HZE—Z—_NF=A=+—HILtFE
15. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 15. (FHEEE
2024 2023
—E_psE —E=4F
HK$’million HK$'million
BHERET BEAT
Right-of-use assets FREEE
— Offices —WRE 3 8
— Warehouses — B 15 19
18 27
The maturity analysis, based on undiscounted cash flows, of the Group’s BIEAMRE SRS ETAEEHEARE
lease liabilities is as follows: ZEEERASITT
2024 2023
—E_mE —EC-=F
HK$’million HK$'million
BEET BEET
— Less than 1 year — LM EF 11 15
— Between 1 and 2 years —1224 5 10
— Between 2 and 5 years —2&5%F 5 5
21 30
Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets FREEENITERY
— Offices B VN 5 5
— Warehouses - 8 7
13 12
Lease interests HEF S 1 1
Expenses related to short-term leases HERHHERA AX 3 4
Total cash outflow for leases HERS R TR 18 19
Additions to right-of-use assets REFRAEEE 5 11

AEBHASERAERRE - HEAH

—RIZEERIIEF(CE-_=F : 1&

6F) 5T » HMEIKFRIEERIE RER

BEZBTEZIGERRGENE - HERHET

g?@mﬂﬂ;@% - M EEETSRAERS
AR o

The Group leases various offices and warehouses. Lease agreements are
typically made for fixed periods of 1 to 6 years (2023: 1 to 6 years). Lease
terms are negotiated on an individual basis and contain a wide range of
different terms and conditions. The lease agreements do not impose any
covenants and the leased assets may not be used as security for borrowing
pUrposes.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBmRME
For the year ended 31 March 2024 #EHZE_—ZFT_NF=-A=+—HILtFE
16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 16. ¥EM=E
2024 2023
—EE —E=F
HK$’million HK$'million
BEERT BEATT
At beginning of year fﬁ%ﬂ 1,518 1,625
Fair value changes N EEE (89) (19)
Transfer from property, plant and equipment #8812 - /5 M4 (FI7ED)
(note b) 8 -
Exchange differences EHZER 21 (88)
End of the year FR 1,458 1518
Notes: Izﬁgf o
(@) Investment properties were revalued at 31 March 2024 and 2023 by (a) WKWEVER-_ZT-_NER-_ZT-_—F=

146 Aceso Life Science Group Limited

reference to market evidence of recent sales or leasing transactions
for similar properties by Roma Appraisals Limited for a commercial
property in London and by BonVision International Appraisals
Limited for industrial building units in Hong Kong. Both of them
are independent firms of chartered surveyors who have appropriate
qualifications and recent experiences in the valuation of similar
properties in the relevant locations. In estimating the fair value of
the properties, the highest and best use of the properties are their
current use. The fair values of certain investment properties have been
adjusted to exclude prepaid or accrued operating lease income to avoid
double counting.

Valuation Significant
techniques unobservable inputs
fEEHRE EXTUHRESANE

A=+—PBlRIA-—REEFIAYEN
EEBERFEBERARLREE — Z?ﬁf‘ﬁ
TEREEMNER IB%%.:JHEE[SE
SERUMEORHEIBRER
BEEER Fﬁ%’&ﬁ?fﬂ%ﬁﬁ%%iﬂﬂ
i EHHEBUENEUDENGE
THRBRBEEL IR - RNMEFTY
EZRVER  MEZERRRERE
REERNMAE ETREMEZATE
EEHE  UERBAMNSKEFEEEE
WA - KR EETHE -

Relationship of unobservable inputs
to fair value

FUERBABRRANFEZME

Commercial property in London,
UK 2024: HK$1,451 million
(2023: HK$1,518 million)

Income Capitalisation
Approach (Key input:
term yield, reversionary
yield and discount rate)

Term yield, taking into account of yield generated by
market average rental from comparable properties and
adjustment to reflect the lower risk for the term value, VEIsa.
which is 5.50% (2023 4.75%)

Reversionary yield, taking into account of yield generated
by market average rental from comparable properties

An increase in the term yield used would
result in a decrease in fair value and vice

An increase in the term yield used would
result in a decrease in fair value and vice

and adjustment to reflect the conditions of the offices Versa.
and car parks, which is 6.00% (2023 5.25%)

Discount rate, taking into account of the net profit margin
and inflation, which is 3.69% (2023: 4.23%)

RERAEANE TN
ENSLIEEEL(CE
Z=F:1518BEBET)

N
B | R
% - EANGEER
BR)

TR

Rz ®

 BRAMMER TS TOEEEL
MR - WETRENRMEHEENBRE
B BI5.50% (=T ==4F : 475%)

 BRAMERTSFOESEL
MRS - WETARARRBAZREES

An increase in the term yield used would
result in a decrease in fair value and vice
Versa.
fiﬂ% 7 Bl R RS N A8 3

NHEORD  RZTAR -

E}ﬂﬁ’]mﬁﬁﬂﬁlﬂ?ﬁﬁibﬂﬂﬁﬁi&
RFERRD  RZTA

AR B06.00%(=ZZ = =4F : 5.25%)

PHE - BREMERRRERA - B13.69%(—
T =6 1 4.23%)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
eI RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2024 HZE_—Z—NF=A=+—HILFE

16.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)

Notes: (Continued)

16. #BEMRGE)
i ()

Valuation Significant Relationship of unobservable inputs
techniques unobservable inputs to fair value
{EEH G EXTUBRRBANE FAREBANBRLATEZRAR
Industrial building units in Hong  Direct Comparison Adjusted comparable transaction price, ranged from HK$ ~ An increase in the transaction price used
Kong 2024: HK$7 million Approach (Key input: 2,200 to HK$ 2,900 per square foot taking into account would result in an increase in fair value,
(2023: N/A) Comparable transaction difference in the transaction time, location and site and vice versa.
price)
EEIXREBN TN HEELERL (FREA LRBAXISER  NFETAER RHERES  ATEER R
ETEBET(ZEZZ HE:AHXSE 2008 TLE2L00ETT - Kt RRHEME - A

£ TER) 1) o2 R RE Z

The fair value measurement is categorised into Level 3 fair value
hierarchy. Except for the transfer of HK$8 million from property, plant
and equipment, there were no other transfers into or out of Level 3
during the year.

DHEFED RBIRAFERE - REEED
TEREME  BELERE  FAMEREMSE
SEMEAHE L -

(b)  The transfer from property, plant and equipment is made when there ) EWEREBESL  LEHEBAZE
is a change in use of the properties, evidenced by commencement of —HHER AeRWE  BERS
lease to third parties. Q@)\;\

(c)  The Group leased out its investment properties under operating leases. C) AEBEREBECYHESHAEREME -
The lease terms range from 3 to 15 years (2023: 3 to 15 years). All AEERN ¥3i15/¢(_$\:_¢ 3=
leases are on a fixed rental basis and do not include variable lease 15%) D/Fﬁﬁﬁﬂé\’ﬂﬁi%ﬂ%%_ﬁ
payments. FEASRE T -

(d)  Asat 31 March 2024, the carrying amount of investment properties d R-ZE—m&E=f=+—H  EEEY
of approximately HK$1,458 million (2023: HK$1,518 million) was @ A1 ABEBETL(—E =4 : 15187/
pledged to secure borrowings (note 29). BHEIT) I EYE DK S

(FF5E29) ©

(6)  The Group is not exposed to foreign currency risk as a result of the () HRFARE N EEER Y S EI4
lease arrangements, as all leases are denominated in the respective EHELE L MAEE II%IZ‘E‘%ﬁﬁEHﬁ
functional currencies of group entities. The lease contracts do not ﬁﬁﬁ?l\ﬁgﬁhﬁ HEL Z’JITE e
contain residual value guarantee and/or lessee’s option to purchase the {g@ﬁf%&/&gﬁﬁ\}\ﬁm@ o
property at the end of lease term. fg—iwgzggﬁ . ’ v

() The Group’s future undiscounted lease payments under operating ) AEERCEHETHRRAUFAE
leases are receivable as follows: FRIER T 51 R UK ER

2024 2023

- Jo ] . 3 —E-=%F
HK$’million HK$'million
BEERT BEET

Less than 1 year DR 63 55

Between 1 and 2 years 1226 60 58

Between 2 and 3 years 2E3F 58 56

Between 3 and 4 years 3E44F 20 52

Between 4 and 5 years 4Z5F 1 18

Over 5 years FBIBSF 1 2

203 241
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBHRERM T
For the year ended 31 March 2024 HZE—Z—_NF=A=+—HILFE
17. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 17. B EE
Securities
brokerage Customer
Goodwill ~ Brand name licenses list Total
i § REEE EHELME ERRE it
Hk$ million HK§ million HK§ million HK§ milion Hk$million
BEATL BERT BEET BEET BEAT
Note (3) Note 2)
Kz fiE(a)
Cost ¥
A at 1 April 2002, 31 March 2023, R-E-"FWA-B-
1 April 2023 and 31 March 2024 ZECZEZA=1-H
“E--FMA-BR
“E-ME=A=+-H i1 167 4 § 504
Accumulated amortisation and impairment RitHARAE
Asat 1 April 2022 RZE-—EWA-H i1 13 - 8 43
Reversal of impeiment HEAR - 1) - - (13)
As 2t 31 March 2023, RZB-=#=fA=t+-8"
1 April 2023 and 31 March 2024 “E-CEMA-H
R=E-mE=A=1-H 415 - - 8 423
Cartying amount FEE
As at 31 March 2024 R-E-MF=R=1-H - 167 4 - i
As at 31 March 2023 R-B-=F=A=1+-H = 167 4 - 1

148 Aceso Life Science Group Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
eI RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2024 HZE—Z—_NF=A=+—HILtFE

17. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED)

Note:

()

Brand name and customer list

The amount arose on the acquisition of crawler crane business in
HTICI in February 2017.

The Group’s brand name of HK$167 million (2023: HK$167 million)
at 31 March 2024 is assessed as having indefinite useful life because
there is no time limit that the Group can use the brand name.

For the purposes of impairment testing, brand name has been allocated
to rental and sale of construction machinery and spare parts business
and provision of repair and maintenance and transportation service
business. Property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets
(including allocation of corporate assets) that generate cash flows
together with the brand name are also included in the respective cash-
generating unit for the purpose of impairment assessment.

The recoverable amount of this unit has been determined based on a
value-in-use calculation. That calculation uses cash flow projections
based on financial budgets approved by management covering a 5-year
period (2023: 5-year), and pre-tax discount rate of 12% (2023: 11%).
Cash flows beyond the 5-year period are extrapolated using a 2.5%
growth rate (2023: 2.5%). This growth rate is based on the relevant
industry growth forecasts and does not exceed the average long-
term growth rate for the relevant industry. Other key assumptions for
the value-in-use calculations relate to the estimation of cash inflows/
outflows which include budgeted sales and gross margin, such
estimation is based on the unit’s past performance and management’s
expectations for the market development including the fluctuation in
the current economic environment.

Based on the impairment testing, no impairment loss (2023: reversal
of impairment loss of HK$13 million) has been recognised in profit or
loss for the year ended 31 March 2024.

17. EBERE ()

GEX

(@)

miEEREREPIRE

ZeBE Tt F - AREEXBK
ERBREETPREBESL -

FEBR-_Z-_MOF=A=+—HZ
mEEBEERITASEL(ZE =
FTESBTICHAEREERAE
REH RARFTEEZAmEEEL
By e 3 A PR 7

BREARTE - QUEEERERARE
R K BT RS RS R R
IR (5 RARE A BB RIS - 9t
REFETS  ELRSREZME
BERSEREAREE(BEATEE
SE)ERARIE AWM ASARSES
Bfir -

ZEM AR E &5 ENMEREE
HET BHETEERREEEENI
HEBERFHECE=Z=F: AHF)W
B EER12%(CTE-=4F : 11%) 0T
AR REHMNIRE RETEAEL - 18
BRFHEMNBEEREFEM25%(ZF
TTF 5% MEREESH - R
RV BHABTERRREAEE BT
BBMAEITENTFHRGERER - G
HEBRERA RHENFEREEFED
HERBREEEBEHEERTR - Z
EEFTIERZEVNBERBERER
BEHMSEREMNEY  BIEEEER
B E) o

BEREBEINSR BH#E_ZT_NFE=A
—t+t—HUEFERERBRTEIRE
BR(CE_=F : BESEREIESE
BIT) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBERRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2024 HZE—Z—_NF=A=+—HILFE

18. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 18. RBMEBLATIZERS
2024 2023
—ZE_WmEFE B ——
HK$’million HK$'million
HEET BEBT
Unlisted investments: JEEMIRE -
Share of net assets DMEEEFE 798 1130
Notes: BIAE

(@)  Associate material to the Group

@ HAKEMFBERZBEAF
=

(i) Set out below is the associate which, in the opinion of the ) TXHINEFTREN-_ZT_NF
directors, is material to the Group as at 31 March 2024 and E_FT_=%=A EI_ B & AR
2023. The associate is accounted for in the consolidated %Eﬁg%éﬂjz \55%@57 ° fﬁ
financial statements using the equity method. The summarised ga mﬁﬁﬁ*fﬁ?fﬁéﬁé(ﬁ;ﬂ%*&
financial information presented is based on the HKFRS financial & W)\EE = ik Zﬁﬁ\ﬁ%ﬁﬂfﬁg
statements of the associates. JyLAB 2 2 AR IR A BRI E

ERImE 2 EmEMES
Place of
establishment % of

Name of entity and operation ownership interest Principal activity
 { E4 BRI R EE R FRERaSEIL TERY

2024 2023

—ENE —_T_=4F
CESIZ Cambodia 22% 22% Property development
CESIZ (Cambodia) Co., Ltd([CESIZ) EBHES VIR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

eI RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2024 HZE—Z—_NF=A=+—HILtFE

18. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED)

Notes: (Continued)

(@) Associate material to the Group (Continued)

(i)

. RRELARZHER R

BizE : (&)

HAKEMSBERNZBERT(E

Financial information of CESIZ (i) CESIZZBABE R
2024 2023
—E_mE —E-=4F
HK$ million HK$'million
BEREAT BEBT
At 31 March: R=A=+—8":
Non-current assets EmEBEE 3,654 5,147
Current liabilities TENEE (28) (23)
Net assets BESE 3,626 5,124
Group’s % of ownership interest REBEFBEERA DL 22% 22%
Group’s share of carrying amount of
interests REBE DGR 2 REE 798 1,127
Year ended 31 March: HE=A=+—HILtFE:
Revenue WA - =
Loss for the year FREE (1,477) (13)
Other comprehensive (expenses)/income  ERE M2 E (B ), Uz
for the year (20) 13
Total comprehensive expenses for the year 4 A2 T 51 5% 4458 (1,497) =

CESIZ is principally engaged in investment in urban complex
development project in Cambodia. Under the sub-decree
122/2019 (the “Sub-decree”) on the establishment of CESIZ
Special Economic Zone granted by the Council of Ministers
of Cambodia to CESIZ, the Council of Ministers of Cambodia
approved GESIZ to establish the Special Economic Zone with
a size of 17,252,519 square meters at Koh Kong Province,
Cambodia. Under the Sub-Decree, CESIZ shall have the sole
and exclusive right to develop the Special Economic Zone
with all the necessary land use rights, including those for
residential, industrial and commercial development purpose.
The principal assets of CESIZ is a land for development.

Due to the significance of the carrying value of the Project
Land and that is located in a developing country which may be
affected by the global economic challenges, the management
of the Group considered there is an impairment indicator of
the Group’s interest in CESIZ and has accordingly engaged
Roma Appraisals Limited, an independent valuer not related
to the Group to determine the fair value of the Project Land as
at 31 March 2024 as the source of proceeds from the ultimate
disposal of the investment.

The fair value of the Project Land was determined using direct
comparison method, based on recent market transaction data of
sales of land with similar nature and conduction and adjusted
for differences in the location of the land. The fair value
measurement is categorised into level 3 fair value hierarchy.

CESIZEERRIBER BEHMERE
FZRBBAMRE - REFRES
© 1% T CESIZER 37 CESIZAR 2 15 1 &Y
ZHES1222019([=80E% ) -
RIpEPRIPESHECESIZER
HWERRAERIEEA7,252,519
KM R o BRI R
< CESIZBmBERBEKERRZ
W—RBRERN  WEBEY
S FERAEEEEEE T%
MEERERMAE) - CESIZNETER
EREERM -

BHRIER LEEEEAN  BE
URERPER - AJEXE 2K
REKBNTZE  AEEEEE
RRRNEBERCESIZZ e FER
BFR  AUEREEREEL
BB (L EMESBIRF
HERAREE —T _MF=H
=+—HEBLHMHRAFERR
R EZIREMSRERN IR °

HELHORFEDERERL
BOAEE ERNAGEAMEER
R T HE I HMIE R 5
BRI AL EZERELH
B RVEFESRRE=ZRAR
FEER -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRI

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #HZ=—=

THE=ZA=+—RHIFE

18. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED)

Notes: (Continued)

(a)

152 Aceso Life Science Group Limited

Associate material to the Group (Continued)

(i)

Financial information of CESIZ (Continued)

In estimating the fair value of the land, the highest and best use
of the land is its current use.

One of the key unobservable inputs used in valuing the fair
value of the Project Land was the adjusted price per square
meter, which averaged at HK$212 per square meter. A slight
decrease in the adjusted price per square meter used would
result in a significant decrease in the fair value measurement of
the land, and vice versa.

Based on the result of the valuation, the recoverable amount
of the Project Land was HK$3,643 million, accordingly an
impairment loss of HK$1,477 million (of which representing the
Group’s share of loss was HK$325 million) has been recognised
in CESIZ’s profit or loss during the year ended 31 March 2024.

Associates not material to the Group

The following table shows, in aggregate, the Group’s share of the
amounts of all individually immaterial associates that are accounted for
using the equity method.

18 RBE
B3

(a)

i E=1¢ )

(&)
HARLE S BEKR 2 HBELE B
(i)  CESIZZEBATEE R (48)

REET L2 ATFER - £z
e AEEREAEEMAR -

HEB LA FEMGERERD
ERTABEEAREZ —R/E
FHANKRHBER  HFHE
RA2ETEFTIK - FAEAR
BEIREHBREBEBE TR
BERTHH R FEFERET
% RZIVA ©

RIBGEELR  BE LA ke
TRAIGLBEELETT o AL - B
E-_T-_NF=ZA=Z+—HILF
€ - CESIZZ 183 D R EE 18
147TE BB T (A AEEEILER
3BHBBIT) ©

HAKEMS L TERZBE QR
MR IAE 477 SR AN SR B i A R

ABRZFEEREERNBERRMES
B o

2024 2023
—E-mE B
HK$’million HK$'million
BEREAET BEBT
At 31 March: W=R=+—H
Carrying amounts of interests Rz 2 BREE - 3
Year ended 31 March: BE=A=1+—HLFE:
Loss and total comprehensive expenses for 45 A &8 & 2 T B 2 4258
the year = (128)

On 26 June 2023, Hao Tian Media & Culture Company Limited,
an indirect wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, executed an
agreement for the disposal of 49% equity interest in Grand Peaceful
Global Limited at a consideration of HK$2 million.

On 26 June 2023, Victor Ocean Developments Limited, an indirect
non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, executed an
agreement for the disposal of 49% equity interest in Lion Run
Holdings Limited at a consideration of HK$1 million.

Annual Report 2023/24
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
eI RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2024 HZE—Z—_NF=A=+—HILtFE

18. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED)

Notes: (Continued)

(b)

19. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES

Associates not material to the Group (Continued)

18 REELARZERR)
i ()
b) HERBMELTEAZBELQR @

0On 23 June 2022, Victor Ocean Developments Limited, an indirect —E-FAAZ+=8 " ARQFH

non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, executed an
agreement for the disposal of 49% equity interest in Triple Blessing
International Limited at a consideration of HK$44 million.

MEZFE2ENBARRFERE
PR A A2 F Wk A4, 4008 B TR 1
BLHE=RERBR AR N49%MK
-

During the year ended 31 March 2023, Kaiyin Fund Management BE_ZT_=F=A=1T—1t#F

Limited was disposed of at a consideration of HK$7 million
resulting in a gain on disposal of an associate of HK$1 million.

B RARESEEARAIFIAT0E
BITHRELE - IEMEL1005E
TR E — B AR s -

19. ReEERRZHER

2024 2023
ot~ <o 1) - —E-=F
HK$’million HK$'million
BEET BEBT
Unlisted investments: EFEMIRE :
Share of net assets PMEEEFE - 2

Note:

(@)

Joint venture not material to the Group

The following table shows, in aggregate, the Group’s share of the
amounts of all individually immaterial joint ventures that are accounted

B
@) HAREMEUTBEAZAELE

TRAEZRTAIIAKEERERE
ARZHBEBNEERGELEMEE

for using the equity method. B e
2024 2023
—E_mE —EC-=fF
HK$’million HK$'million
BHEAET BEBT
At 31 March: W=A=+—8":
Carrying amounts of interests W2 BREE - 2
Year ended 31 March: BE=A=1+—HIL%FE:
Loss and total comprehensive loss EiE Rk 2 HEEERE (5) (78)

During the year ended 31 March 2024, a joint venture was disposed of
at a consideration of HK$2 million (2023: nil).

BE_ZT_MF=A=+—HILFE -
—HAEELEURE2EEAE T(=ZZ
—=F EHE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBERRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2024 HZE—Z—_NF=A=+—HILFE

20. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVTOCI

20. UAFEEA RS AR

2HKBZEMEE
2024 2023
k= ol 1 - TEC=F
HK$’million HK$'million
BRET BEBTT
Unlisted equity securities (note a) FE LR ANFE S (F7Ea)
Goodwill International Holdings Limited Goodwill International Holdings Limited
(“Goodwill) ([Goodwill]) 3 3
Co-lead Holdings Limited (“Co-lead”) Co-lead Holdings Limited ([ Co-lead]) 13 15
Quan Yu Tai Investment Company Limited ~ 2 FEREBR AR (2#HZE])
(“Quan Yu Tai") 70 287
Tonsin Petrochemical Investment Limited R ALEERERRAR(RD
(“Tonsin”) 36 4
China Pearl Global Limited (“China Pearl”) R 5 BAERIRIRABR AR (TR T BAER]) 301 425
Empire Victory Hong Kong Limited (“Empire  #1Bs & B AR A &) (4185 ])
Victory”) 9 10

Listed equity securities (listed in Hong Kong) T IRAN 35 5 (R & ) (M 5Eh)

(note b) 15 20
447 801

Notes: BsE

(@) As at 31 March 2024 and 2023, the Group has equity interests of (@) RITE-_NER-_ZE-_=F=ZA=1+-—
7.54%, 1.04%, 15.00%, 16.67%, 10.00% and 4.10% in Goodwill, B > KEBERGoodwill ~ Co-lead + &
Co-lead, Quan Yu Tai, Tonsin, China Pearl and Empire Victory, THH - RIBRKRREBESRES
respectively. The above investments are intended to be held for 7.54% ~ 1.04% ~ 15.00% -~ 16.67% ~ 10.00%
medium to long term. Designation of these investments as equity K410% iR - AEERRPERAR
investments at fair value through other comprehensive income can BELMEE - BEZFRERULQT
avoid the volatility of the fair value changes of these investments to the BErff BESE A M 2EmKE 2 &
profit or loss. A EER P ZERENEENATE

BEHRE o
The Group has irrevocably elected at initial recognition to recognise AEBEE R YA FERE TR BE R 2
the fair values of these equity instruments, which are not held for FREMEENSERZERATA
trading but a strategic investment, through other comprehensive NTEE BERATAWHERFIEESR -
income. No dividend income was received during the year (2023: nil). ME—ERIEIKRE - FRILEREDR S
WA(ZZZ=F: ) -
On disposal of these equity investments, any related balance within the HEZSERAKER  UAYETEAR
FVTOCI reserve is reclassified to retained earnings. HEELF AR EmKEZEBERZE
IIERA4E SR E T D T RIRE AT -

(b)  The investment represents equity securities of Oshidori International (b) ZEEEBSLMAREEHEELERS
Holdings Ltd, a company listed in Hong Kong. The Group has RAFIHIIRAF 7 - BRAEEITER
irrevocably elected at initial recognition to recognise the fair value of ERIIEE - AEEE R VR ERET
this equity instrument, through other comprehensive income, because ] JEH Hh 3% 12555 1R HL i B [ R e FE AR X
the Group intends to hold for long term investment purpose. RATEZ AFE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e RRMEE
For the year ended 31 March 2024 HZE—Z—_NF=A=+—HILtFE
21. LOAN RECEIVABLES 21. BIrE®
2024 2023
—E_—NE —E-=fF
HK$’million HK$'million
BHEET BEBTT
Secured fixed-rate loan receivables BEBEEFEERER 88 107
Unsecured fixed-rate loan receivables I EE R ERER 150 150
Less: Allowance for expected credit losses & : TEHAZ E BB RS (191) (112)
47 145

The loan receivables carry effective interest rates of 8% to 16% as at 31
March 2024 (2023: 8% to 16%).

As at 31 March 2024, included in the Group’s loan receivables balance
are debtors with aggregate carrying amount, net of impairment, of HK$47
million (2023: HK$103 million) which are past due as at the reporting
date, all of which has been past due 90 days or more. The directors of
the Company are in the view that these past due balances are not credit-
impaired because the directors have regular updates and communication
with those debtors to understand each of the debtor’s status and their
financial conditions which concluded the carrying amounts were
recoverable as at the end of the reporting period.

Included in arriving at the carrying amount of loan receivables as at 31
March 2024 is accumulated impairment losses of HK$191 million (2023:
HK$112 million). Details of impairment assessment are set out in note 37.

RZZZNMEF=A=+—0H ' EREZH
BREMEBBUEI6%(ZT_=F : 8% %
16%) °

R-ZZE-WF=ZA=+—8 ' AEBEK
ERBRETeEIRBERNAERES
MEBAT(CZE-=%F: 1038BT)H
BERARYER - RIREBBHEAH 2
AR D B HARBBIOE A ko KATFE
ERE ARESTHEZEERALETT
B RER - AT RS REERS AR R
HBBAKN - ZSEaRBETECER
B WAHLSHER RS8R K@
ErTUgE o

REZ_Z-_NF=-A=+—HHNEKE
FEMERERFREBEIVIASET
(ZZ2Z=F 1128887 ° BEE
BRI EEST
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBERRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2024 HZE—Z—_NF=A=+—HILFE

22. CORPORATE NOTE RECEIVABLES 22. ELERE
2024 2023
—E_mE TE=F
Notes HK$’million HK$'million
BaE BEET BEAT
Non-current assets FEREBEE
Future World Holdings Limited R M FIZRR R A A (a)

(“Future World”) ([ARBRHES) > 42
Current assets mENEE
Future world AR R (a) 47 -
Imperial Pacific International Holdings 1% X )3 BIBRZEAR B BR A A)

Limited (“Imperial Pacific”) (MEERFF]D (b) 262 262
CISI Investment Limited (“CISI") CISI Investment Limited ([CISI ) (©) 167 167
Nanshan Capital Holding Limited AL EAZERER AR (FEWL D

(“Nanshan”) (d) 361 361
Central Wealth Group Holdings Limited AP 2 £2 EHZRS A TR A R ([FR )

(“Central Wealth”) (e) - 42
Empire Victory (il (f) 17 -
Less: Allowance for expected credit & : TEER(E B BB EE

losses (353) (367)

501 465
Notes: =
(@)  On 30 December 2022, the Group purchased notes (the “Future (@) MZTEZ—F#+=-A=+H8 ~&H

156 Aceso Life Science Group Limited

World Notes”) issued by Future World, with principal amount of
HK$42,000,000, at a consideration of HK$42,000,000. The Future
World Notes is interest bearing at prime rate plus 2.5% per annum,
unsecured and due on 4 January 2025.

In June 2018, the Group purchased notes issued by Imperial Pacific,
with the principal amount of US$30,000,000, at a consideration of
US$27,800,000 from Asia Link Capital Investment Holding Limited
(“Asia Link”), the controlling shareholder of the Company. Such
notes were issued in January 2017 with three years tenure and bears
interests of 8.5% per annum.

In March 2020, the Group entered into the amendment with Asia Link
to modify the terms of such notes. Major amendments are (i) increase
in the principal amount of the Notes to US$32,550,000, by way of
capitalisation of accrued interests of US$2,550,000; (ii) extend the
maturity date of the notes to 25 April 2021; and (iii) increase in the
interest rate of the Notes from 8.5% per annum to 10.5% per annum
with effect from 25 January 2020. Imperial Pacific defaulted on the
notes. Full allowance for expected credit loss was provided as at 31
March 2024 and 2023.

Annual Report 2023/24

BEARMABITHER((RRERE
Bl K& A42,000,0008T 0 R1EA
42,000,000 7T ° KRR ARBIRSER
FIEIN2.5%FF R B + BER - FH
BE-_ZT_fH4F—AMEA -

RZE-NEXRA AEERKE
27,800,0005E 7T [A) S 2 B 428 AR A 3R S Bt
EERERAR((EHEIEDBEEE
K T3 1T AN £ %R 4330,000,00055 7T 2
R - ARARBER T —tF—H%
17 FHIR=F  FH/ZX85% -

M-ZB-ZHF=F - KR&EEHHEGHA
B EABIBE  LERREER Y
B - FEBIAR()VEBER RS
F182550,000E T RE 2 ASREILE
32,550,000 7 ¢ (i)SEE 2 2HI A E%
Z-E-—ENA-+HA  Ri)EE
B2 FFERESBFAHEI05% BE-F
—TFE—A-t+hBEAER - HELF
FEERFBEHN R _E_WEK—
T_=F=ZA=+—H8 ERBEHEE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

eI RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2024 HZE—Z—_NF=A=+—HILtFE

22. CORPORATE NOTE RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

Notes: (Continued) MI5E : (8)

(c)  InJanuary 2020, the Group entered into an agreement with CISI to € MW-_ZE-_ZTF—H K&
invest in the corporate note issued by CISI which was guaranteed W - AR ERCISIFTE
by China Industrial Securities International Financial Group Ltd, a FrRERERAF (K
company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, with the LA R)MERE S
principal amount of US$20,000,000 (the “CISI Note”) (equivalent to =7t (M E 70156,760,000)
HK$156,760,000). The CISI Note was matured on 17 December 2020 & (CISIZ#E]) - CISIEE
and bore interest of 11.0% per annum. CISI Note was default and is +=-A++tHEH  WiE
undergoing its restructuring plan. Expected credit loss amounted to B - CISIZBEEY - &
HK$79 million (2023: HK$103 million) was provided as at 31 March 2N _T_MFE=-A=
2024. BHEEBRIEERT

1038 EATT) °

(d)  On 22 June 2022, the Group executed an order for the purchase of () RZZ_—_FXA=+=
notes, with principal amount of US$45,000,000 (the “2022 Nanshan TIETUNBERSE AL
Notes") at a consideration of US$45,000,000 (approximately HK$354 ZEBR(=ZZ2_—FmLUE
million). The 2022 Nanshan Notes are interest bearing at 7% per 45,000,000 7T, (4354 5 &
annum, guaranteed by Nanshan Group Co., Ltd and due on 23 June C_ERILEBIRERNE
2023. Expected credit loss amounted to HK$1 million was provided W EB AR A A EER
as at 31 March 2023. All the principal and interest from 2022 Nashan ~NAZ+=H FH o W —
Notes have been settled on due date. =+—B8  EH{EEEE

e RS - R
FHA R 25045 -
On 13 June 2023 and 29 June 2023, the Group executed orders for RZEBE-_=FXA+=
the purchase of notes with principal amounts of HK$250 million NAZTABR  AREES
and HK$101 million (collectively, the “2023 Nanshan Notes”) at BEARE A2508 88T
consideration of approximately HK$250 million and HK$101 million, WEEHE —E =
respectively. The note purchases constituted discloseable transaction REA Q2505 8B TR
under the Listing Rules. 2023 Nanshan Notes is interest bearing at T RIEEMHRA B
7.5% per annum, guaranteed by Nanshan Group Co., Ltd. and due on BERD - —T_—FF
14 June 2024. Expected credit loss amounted to HK$2 million was R75%5 8 BELEER
provided as at 31 March 2024. All the principal and interest from 2023 R RZZEZWNEASAT
Nanshan Notes have been settled on due date and no further execution —_Z_mE=-A=+—~H
orders for purchase of notes issued by Nanshan have been placed by SEE2AEETL T
the Group subsequent to the settlement up to the report date. MAERASEREHA
BrEFEHIL - AKE
I BITRBAE P

(e)  On7 September 2022, the Group signed a subscription agreement with e M-ZE-_—FENAF+H
Central Wealth, pursuant to which Central Wealth (1) partially repaid EEZREE 0 B
a lump sum of HK$8,250,000, comprising principal of HK$6,000,000 M (E& 598,250,000/
and the interest accrued of HK$2,250,000; and (2) issued notes in the 6,000,000/% jt & F& 51 I
principal amount of HK$44,000,000 (the “2nd Central Wealth Notes”) 7T ;li(2R§§%TZK§E%EZ%4
to settle the Central Wealth Notes of HK$44,000,000. The 2nd Central MER(E_HMpES
Wealth Notes is interest bearing at 15% per annum, unsecured and due 44,000,000/ T R ES
on 6 February 2023. Expected credit loss amounted to HK$1 million EZBRIRENEAS%ETE
was provided as at 31 March 2023. All the principal and interest from —ZE_=F - HKHIH
this corporate note receivables have been settled on due date during F=R=+—H - FtiEsas
the year ended 31 March 2024. BET BE_T_NF

IEEFEER - R EZER
EREHR 2 LS -

(f)  On 20 June 2023, the Group entered into an agreement with Empire  MW-ZE_=FH_tH
Victory to invest in their corporate note with the principal amount of RSl Lippas @ IRENANR
HK$21 million (the “EV Note”). The EV Note is interest bearing at 10% S8 T A 1B 3 SR (4D B
per annum, unsecured and due on 29 July 2023. Empire Victory partly SRR FEFEA0%ET S -
settled HK$4 million during the year ended 31 March 2024 and is TZ_=F+tA=-+thBEF
negotiating for an extension as at year end date. Expected credit loss BT NEFE=H=+—
amounted to HK$8 million (2023: N/A) was provided as at 31 March T4BE&BITH A D RIA
2024, EREERBLESR - N —

=+—H  FHRBEHAGE
(ZB==F: NER) -

(g) As at 31 March 2024, the carrying amount of corporate note (99 R -_mFE= Ej;
receivables of approximately HK$361 million (2023: HK$361 million) EEBREEELGIASE)
was pledged to secure borrowings (note 29). fg): BIBEEBITIEERE

22. FEUTDHETRIE (1)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBHRERM T
For the year ended 31 March 2024 HZE—Z—MF=A=+—HILFE
23. PROPERTIES FOR DEVELOPMENT 23. ZERTPME
2024 2023
—E_mE TE=F
HK$ million HK$'million
BRET BEBTT
Land use rights TR AR 326 352
Note: FT5E

24.

158 Aceso Life Science Group Limited

The properties for development were related to a residential and commercial
mixed property development project located at Port Dickson, Negeri Sembilan,
Malaysia comprising 267,500 square meters (or 2,879,343 square feet). The
property is held from the government for a lease since 2019 and expiring on 8
February 2097 for residential and commercial building uses.

BRPYERM NN SRR RER KB RE
78 /3267 ,500°F 75 K (5(2,879,343F 5 IR) 2 (£
MEFRGAWMERRIBBEMR - MERBITHR
5 HEAZ-NFRIN_ZFALF_H
NBER  (EEEREEETRA -

TRADE RECEIVABLES 24. BHBEIRIEA
2024 2023
—E_E —E-=F
HK$ million HK$'million
BEEET BEAT
Trade receivables B 5 I GRIE
Rental income from construction machinery busingss 72 SR 2 75 2 T & WA 48 56
Less: Allowance for expected credit losses of B RBBRERMEE 2SI
trade receivables from rental income from ABE 5 e GRIE R TE S
construction machinery business EEEERE (12) (12)
36 44
Securities brokerage BHLEL 150 48
Less: Allowance for expected credit losses of trade 8 : 3K B #5442 B 5 FE UK
receivables from securities brokerage HHEHEEBERE (1) (1)
149 47
Rental income from leasing of investment properties  HFRIE &% 2 FHE WA 24 25
Less: Allowance for expected credit losses of B RBEEREYE 2HER
trade receivables from rental income from A E 5 KGR TE RS
leasing of investment properties EEEERE (1) (1)
23 24
208 115
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

eI RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2024 HZE—Z—_NF=A=+—HILtFE

24. TRADE RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

The Group allows an average credit period of 0-30 days to its trade
customers arising from construction machinery and sales of construction
materials business. The credit period provided to customers can be longer
based on a number of factors including the customer’s credit profile and
relationship with the customers. Before accepting any new customer, the
Group assesses the potential customer's credit quality and defines credit
limits by customer. Limits attributed to customers are reviewed regularly.
The Group has a policy for allowance for expected credit losses which
is based on the evaluation of the collectability and aging analysis of
accounts on every individual trade debtor basis and on the management’s
judgment including creditworthiness and the past collection history of
gach customer.

Trade receivables from cash and margin clients arising from commodities,
futures and securities brokerage business are repayable on demand
subsequent to settlement date. The margin clients of the securities
brokerage business are required to pledge their investments to the Group
for credit facilities for commodities, futures and securities trading.

The aging analysis by invoice date of trade receivables from rental income
from construction machinery business (other than rental income from
leasing of investment properties) before allowance for expected credit
losses is as follows:

. RAEBRIA R

IR B AR SN S iR SRR & R Y
BHEFPELTFH0BEMNEEY - AT
FREZEEHRXERETFHNEER LKL
HEPHNEREZHARMIER - £&X
ERFMEFH  AREFHEEEFPEE
BERREFPAEEERE - TPHIRER
HEERNRHN - AEEREGEREEER
BEBR  ENEARHERBIESER
ARRB B @Y K BR e 0 AT B 2 &Y
i MHEEEHEREPNERLBE
WERRLERFE L 2 HIB M AR SL ©

HEm  MENMESKLCEBELNRE
ReNRESEPNEZIRUSEESE
BRIZEKER  BEFELEBZRES
EPARARERTRE 2 IREAREE
EmEFEm  PHERIESFEER -

KEZERMEL 2 HEWARNE SR
FA(LHEREME 2 WARINRE
BEAM2 2 RE DT CRAKRIAHIE
EEEEEHWT

2024 2023

—Z=_mE —ETE=F

HK$ million HK$'million

BEERT BEAT

0-30 days 0-30H 13 12
31-60 days 31-60H 19 18
61-90 days 61-90H 1 4
91-180 days 91-180H 4 11
181-365 days 181-365H 4 9
Over 365 days HBiE365H 7 2
48 56
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRI

For the year ended 31 March 2024 HZE—Z—_NF=A=+—HILFE

24. TRADE RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED) 24. B HEUWFRIAGE)
The aging analysis by settlement date of trade receivables from securities REBHFLCLENE SR IBRELEEB
brokerage before allowance for expected credit losses is as follow: HZ2 7| 2 BRI DT CRINBRTEHE EEE
BE) T
2024 2023
ol Jol 1 3 —ZEC=F
HK$ million HK$'million
BEET BEET
0-30 days 0-30H 11 B
31-60 days 31-60H 39 2
61-90 days 61-90H 30 -
91-180 days 91-180H 2 10
181-365 days 181-365H 23 1
Over 365 days HBAE365H 45 30
150 48
All trade receivables on rental income from leasing of investment BEREHASHBEE  EKREMERE
properties are aged within 30 days based on the dates of rendering of Z B WARE Z W IER BRI 1E30
rental. RIAA ©
Details of impairment assessment of trade receivables are set out in note B 5 W IR R BT & 515 R M7 -
37.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A BRI

For the year ended 31 March 2024 HZE—Z—_NF=A=+—HILtFE

25. OTHER RECEIVABLES AND DEPOSITS 25. HthElgRIARET £
2024 2023
—E_mE —E-=F
Note HK$’million HK$'million
BIsE BHRET BEBT
Non-current assets FERENEE
Prepayment for acquisition of WHEMIZE - BB kB2
property, plant and equipment SENECE 9 2
Other non-current assets HtIEmeEE - 3
9 5
Current assets mEEE
Other receivables H {th fE U R IR 6 18
Deposits to financial institutions T RIEBTT (a) 2 5
Deposits and prepayments HEFSSENEEE 11 8
Less: Allowance for expected credit ~ J&t : TEHAZ B ES1EBE
loss (1) (1)
18 30
Total @5t 27 35
Note: 5T -
(a)  Deposits to financial institutions represented deposits for securities () SREEGTIEREFREALKHEEER
investment and trading of futures. Al e
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBHRERM T
For the year ended 31 March 2024 HZE—Z—MF=A=+—HILFE
26. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVTPL 26. IX’REFE%"I'EE.Eﬁ{bE‘I'lEﬁ
ZEMEE
2024 2023
—E_mE —EC-=F
HK$ million HK$'million
BHERET BEET
Listed equity securities ETRAES
— listed in Hong Kong -REELM 79 290
— listed in the UK - AR TR 4 -
Unlisted fund investment (note a) ELETESEE (H5Ta) 33 107
Unlisted debt instruments (note 7) EEMEF T - 15
Convertible note receivable (note b) R ES () 3 3
119 415
Notes: BsE

(@) Amount represented the investments in fund:

@) ZEBEENESZIRE:

2024 2023

—E_pmE T =F

HK$’million HK$'million

BEET BEAT

Atlantis China Fund Atlantis China Fund - 15

Riverwood Umbrella Fund Riverwood Umbrella Fund - 7

HT Riverwood Multi-Growth Fund (note i) HT Riverwood Multi-Growth Fund (Fff &) - 25
Kingdom Future Limited (“Kingdom Future”) wEAR A A ([FHE]) (T

(note ii) - 29

Finance Lease Investment SP Finance Lease Investment SP 33 31

33 107

162 Aceso Life Science Group Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
eI RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2024 HZE—Z—_NF=A=+—HILtFE

26. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVTPL (CONTINUED) 26. UAFEHEHRE(IARE

Z &Rl E (1)
Notes: (Continued) MisE : (8)
(a)  (Continued) (a) (#&)
Notes: (i)  During the year ended 31 March 2024, full amount of fist: () HEZZ-NEF=A=+—

investment in HT Riverwood Multi-Growth Fund was
redeemed.

In April 2021, HTICI entered into an acquisition
agreement with an independent third party to acquire
49% equity interests in Kingdom Future with a
consideration of approximately HK$321 million.
Kingdom Future, through its interests in a segregated
portfolio of Tisé Opportunities SPC, acquired shares
of New Gains Group Limited, a subsidiary of China
Evergrande Group, which owns Fangchebao Group Co.
Ltd*(E B = & E k5 B R A 7). The consideration
was settled by the allotment and issue of approximately
867 million shares of HTICI. The transaction was
completed in May 2021.

During the year ended 31 March 2024, full amount
of investment in Kingdom Future has been written off
due to the financial crisis and negative news of China
Evergrande Group.

B IEFE  BHT Riverwood
Multi-Growth Fund&y 2 5848 &
BB -

(i) R-ZE-——%FmA 2XH
BRERRER—ZEVE=
FEIZ W EHE - RREQ
SVIEBETHRENTEY
49% R o B FE B EATisé
Opportunities SPCHE 1% & 48
Az - WHENew Gains
Group Limited (fp BI1E K5 [®
ZHBAR  EREES
ERHDERDB ZEKG) -
REB B WEITHIL67
BERZRERERIEER
MR BRHGNRZF=—
FHAFEK °

REBEE-_ZET_WWF=A
—t+—BLFER ARE
mME#LPRERNEENE
FOHE  REBEMEZREERE
S o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBERRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2024 HZE—Z—_NF=A=+—HILFE

26. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVTPL (CONTINUED)

*

164 Aceso Life Science Group Limited

Notes: (Continued)

(b)

In June 2020, the Group entered into a subscription agreement and
shareholders’ agreement with Co-High Investment Management
Limited (“Co-High”), an independent third party, for the formation of
a joint venture (“JV 17) to undertake the business of development,
manufacture, sales and distribution of therapeutic and diagnostic assets
in the Greater China and South East Asia. The Group holds 51% in
this joint venture and the financial results will be consolidated into
the financial statements of the Group. In July 2020, JV 1 entered into
a JV Agreement with Promethera Biosciences S.A./N.V. (“Promethera
Biosciences”), an independent third party which was incorporated
under the laws of Belgium, for the formation of a joint venture (“JV
2"), which will have the exclusive right to engage in the development,
commercialisation, sell and distribution of cell-based and biological
therapies for the treatment of liver diseases, autoimmune diseases and
various types of cancer based on the applications and development of
contributed intellectual property of Promethera Biosciences in the Asia.
At the same time, the Group has conditionally agreed to subscribe for
convertible bonds of Promethera Biosciences in the principal amount
of up to Euro 10 million (equivalent to approximately HK$88 million)
in two equal tranches. In July 2020, the Group subscribed the first
tranche of Euro 5 million (equivalent to approximately HK$44 million).
The Group did not subscribe the second tranche of Euro 5 million
convertible bond subscription and the subscription agreement was
lapsed.

As Promethera Biosciences faced with litigations of claims and failed
to obtain sufficient funding to support its research and development
activities, by application lodged in January 2021, it requested
that a judicial reorganisation procedure be changed by collective
agreement of creditors in order to ensure that the continuity of its
business is preserved under the supervision of a delegated judge. The
reorganisation plan was approved by the Third Chamber of the Court
of the Enterprise of the Walloon Brabant in Belgium in March 2021.
Included in the reorganisation plan was the reduction of the rights of
creditors by 80% or provision for a payment of 20% payable in 5 years
(2% per year for the first 4 years and 12% in the fifth year), but with a
better fortune clause of up to 100% of the value as soon as the value
of Promethera Biosciences exceeds Euro 400 million at the time of its
monetisation.

As at 31 March 2024, the carrying amount of listed equity securities of
approximately HK$25 million (2023: HK$103 million) was pledged to
secure borrowings (note 29).

for identification purpose only
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26. UAFEHEAREHARR
Z EMEE ()

MsE - ()

(b)

RZZE_ZTFRA  AEEEBTE=
75 Co-High Investment Management Limited
([Co-HighDRT L REE W =2 R AR R 1%
UK —MEeEECETEEREIDR
AFERMEFMOTHEME  BE
HERDHABERLPHEEEK - &
SEBEEZEELE 2 B - HEt
BEEBRAEBZUBHREREE A
R -RZZE-_ZTFLA A& HEIH
REBELFEEZAMK L 2BIE=F
Promethera Biosciences S.A./N.V. ([Promethera
Biosciences)) 7] 3 & & g + LARBK . —fE
BEPE(TEEDRFE])  ZEERER
A BZRAER - RIEPromethera Biosciences
ZEEBANBERTRMN 2 ER K%
HEMAE  mEL - HEERIHEAKAE
BENEER B NEREZER
E B REMEE - BF - AEEE
ERHEREIMHEERBACERS
BINEERMIT(HENNSEEETL) 2
Promethera Biosciences Al A% (&% - M-
ZEFLR  AKECREE—HEE
BT (HERLMEEET) - AEEL
ERBE ISR ERITZ T RRES -
BREBHHE R -

i Promethera Biosciences B B X &
o BREESEMNESTIEERET
g HR T —F—AlRHeE - 2
KB BERAERIGRNE R AEHRE
o UBREREEEVEE TREE
¥R ZEEN o AR REMNITED
EERE—EN T - —F=A#EZ
EHE c EHEHEBERDEEA
80% 2 HEF| + SARERSFRZHF20%.2
JENRE(BAFTFEL 2% - F5FX
£412%) - HEfHPromethera Biosciences 2 (&
ERHEEE(LEBBI0EERT @ BlF]
EBBERSEI0% EBEIER -

R-ZZE_NMF=RA=+—H BEEMRE
TRAZBSRAENSBEET(CE
—=F 103EBELEREREZER
(F§7E29) ©



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
eI RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2024 HZE—Z—_NF=A=+—HILtFE

27. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND PLEDGED 2. BleRBREFRYMLREEREF
DEPOSITS A

2024 2023
—EMmF —T=F
HK$’million HK$'million
BERETT BEBTT
Pledged deposits (note a) EHEHFR (5T 15 30
Trusted and segregated bank accounts (note b) 15 5E M IBZ $R1TER P (Bi&ED) 4 554
Cash and cash equivalents RERRESEEY 350 187
Total Sy 369 771
Notes: Bz
(@)  The Group’s pledged bank deposits represented deposits pledged to () AEERZEERBTERESSVBR
banks to secure borrowings as set out in note 29 to the consolidated RIS A B E B MIEIR FRT
financial statements. TIEZ o
(b)  Trusted and segregated bank accounts represented clients’ accounts in b) EERBIBITESIEREEESE
the provision of asset management, securities brokerage, commodities, smoksman  pEa . HIE R H A4S RS
futures and other financial service business segment. RS IR P RIE o
(c)  Asat 31 March 2024, the bank and cash balances of the Group € R-ZT-_WME=A=+—H KNEE
denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”) amounted to HK$24 million (2023: ARB(TARM DHEZRITRIES
HK$30 million). Conversion of RMB into foreign currencies is subject BAUFEET(ZE-—=F 3085
to the PRC’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations. TT) o 48 A REL 5 i A HN kS B 5 oh B AN E

B HIERGIFTARR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A KRR MEE
For the year ended 31 March 2024 HZE—Z—MF=A=+—HILFE
28. LEASE LIABILITIES 28. HE &R
Present value of lease
Lease payments payments
HEFR™® HERRZHE
2024 2023 2024 2023
—E_NE —_T-=F ZEBNE —_T_=F
HK$’million HK$'million  HK$’million HK$'million
BEREET S&88%T GOB#ET #Es5T
Within one year —FRA 10 15 10 14
In the second to fifth years, inclusive S -—FEEZFRF(ER
EBIEER) 10 i15 9 15
20 30 19 29
Less: Future finance charges W RRREER (1) (1) NAFER NATER
Present value of lease obligations HEEFEZHAE 19 29 19 29
Less: Amount due for settlement B M2 B AR EIERE
within 12 months (shown 2z 25HRE
under current liabilities) BEE TR (10) (14)
Amount due for settlement after 12~ #M2 (@ BB R EEN 2
months ] 9 15

At 31 March 2024, the average effective borrowing rate was 4.00% to
4.88% (2023: 1.78% to 4.84%). Interest rates are fixed at the contract
dates and thus expose the Group to fair value interest rate risk.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2024 HZE—Z—_NF=A=+—HILtFE

29. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS 29. BITRHEMES
2024 2023
—E_mE —E-=F
HK$’million HK$'million
BHRET BEAL
Bank borrowings IRITEE 682 663
Loans from other financial institutions (note g) ~ Hth & @& & 2 B (Fizkg) 978 1,080
1,660 1,743
Representing: 35
Current ED 1,633 1,702
Non-current FETRED 27 4
1,660 1,743
The borrowings are repayable as follows: BEERBRAT :
On demand or within one year REXRSIRN—FA 1,633 1,702
Between 1 and 2 years 15226 19 22
Between 2 and 5 years 2E5F 8 19
1,660 1,743
Less: Amount due for settlement within 12 months J& : 712 & B AZIEAEN 2 & %8
(shown under current liabilities) (RRBABEIE NFIR) (1,633) (1,702)
Amount due for settlement after 12 months M2 B R & EIEEN 2 258 27 4
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBERRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2024 HZE—Z—MF=A=+—HILFE

29. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)

29. |ITREMER ()

Notes: ﬁﬁﬁf c
(@)  The average interest rates at 31 March were as follows: (@ MR=ZA=+—BHZFHFERLOT :
2024 2023
—EMmE —T—=
Bank borrowings RITIEE 6.01% 6.03%
Loans from other financial institutions Eith S it 2 5K 4.21% 4.92%
(b)  Borrowings arranged at fixed interest rates are as follows: (b) BEEMEFEZMEEMT
2024 2023
—EBE_NE —E-=F
HK$’million HK$'million
BEET BEAT
Bank borrowings RITEE 10 12
Loans from other financial institutions EHith SR 2 5K 978 1,080
988 1,092

The Group’s variable rate borrowings carry interest ranged from 4.23%
t0 8.93% (2023: from 2.33% to 8.08%).

AEBEZZHFEEERN T4.23%=E
8.93%(ZZFE =4 : 2.33%%=8.08%) &I F
KEHB o

(c)  The directors estimate the fair values of the Group’s borrowings (c) EZMEEH AEBEEZATEEEER
approximate the carrying values of the borrowings. ZIREBERS
(d)  Bank and other borrowings of HK$1,614 million (2023: HK$1,731 (d) HRITREMEFI4EAEST(ZE-_=
million) are secured. As at 31 March 2024, the carrying amounts FANBEEAT)EER - R=Z= =W
of financial and non-financial assets of the Group which have been F=A=1+—RA ' ERETRITEE
pledged as security for certain bank borrowings and loans from other HthSREB ERER I AEES
financial institutions are as follows: RIECREE ZREMBEQNT
2024 2023
—E_mE —E-=
HK$’million HK$'million
BEE#ET BEET
Investment properties A 1,458 1,518
Corporate note receivables FEUT > FE IR 361 361
Property, plant and equipment LE VY 106 125
Financial assets at FVTPL ARAFEEGE B HB LR ABR
ZERMBEE 25 103
Pledged bank deposits BRI TR 15 30
Total assets pledged as security ERER 2 B EERE 1,965 2,137
(e)  Certain other borrowings of the Group amounting to HK$117 million () AREETAMEBINTABET(CE
(2023: HK$406 million) are secured by shares of HTICI held by the —=F A6 BET) LIAARERAE
Group. 2 ERBIRERITE B 1EHEA -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
eI RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2024 HZE—Z—_NF=A=+—HILtFE

29. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)

Notes: (Continued)

()

As at 31 March 2023, certain financial covenant on bank borrowings
of HK$500 million were not meet. A financial covenant waiver letter
in respect of borrowing of HK$367 million was received on 20 June
2023. The Board of Directors considers such incident did not have any
materiel impact to the financial position and operation of the Group.

During the year ended 31 March 2024, the Group breached certain
of the financial covenant terms of two bank borrowings with carrying
amounts of HK$364 million as at 31 March 2024, which are primarily
related to the amount of shareholder’s equity. On discovery of
the breach, the directors of the Company informed the lender and
commenced a renegotiation of the financial covenant terms of the loan
with the relevant banker. Since the relevant bank borrowings contain a
repayment on demand clause, the borrowings have been classified as
current liabilities as at 31 March 2024.

Up to the date of approval for issuance of the consolidated financial
statements, the negotiations are still in progress. The directors of
the Company are confident that their negotiations with the lender
will ultimately reach a successful conclusion. In any event, should
the lender call for immediate repayment of the loan, the directors of
the Company believe that adequate alternative sources of finance are
available to ensure that there is no threat to the continuing operations
of the Group.

The loans from other financial institutions mainly represented
mortgage loan of properties located in the United Kingdom (note 16).

29. RITRHMER ()
T ()

()

RZE-_=F=A=+—H  5008&#
TTHSRITEEMNE TH KRR E5E
MR -HEE_=ZFA=-+H " &M
WE —HENRITE BB THEEN
BROHEE - ESERAZEHEAE
EENHER D MEERBEMERY

@ .
=

REBE-_Z_HNF=ZA=1+—HLF
B R -ZE-mF=A=+—BKH
ERGIBEEBTHMBRITEREMS -
AEBEERTRITEES THBROK
R ZEGRFRIBREARRESSRA
B o BIEMNR  ARREFABMNERK
A - X FIR EARRIIRTT B RE R B R
BRAGTR - ARERRITEESSE
HERERX RB-OF=A=+—
B ZEERCREBE/RBAE -

BEMETRGEMBHRER 2B L #
HINEETZH - RARABEFHEE - K
& B R B R AL A BT (B W A
U o SN - W ERA BRI BAMER
B ARREZHEBERANERE
SRR - AIARRARENFEELDT

XBE -

Hitv S BB EREE 2 AN E
B RIZIBE K (FIRE6)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBERRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2024 HZE—Z—_NF=A=+—HILFE

30. CORPORATE NOTE PAYABLES

30. EMEERE

2024 2023

—E_mE —EC-=F

HK$ million HK$'million

BRET BEBTT

Current portion MENER 420 435

Non-current portion FETTED 100 137

520 572

Notes: BfsE

(@) InJanuary 2018, the Group entered into a subscription agreement with (@ ZZE—NF—A AEEE-—FBHIF

an independent third party (the “2018 Noteholder”) for the note with
principal amount of HK$350 million (the “2018 Note”). The maturity
date of the 2018 Note was five years after the issue date and bore
fixed coupon rate at 9.75% per annum. Pursuant to the terms of the
subscription agreement, the Group may redeem the 2018 Note within
five years from the issue date. The 2018 Note was secured by certain
equity interests in subsidiaries. The redemption amount of the 2018

Note would be:

=H(ZE-NEEREADRAEHE
ABVEEBTNERR LRBE (=
Z-NRED) - ARENIHA
RBITABRELSE  ULETEREFF
EIT5%ET R o RIFRBBEHARIGK - A
SEARBETEMEALFAER _F
—NEE - —Z-NEBUETHER
RIZRHEVEERMR - — T - \REENED

if the redemption was made on the date falling:

SRS

R AT A EEEE

applicable rate

HAE
the first anniversary of the issue date BITHHE (@RS 103.00%
the second anniversary of the issue date BITHHE —(@BF 106.35%
the third anniversary of the issue date BITHHE=(EAF 110.15%
the fourth anniversary of the issue date BT HHEMERS 114.35%
the fifth anniversary of the issue date BITHHRERERS 119.10%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
eI RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2024 HZE—Z—_NF=A=+—HILtFE

30. CORPORATE NOTE PAYABLES (Continued)

31.

30. FEM &R (M)

Notes: (Continued) MI5E : (8)
(a)  (Continued) @ (&
The Group entered into an early redemption agreement (the AEBR _ZE-_—_FA+HHE_FT
“Redemption Agreement”) with the 2018 Noteholder on 10 June 2022, —NRBEFE ARG TRERAER WHZE
pursuant to which the Group and the 2018 Noteholder agreed to the (TEEmZD Bt AEERE_-F
early repayment of the 2018 Note at the principal amount and interest —N\EBRFBEARBRINEE=-Z—N
payables of HK$350 million and HK$20 million respectively and the ZBROAES RERFE - H5/A3B08 &
2018 Noteholder agreed to waive the redemption premium. On 17 BITK2,0008E T - HZE—N\RER
June 2022, date of settlement of the 2018 Note, the Group recognised EARERERBESEE RZT-_=F
interest payable and redemption premium payable of HK$20 million ANATER - -AZE-N\EEBREEAR
and HK$54 million respectively. Pursuant to the Redemption AEBRERENFEREMBERSED
Agreement, the redemption premium payable of HK$54 million has B 52,0008 %8 7T &5,4008 7 7T - IRIEE
been waived resulted in gain on early redemption of HK$54 million for B % - EAERREL 08B TEE
the year ended 31 March 2023. e BEREE2023F3IANAILFER
FHEE Y 5540088 T ©
On 17 June 2022, the Group issued a note with principal amount of RZZEZZFXA++EH REEBT
HK$370 million (the “2022 Note”) to provide funds to settle the 2018 AEBEANEEBELHNER(ZZ ==
Note. The 2022 Note is repayable on 16 September 2023, interest EEDURELE-_ZT—NEEHE
bearing at 8.5% and secured by certain equity interests in subsidiaries. & B —ERANR_ET_=FNA
FNBEE - %85%TE - WUWEA
AIEE T IRBEEIRR o
(b)  Remaining notes with aggregated principal amounts of HK$150 million b) FHREBRASHEBARINEEET(ZE
(2023: HK$202 million) bear interests ranging from 4% to 9% (2023:; ZEF D 202EBELIRFEFENT4%
7% 10 9.75%) per annum with mature dates between January 2022 to B9 (ZTE_=F : 1%E9.75%):T 8
January 2026 (2023: between January 2022 to December 2024). BRZBEZZF—AEZF=_"F—A
(ZBE—=F: ZE-_—_F— &%
ZHE+TZ AR -
TRADE PAYABLES 31. BHEFMRIRA
The aging analysis of trade payables, based on the date of receipt of BOENZBERBENEBEEY ZERS
goads, is as follows: i OENE
2024 2023
—E_E —E-=F
HK$’million HK$'million
BEAET BEETT
Within 30 days 30H A 2 2
31 to 60 days 31E60H 2 2
61 to 180 days 61Z=180H 1 7
181 to 360 days 1812360 H - 2
QOver 360 days HBiB360H 1 -
6 13

—ITo=H/I—NEFE SREHNBREEARAT 17



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBERRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2024 HZE—Z—MF=A=+—HILFE

32. OTHER PAYABLES, DEPOSITS RECEIVED AND 32. HWEMRIA - ST & R ER
ACCRUALS BH

2024 2023

—ZE_ME —E-=F

HK$ million HK$'million

BEAET BEBTT

Margin deposits payable to clients arising from  EAE B R M® ~ HEMEHFELHE
commodities, futures and securities brokerage B RE D (M:Fa)

(note a) 5 555
Contract liabilities (note b) A8 EFEED) 2 4
Accruals FEFTE A 13 18
Interests payables FERTF S 44 44
Provision for liabilities arising from financial NATEFEAHES T ABREZ

assets at FVTPL (note 7) S RVE EE A RESEE D) 27 -
Others Hith 38 45

129 666
Notes: BfsE
(a)  Margin deposits received from clients for their trading of commodities () HEEIMERBAEEOBEKEFRESR
and futures contracts were payable on demand. BERFTNT -
(b) (b)
As at As at As at
31 March 31 March 31 March
2024 2023 2022

RIEZNE R-T-=F R-T-=F
=R=+—HB =A=+—H =A=+—H
HK$’million HK$'million HK$'million
BEEET BEAT BEBT

Contract liabilities — advances received from  A#EE-FEWEFEZIE

customers 2 4 2
2024 2023

R-E_MEF RZEZ=%F

HK$ million HK$'million

BRET BEATT

Revenue recognised in the year that was included in  REFFTF A A E B 2 FAHER
contract liabilities at beginning of year A 4 2
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A BRI

For the year ended 31 March 2024 HZE—Z—_NF=A=+—HILtFE

32. OTHER PAYABLES, DEPOSITS RECEIVED AND  32.

ACCRUALS (CONTINUED)

Notes: (Continued)

HAtfE M RIA - CUET & & FEat
BH R

BizE : (&)

(b)

(Continued)

Transaction prices allocated to performance obligations unsatisfied at
end of year and expected to be recognised as revenue in:

(b)

(&)

RERDBEERERBOEELTBHR
UNTEEERBBAZZHE :

2024 2023
ot o 11 - 3 —E-=F
HK$’million HK$'million
BE#ET BEBT
2024 —EUEF - 18
2025 —E-RF 11 -
11 18

Significant changes in contract liabilities during the year: FREHNEBEZENEE) -
2024 2023
—E_pF k=
HK$’million HK$'million
BEET BEBT
Increase due to operations in the year REGREREEMIE M 21 40
Transfer of contract liabilities to revenue BERENBERRA 23 38

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to transfer
products to a customer for which the Group has received consideration

BHBEEEAEEREREFRE (KR
Bz MESB) MABEERTEP

(or an amount of consideration is due) from the customer.

ZEE-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBmRME
For the year ended 31 March 2024 #EHZE_—ZFT_NF=-A=+—HILtFE
33. DEFERRED TAX 33. EIERIA
The following are the major deferred tax liabilities and assets recognised UWTARSEMERC T EELEHBEEE
by the Group. NEE -
Fair valug
adjustments on
froperty, plant
and equipment,
intangible assels  Fair vaue change of
Recelerated tax Right-otuse ~ and investment  investment held for
Lease liabilties Tax losses depreciation assgls properties Hrading Total
Y% BER
iR ErEE
i il RREHRE  GRERRR
BRAR HRER HRiE & ZLTEEE  Z0TEEE i
kS milion kS milion HiSmilion HiSmilion HiSmilion HiSmilion HiSmilion
B B B B B BERT LS
Asat 1 Apil 202 N-E_EmA-A 4 5 () (4 (B1) i (30)
(Charge) e toprft orloss or e EARRERS (AT /31
e = () 3 = 3 9 1
Echengedignmen BELS - - - - 2 - 2
It Mach 030 1 Apil 203 R-E-=%=f=1-A
k-2-EmA-A ! # 0 M (1 ) (8
(Chaed)redied oot o oss r e EAAAERSCI8) /5
e 1) 1 1 | U
Euchangs algnment [ - - if (1)
As i 31 March 2024 R-F-mE=A=1-H 3 % (29) () (57) 8 (26)
The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances (after offset) for MEEHBRRAERME - BEFRIBLAH
consolidated statement of financial position purposes: (KB 2T -
2024 2023
ot~ 1 - 3 —E-=F
HK$’million HK$'million
BEET BEETT
Deferred tax assets BER IR A B 58 54
Deferred tax liabilities EIERIA A& (84) (100)
(26) (46)

No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of HK$274 million
(2023: HK$202 million) of unutilised tax losses dug to the unpredictability
of future profit streams. Included in unrecognised tax losses are losses of
HK$45 million (2023: HK$54 million) that will expire in one to five years.

Other tax losses may be carried forward indefinitely.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

eI RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2024 HZE—Z—_NF=A=+—HILtFE

34. FINANCIAL LIABILITIES AT FVTPL 34. l».'&fFiE%’rEﬂE@{hE’rliEﬁ
ZeEMmER
2024 2023
—E_mE —EC-=F
HK$’million HK$'million
BHRET BEAL
Non-current FETRED
Corporate note payable TR 539 578

In January 2021, the Group completed the acquisition of Alcott Global
Limited (“AGL") which held 22% interest in CESIZ (note 18), and issued
note with principal amount of HK$850 million as part of the consideration.
The note has a maturity date of 3 years from the date of issue, subject to
the extension at the option by the Group at their sole discretion. The note
bears 5% interests per annum, subject to the satisfaction of (i) having
received audited financial statement of CESIZ prepared under HKFRS; and
(ii) the return on net assets of CESIZ, calculated by dividing net profit after
tax over net assets, for the previous financial year achieved 20% or more.
The repayment of principal and interest (if any) shall be made (1) only
if and when the Group has received cash payment of dividend declared
by CESIE; or (2) out of proceeds if and when the Group has disposed of
its shares in AGL or the immediate holding Company of AGL; or (3) out
of proceeds if and when AGL has disposal of its shares in CESIE. The
corporate note is a contingent consideration payable by the Group which is
carried at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in consolidated
profit or 10ss.

—EZ—F—A AEBEEXNKERE
CESIZ(FT7E18)22% A% #E Y Alcott Global Limited
(TAGL)) BT AR ABIAS BT ZE
BIEREHNRE - ZEZEBEMIIEB BT
BHIRF=F THASENBEEL
R - ZEBIEFBI%TE » HAFAUT
& ()EWBIREE B RS LR
BIMCESIZAE B 5Tk + (i) = — B
FECESIZAFEER R (BB FFE
BrUVFEBEFTE)ER20%HA L - Xe R
FE @B EN)ERAEBWECESIZIE R
HIRSIF ¢ R (2)EAEE H EHRAGL
SAGLEEIER A A MR D B E) B BT 1S X
18 5 o(3)FEAGL M & H AACESIZHI AR 17 BF &)
RS HIAEE - RAREBREAEBER
ZHBRE  BAFENME R FEED

BPNGN=EiFi
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBERRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2024 HZE—Z—_NF=A=+—HILFE

35. SHARE CAPITAL 35. &%
Number of shares
SE4E
Note (‘million) HK$'million
BRE (B8R BEATT
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each & f%0.0178 70 2 E @M%
Authorised: ERE
As at 1 April 2022, 31 March RZE-—_FWA—Q =&
2023 and 31 March 2024 T=F=A=+—Hk=ZT=MW
F=HA=+—H 50,000 500
Issued and fully paid: ERITRBE :
As at 1 April 2022 R-E-—FMA—H 7,387 74
Cancellation of share B& 17 5 Y (a) (5) (1)
As at 31 March 2023 and R-ZZE-_=%=A=+—HK
1 April 2023 “E-=#mA—H 7,382 73
As at 31 March 2024 R-E-_MHF=A=+—H 7,382 73
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
eI RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2024 HZE—Z—_NF=A=+—HILtFE

35. SHARE CAPITAL (CONTINUED)

36.

Note:

()

During the year ended 31 March 2023, certain subsidiaries of the
Company purchased 52,980,000 shares of the Company from the
market. The total amount paid to acquire the shares was HK$9 million
and has been deducted from the shareholders’ equity. The related
weighted average price at the time of buy-back was HK$0.168 per
share.

During the year ended 31 March 2023, the Company cancelled
5,040,000 shares of the Company.

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and to maximise the
return to the shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity
balance.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

(a)

Share award

HTICI adopted a share award scheme(the “Share Award Scheme”)
on 24 April 2020. The purposes of the Share Award Scheme are
(a) to recognise the contributions by selected participants and to
provide them with incentives in order to retain them; and (b) to
attract the right talents for promoting the future development and
expansion of the group, with a view to achieving the objective of
increasing the value of the group by motivating the participants
to strive for the continual operation and future development and
expansion of the group and aligning the interests of the participants
and the shareholders of HTICI.

Pursuant to the scheme rules, the board of HTICI may determine
other specific vesting criteria, conditions and the time when the
awards shall vest. The award share (the “Award Shares”) are vested
in three equal tranches of which: (a) 1/3 of the Award Shares under
the award shall be vested in the first calendar year after the offer
date during a period of continuous service with the group; (b) 1/3
of the Award Shares under the award shall be vested in the second
calendar year of continuous service with the group after the offer
date; (c) 1/3 of the Award Shares under the award shall be vested
in the third calendar year of continuous service with the group after
the offer date.

35. Bx#&(i&)

36.

BsE
(@)

BE_ZT-_=F=A=+—HIFE "
ARAAIETHBRAAEMS LED
52,980,0008% & X RIBE1D © UREB RS B 1T
BEEAIAE AT C AR RERSF
B o BRI Z AR NETEIER AR
0.1687 7T °

BE-_ZT-_=F=A=+—HILFE "
RN B RE$H5,040,00008 AN A BIRR 15 ©

AEEEEEAR BRAREAEERE
REZE  WiBBRIERRBRAF
& RERRFEERAEE

LIz R e X

(a)

B {7 SE W

EREBRERBRECR_ZE_ZF
U A =+ BN R ETEI (T
M EEEED) - BRI EEETEIE M A
QETETLHEEENZER I
BREEREEHUBERS » &)
WalEEZ AT UIRHERER K
RERMAEFTES  SEBBHE
28ELSRNEFBFTELLEUREKR
RREETESMB DEBIRAR
SEEEMNEE  TEEFREE
%%%ﬁ%%%&ﬁ%%Zﬂéﬁ
e

REBETEIRA - EREFERIKE
EEgeNETHMRTERBEE
fiR 1 N SR B SR S ] o AREIASLED (128
BB DA =#HEREE - HF : (a)
RENIA T 21 3RER DR HER
AEBE R MEAEZD B HEREE
BFHE : (b)IZZE)TA T 21/358EE A
MEEENBHERBESANEER
BeE _EAEFRE  (ORBRTZ
1BRBBNEEZNERRFES
AEERG 2 E=(AEFHE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRI

For the year ended 31 March 2024 HZE—Z—MF=A=+—HILFE

36. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (CONTINUED)
(a) Share award (Continued)

Movement and details of the award shares during the year are as

36. LIB% {7z 13k (#8)

(a) RefnBEMh(48)

AREEEBRGRBIT -

follows:
Number of award shares
EmkHA®E
24 April 2020 29 June 2020 Total
—E-Ef “E-ZF
mA=+mA ~BZ+hAH #t
million million million
BER BER BER
Ouistanding as at 1 April 2022~ R=Z=—FMA—HEARE 17 43 60
Vested during the year AEEHE (8) (22) (30)
Lapsed/cancelled during the year 2R/ 5K,/ 31 84 2) - )
Outstanding as at 31 March 2028 R=—ZE-_=F=A=+—HK
and 1 April 2023 “E-=FNA-BRARE 7 21 2
Vested during the year AEERE () 1) (28)
Ouistanding as at 31 March 2024 A=Z-MF=A=1—H k&K H = = =
Share price at date of grant (HKS) 7 B 1 2 IR (B (A TT) 0.246 0.148
Fair value t date of grant REHASZ AEE
(HK$ million) (BBHT) 48 10
2024 2023
ot~ 1 - 3 —EC-=F
HK$’million HK$'million
BEET BEAT
Share-based payment expenses RROFAARAS - 2
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A BRI

For the year ended 31 March 2024 HZE—Z—_NF=A=+—HILtFE

36. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (CONTINUED) 36. LIBk{nfiz\ 3k (#8)
(a) Share award (Continued) (a) BefnBEmh (48
Details of the specific categories of award shares are as follows: ERMER  RERM BT -
2024 2023

—ECME —T-—4F
Numbers of Numbers of

Date of grant Vesting period share awards  share awards
BRiREEm  Ax{D 2R

J|HEM HEH ®BH A
(million) (million)

(B®ER) (BER)

24 April 2020 —E T4 24 April 2020- —E-FFNA-—+NAERE
MAZ=+mHE 24 April 2023 “E-=FPA=+EAH - 7
29June 2020 —E-TF 29 June 2020— —E-FEFRAZTNAHEZE
NAZ+hB  29June 2023 “E-=FXXAZ+NH - 21
- 28
As at 31 March 2024, Fok Chi Tak, the executive director of the HE-_Z-WF=H Eji—— B &
Company and HTICI, did not hold any (2023: 20 million) share RNAIRZRBBREREENTES
awards. ErmEgmEg(CE2 =4 2,000

BB 228
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRI

For the year ended 31 March 2024 HZE—Z—MF=A=+—HILFE

36. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b)

180 Aceso Life Science Group Limited

Emolument shares

Movement of the emolument shares granted by HTICI during the

36. LIB% {7z 13k (#8)

(b) BB

FA - EREREZREERH 2 B

year are as follows: SROEEWT -
Emolument
Shares
BA & B%
6 October
2020
t- Jad- 32
+A7KH
Qutstanding as at 1 April 2022 R-ZBEZZFMA—BEARRT 6
Vested during the year rEEHB (3)
QOutstanding as at 31 March 2023 R-E-_=F=A=1+—HK
and 1 April 2023 —E-=FMNA—HHAEH 3
Vested during the year rFEERB )
Lapsed/cancelled during the year RNEFFRB T (1)
Outstanding as at 31 March 2024 RZZEZMF=HA=+—HEREH =
Share price at date of grant (HK$) REL BB RECET) 0.395
Fair value at date of grant (HK$ million) REHBHZ A FEBEEST) 3
2024 2023
—E_E —E-=F
HK$’million HK$'million
BEET BEBT
Share-based payment expenses AR FE A A 2 - 1
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2024 HZE—Z—_NF=A=+—HILtFE

36. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (CONTINUED) 36. LIBRIpH = £+ ¥k (¥8)
(b) Emolument shares (Continued) (b) BAEBXD (&
Details of the specific categories of emolument shares are as BBl MEROHFIBAOT -
follows:
2024 2023
—E_mE —E-=F
Number of Number of
emolument emolument
Date of grant Vesting period shares shares
#THAHE RER &z inEsE BleRmHEAE
6 October 2020 6 October 2020 — 6 October 2023 (note) = 3
—ZT-FF+HNXKE —ZTTF+HARERE
—E-=F+H;xAEIFD
Note: BiRE -
These emolument shares were granted to Mr. Xu Lin and Mr. Wei e lRmx T2 REBERIEEEHNTT
Bin (resigned on 1 April 2023), as part of their emolument as non- EEIMAEERBBEE(RZT==F
executive directors of HTICI. If Mr. Xu Lin and Mr. Wei Bin ceases to MA—BEHE)  1EREME—&5 - M
be a director of HTICI for any reason before any vesting date, Mr. Xu RIS A K BRE, S A FE (R 53 B B B AT
Lin and Mr. Wei Bin shall be entitled to receive a pro rata portion of EEMEEMIBEERREBRERE
the emolument shares calculated on the basis of the number of days BEE - B EMEE L EEERE
worked by Mr. Xu Lin and Mr. Wei Bin. BB SR G - sTEEER
A RBDRSSEZ TIEEE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBERRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2024 HZE—Z—_NF=A=+—HILFE

36. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (CONTINUED)

(c)

182 Aceso Life Science Group Limited

Share options

During the year ended 31 March 2021, the Company had granted
approximately 609 million share options entitling Co-High
Investment Management Limited (“Co-High”), an independent
third party, to subscribe for the Company's shares at the price
of HK$0.25 per option share (subject to adjustments) during the
period from 9 July 2020 to 9 July 2023. The share options have
no vesting period. An amount of approximately HK$39 million was
recognised as share-based payment expenses in respect of this
share option during the year ended 31 March 2021.

The share options have no movement during the year and was
expired in July 2023 (2023: remaining contractual life of 0.3 year).
609 million share options were exercisable as at 31 March 2023.

No option was exercised before its expiration.

Share options do not confer rights on the holder to dividends or to
vote at shareholders’ meetings.

Annual Report 2023/24
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
eI RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2024 HZE—Z—_NF=A=+—HILtFE

37. FINANCIAL AND CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT 37. EMREEFEEER
2024 2023
—E-mF —E-=F
HK$’million HK$'million
BHRET BEET
Financial assets SREE
Financial assets at FVTOCI UAFETEBEE LA AR
ZHWEZ ERMEE 447 801
Financial assets at FVTPL WAFEFEEEE(LTABR Y
EREE 119 415
Other financial assets Hiv &l &EE 1 =
Financial assets at amortised cost BEERRIR REE
Loan receivables FEUE R 47 145
Finance lease receivables BB E R GRIE 1 2
Corporate note receivables R 501 507
Cash and cash equivalents and pledged ~ 3R& MIREFBYA K
bank deposits EEIPIRITER 369 77
Trade receivables B 5 B GRIE 208 115
Other receivables and deposits HEMEBRIBE R £ 17 26
1,710 2,782
Financial liabilities SMARF
Financial liabilities at FVTPL AT EFEBEBE ABRC
THBE 539 578
Financial liabilities at amortised cost REERASR 2B E
Bank and other borrowings RITREMEER 1,660 1,743
Corporate note payables ERNTERE 520 572
Trade payables B 5 E IR 6 13
Other payables and accruals HEMENRIENRETER 127 662
Lease liabilities HEAE 19 29
2,871 3,597
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRI

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #EHZE_—ZFT_NF=-A=+—HILtFE

37. FINANCIAL AND CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT 37. MR EXEEEE(IE)
(CONTINUED)
Details of the financial instruments are disclosed in respective notes. TR ITAFBEMEBEWNEESE - H2E5e
The risks associated with these financial instruments include market risk BT EAEBEAMERBREMSRER (R ER
(interest rate risk and other price risk), credit risk, and liquidity risk. The BEkEMERLRR)  FEERREABE
policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out below. The management R o AT EY 2R %SZ%ELI%?E’UEZ
of the Group manages and monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate Ko AEEEEEHZ iﬂ[ﬁﬁiﬁ’ﬁ@
measures are implemented in a timely and effective manner. BEVE - DARRIR MR A UL IREUE B 15 4 ©
Market risk h % &, B
Interest rate risk F1 22 R P
The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk in relation to pledged AREEAHAAEERBITERGR

bank deposits (see note 27), fixed-rate bank and other borrowings (see
note 29 for details of these borrowings) and lease liabilities (see note 28
for details). The Group is also exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in
relation to variable-rate bank balances (see note 27 for details), variable-
rate bank borrowings (see note 29 for details). The Group cash flow
interest rate risk is mainly concentrated on the fluctuation of interest rates
on bank balances and HIBOR arising from the Group’s Hong Kong dollar
denominated borrowings. The Group manages its interest rate exposures
by assessing the potential impact arising from any interest rate movements
based on interest rate level and outlook. The management will review the
proportion of borrowings in fixed and floating rates and ensure they are
within reasonable range.

fiEE27) - ERRITREMEE(ZEEBE
E?%’I%ﬁﬂﬁuf%)LA&?EEEE(%%BH&ZS)
ZAFENERRE - NEETATEE#H
FRIRITHES GERM 2N RF BIRTTE
EFRAWE2) 2R eRMERRE - A&
Bz Re&RMNERREREEEPRIFITLHER
MERAREBABTTFHEZ B EPTE S
EARTRAERS 2K - REE@BIR
TJ%A”L‘JT*EF&@L BREAERIEIES o) -3
WEEXBERANXER - BEE R
AESEENEEEELEX  BRAES
BEHER -

TL‘Z@SN‘}E PPN AE R EE
REETE - FEEENNRITREERE
TJXQ@JPA&T%UE\%%QZ%% °

The sensitivity analysis below demonstrates the effect of the interest
differences by a 1% change on variable rate borrowings and bank and
pledged deposits, assuming all other variables were held constant.

Carrying amount Impact on post-tax loss

REE HRgBERzTE
2024 2023 2024 2023
—EomME —T-o-—F ZEINMFE —_T--F
HK$’million HK$'million HK$’million HK$'million
BEEET ©B8%T HBHE#ESRT B85
Floating-rate borrowings FEEE (672) (651) (6) (3)
Bank and pledged deposits RITREEBIFR 15 30 - —

184 Aceso Life Science Group Limited  Annual Report 2023/24



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
eI RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2024 HZE_—Z—NF=A=+—HILFE

37. FINANCIAL AND CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT 37. &Mk EFREEE ()

(CONTINUED)
Other price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk through its investments in
equity securities measured at FVTPL and FVTQCI. For equity securities
measured at FVTPL and FVTOCI which are quoted in the Stock Exchange,
the management of the Group manages this exposure by maintaining a
portfolio of investments with different risks. The Group has appointed a
special team to monitor the price risk and will consider hedging the risk
exposure should the need arise.

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on the exposure
to listed equity securities price risks at the end of the reporting period. The
sensitivity analysis included those financial assets at FVTPL and financial
assets at FVTQCI. If the prices of the respective equity investment included
in financial assets at FVTPL and FVTOCI had been 10% higher/lower,
assuming all other variables were held constant, the impact to the Group
would be as follows:

Hfih {545 B B

AEERKREFBANTEFASEEE L
APARBREMARHEFERERLT AR
b2 EEFT ENRAR S MAZ RAE
RER - RRE T RENARFEE
BRI ABRRARTEFEEEE
LRt AR b2 EEEZ BARSZME » &
‘EEI EEEBBBEFAETRRER KE
BEENERR - AEEEESRR
Zﬁ*? B - AT R E EEH
RO e

IATERBRE DT IRBERE RAEAS
MIRAZFEBREARET - HRESTE
BARTFEAEARS ARG Z SR
BERNMATFEAZEEEE(LHAEMS
EREZ CREE - WARAFEFERR
ﬁgﬁ{tnﬂ—)\%g/\&lf/\ EF{EE-I_EHE ’ftu-l—
AHMEERRZ @REEME = HEAR
RIEE 2 BRIGI,RA10% - REBEFFAE
HihW 88T  EUAEE ZEN
™

2024 2023
—E-—mE —E=F
HK$’million HK$'million
BHERET BEET
Impact on loss/profit after tax ;ﬁﬂ{éﬁiﬂ@/ il =2 +10% 7 24
Financial assets at FVTPL NEEFEEHEE(EA
%a ST SRBE -10% (7) (24)
Impact on FVTOCI reserve HARFEFEAHEZEEA
ﬁﬁﬂiﬁuﬁz SRy +10% 1 2
Financial assets at FVTOCI N EF=EEHEE(EA
ﬁﬁﬂiﬁﬂﬁl S BB E -10% (1) )
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRI

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #EHZE_—ZFT_NF=-A=+—HILtFE

37. FINANCIAL AND CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT 37. MR EXEEEE(IE)
(CONTINUED)
Credit risk and impairment assessment 15 55 3 B B ik (B AT 4
Credit risk refers to the risk that the Group’s counterparties default on their CERREASBSFARESHETE
contractual obligations resulting in financial losses to the Group. The Zﬁ%ﬁ$’§lﬁ§iﬁ7ﬁk?§9€mﬂ o K&
Group’s credit risk exposures are primarily attributable to trade and other EnEERREZHSANE S REMRE

Y IE&J% EWER - mETHE RN
R EREERE - D EMRTER
RITEBRMARHEFEL RS AR
M EB TR - AEEWESA EFAHEM
uu_zﬁ1ﬁ1;ﬁi‘§§1ﬂb{%;ﬁ;§ﬁiﬁ BmE

receivables and deposits, loan receivables, finance lease receivables,
corporate note receivables, pledged bank deposits, bank balances and
debt instruments at FVTPL. The Group does not hold any collateral or
other credit enhancements to cover its credit risks associated with its
financial assets except that the credit risks associated with certain loan

receivables is mitigated because they are secured over properties. ERANEERR  HERETEKIERSE
AREER Iﬁﬁ%%ﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂ
$«< °

The Group’s internal credit risk grading assessment comprises the AEEABEERRIFTHBIEATE
following categories: Al :

Internal credit rating Description

Trade receivables

Other financial
assets/other items

Htt&mEE
AEB(E HAFR 9373 BHEWKREA HfthmH
Low risk The counterparty has a low risk of default and does not  Lifetime ECL—not credit-  12m ECL
have any past-due amounts impaired
(EWE HFFEHORRE - BWEEREERIE >HEHEEE 12EAEHREE
B-EBEERE BB
Watch list Debtor frequently repays after due dates but usually settle  Lifetime ECL—not credit- 12m ECL
in full impaired
BiRgE BEBARERIHAARENR - BBFERE >HEHEEE 12EAEHREE
wha B-BEERE &8
Doubtful There have been significant increases in credit risk since  Lifetime ECL—not credit-  Lifetime ECL—not credit-
initial recognition through information developed impaired impaired
internally or external resources
AJ&¢ BB HERAK - BRAPIINBERFEE 2HEHEEE THEHEEE
BERIRAEERBREZIEM B-EBEERE B-EBEERE
Loss There is evidence indicating the asset is credit-impaired  Lifetime ECL—credit- Lifetime ECL—credit-
impaired impaired
BB EEBETEELREERE 2 HREEEE 2 HITEEREEE
B—EERE B—EERE
Write-off There is evidence indicating that the debtor is in severe  Amount is written off Amount is written off
financial difficulty and the Group has no realistic
prospect of recovery
g EEBETESARREREVERE - A MESHE Gzl

S B30 S B R U (Bl 9 RI RE 1
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

eI RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2024 HZE_—Z—NF=A=+—HILFE

37. FINANCIAL AND CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

The tables below detail the credit risk exposures of the Group’s financial

assets, which are subject to ECL assessment:

155 5% oL B% e G (A £ ()

TRAMINEAEBALETRBEEERN G
ZEMEBEMEAIZEERR

37. &RLRE A mEEE (IR)

External [nternal 12mor 2024 023
Note credit rating credit rating Lifetime ECL ~ Gross amount  Gross amount
+-EAY  Z2ZmE 8=
Wit BEEFE  APEETE  2URNRESR X Lyt ]
Hk$million Hk$ million
BEATL BEAT
Financial assets at amortised cost BRBEATIRE SREE
Trade receivables BARUIR 4 WA Note Liftime ECL m 12
i3 swmp\med p oach
NER 2ERGE
‘ (8 tﬁ/i)
Loan rceivables EURER ! NA Low sk famECL - Q
EER +EAEHEERE
Doubtful Lifetime ECL 10 PAR)
(not credit impeired)
NER TR ABEBEEER
(EEERE)
Loss Lifetime ECL 168 -
(credt mpaired)
B :HRECERR-
(EERE)
28 itk
Corporae note receivables EULEER 2 A Lowrisk 1mECL 108 403
AR el T-EREH
EEBR
N/A Doubfful Lifefime ECL 17 -
(not credt aued)
NER g Lﬁﬁ]’ﬁ%ﬁ
(& *‘ém
N/A Loss Lifetime ECL 429 0
(credt mpaired)
NER FE 2HRHEEEE-
(EERE)
84 832
Other receivables and deposts HthEUFERT S i /A Lowrisk 1mECL 18 a
NER el +-f8R
REEEER
Bank balances and pleded bank deposts  EIEBRAEFETER U /A NA 1mECL 39 m
NER R +-f8R
BHiEEER
Others Rt
Finance lease receivables MERERUE /A Lowrisk Lietme ECL 1 2
(simpified approach)
R ERR  2HEHEEEE
(A
Note: The Group has applied the simplified approach in HKFRS 9 to measure Mi5E : ANEBE EABBMIETRE EHEEIR
the loss allowance for trade receivables on life time ECL basis. 2B REREHEREEBEELE
STERKE 5508 2 IR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBERRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2024 HZE—Z—_NF=A=+—HILFE

37. FINANCIAL AND CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

188 Aceso Life Science Group Limited

(CONTINUED)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)
Trade receivables

The Group has concentration of credit risk as 20.1% (2023: 10.3%)
and 59.9% (2023: 39.8%) of the total trade receivables was due from
the Group’s largest customer and the five largest customers respectively
within the rental income from construction machinery segment/securities
brokerage segment. In order to minimise the credit risk, the management
of the Group has delegated a team responsible for determination of credit
limits and credit approvals.

In addition, the Group performs impairment assessment under ECL model
on trade receivables collectively. Trade receivables are grouped based
on shared credit risk characteristics by reference to the Group’s internal
credit ratings and aging of outstanding balances. Impairment of nil (2023:
reversal of impairment of HK$9 million) is recognised during the year.
Details of the quantitative disclosures are set out below in this note.

The Group uses debtors’ aging to assess the impairment for its customers
in relation to rental income from construction machinery business because
these customers consist of a large number of customers with common risk
characteristics that are representative of the customers’ abilities to pay all
amounts due in accordance with the contractual terms. The following table
provides information about the exposure to credit risk for trade receivables
which are assessed on a collective basis by using provision matrix within
lifetime ECL (not credit-impaired).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FRE KM ERME
For the year ended 31 March 2024 HZE—Z—_NF=A=+—HILtFE

37. FINANCIAL AND CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT 37. &Mk EFREEE ()

(CONTINUED)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued) 15 55 R B B ik (B AT 4 (V)

Trade receivables (Continued) ¥ 5 ERHIE(E)

Past due
L1

Curent  1t030days 31t 90days 91to180days  Over 181 days Total
L 1Z308 UENR  91E0B  11BHLE it

Trade receivables - ental income from construction B R EUFE—RERHER L

machinery busingss EETIUN

As at 31 March 2024 R-B-MEZRA=+-H

Weighted average expected loss ate MELIESEER 46% 96% 196% 0% T13% AU2%
Receivable amount (HKSmilion) ThEEE(EERT) 13 18 3 3 11 I
Loss allowance (HKSmilion) FEREEERL) i 2 - 1 8 1
As at 31 March 2023 RZBZ=%ZR=1-H

Weighied average expeced loss rae MEDIESEER 2% 17% 25% 2.9% 61.5% 24%
Receivable amount (HKSmilon) hEE%EEET) 1 18 4 13 g 5
Loss allowence (HKSmilion) EBREEESAT) - 2 1 3 6 1
Trade eceivables ~ Securiies rokerage B AR AL

As at 31 March 2024 RZE-MEZA=+-H

Weighted average expected loss ate MELIESEER 10% 10% 10% 10% 10% 10%
Receivable amount (HKSmilon) hEEE(EERT) - 11 5 2 69 130
Loss allowance (HKSmilion) EREEGEEST) - . _ _ 1 i
As at 31 March 2023 R-BZ=%ZR=1+-H

Weighted average expected loss ate MEBIESEER 29% 29% 29% 2% 29% 20%
Reoeivable amount (HKSilon) hEEE(EEAT) 3 - 4 2 11 4
Loss alowance (HKSmilion) BREEESATL) 1 - - - - 1
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRI

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #EHZE_—ZFT_NF=-A=+—HILtFE

37. FINANCIAL AND CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT 37. MR EXEEEE(IE)
(CONTINUED)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued) {555 B BS Bk (B AT (V8
Trade receivables (Continued) R A E L)
Past due
.
Curent  1t030days  31to90days 91to180days  Over181 days Total

1L 12308 NEWR  9IEIA  1SAME &t

Trade receivables - rental income from EARKRE-NENEEEL

property leasing HalA
As at 31 March 2024 R-S-MEZA=1+-A
Weighted average expected loss ate MEHIESEER 31% 31% 31% 31% 31% 31%
Receivable amount (HKSmilion) ThEEE(EE#T) /] - - - - U
Loss alowance (HKSmilion) FEREEEST) 1 - - - - 1
As at 31 March 2023 RZBZZEZA=1-H
Weighted average expected loss ate MEBESEER 40% 40% 40% 40% 40% 40%
Receivable amount (HKSmillon) nkESE(EESRT) % - . _ _ %
Loss alowance (HKSmilion) EBREEEEAT) 1 - - - - 1
For the trade receivables from securities brokerage and rental income MBHEL 2 E FHREBGRIEREAREY
from leasing of investment properties, the Group applies internal credit ¥2HeWAME AEEHERFPER
rating for its customers and used a collective basis within lifetime ECL FerHBMEEBE(EFEREBE 2K
(not credit impaired). The estimated loss rates are estimated based on EME AT o HETEEETIBBREBATE
historical observed default rates over the expected life of the debtors and HF AN BTEEMSEORME - I
are adjusted for forward-looking information that is available without MEBANHBE KA HE A ESHIA
undue cost or effort. EMERHEL A% -
Trade receivables from securities brokerage and rental income from BHLAL 2 B 5 NG IER IR 4B 5150
leasing of investment properties with gross carrying amounts of HK$150 BEBT(ZE_=F 48888 ' F
million (2023: HK$48 million) with average loss rate of 1.0% (2023: 2.9%) HEBEAI0%(ZE_=F :29%) ' &
and HK$24 million (2023: HK$25 million) with average loss rate of 3.1% MR EYHE 2 HE WA REEBE R4
(2023: 4.0%) were applied, respectively. BEAT(CZE==F : 588%1L) ' ¥

BERRRIN(CT=5F : 40%) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
eI RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2024 HZE—Z—_NF=A=+—HILtFE

37. FINANCIAL AND CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(CONTINUED)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)
Trade receivables (Continued)

The following table shows the movement in lifetime ECL that has been

. ERREFEREEE R

15 55 8 B B2 i 4 (W)
B 5 FE W R IR (#8)
TRIIRIEB A E 5 U IRTER

recognised for trade receivables under the simplified approach. M ETREMEEEIEEE) -

HK$'million

BEBT
As at 1 April 2022 RZE-__FMWA—H 23
Recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss 4R A B KR P HER 9)
As at 31 March 2023 and 1 April 2023 R-E—=ZF=ZA=+—AK-_ZE-_=ZFWIA—H 14
Recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss ~ 7E4R A B K P HER =
As at 31 March 2024 RZZE-—mMFE=A=+—H 14
Loan receivables B

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased significantly since
initial recognition, the Group compares the risk of default occurring
on the financial instrument at the reporting date with the risk perceived
at the date of initial recognition. In making this assessment, the loan
receivables from borrowers are assessed individually by the management
of the Group, based on the financial background, financial condition and
historical settlement records, including past due dates and probability of
default, of each borrower and reasonable and supportable forward-looking
information that is available without undue cost or effort. Each borrower
is assigned a risk grading under internal credit ratings to calculate the
ECL, taking into consideration the estimates of expected cash shortfalls
which are driven by the estimates of probability of default and expected
loss given default, including taking into account the amount and timing
of cash flows that are expected from foreclosure on the collateral (if any)
less the costs of selling the collateral. At every reporting date, the financial
background, financial condition and historical settlement records of each
borrower are reassessed and changes in the forward-looking information
are considered.

REHE B IR ERR EE R R R LR EIR
e - AEEBNRE QSR T AR
A HE KR B 54 W RR B HR RN EI RO R
SAETTHLE o ETTUHRHAER - AEEEE
BILERSEBRANBHEER - BN
Mo EAN RS (BERE A 8 MEOR
) AREMMEBERAEENNOIE
ST AR A IR B AT R ST KR RO A
EIEER - HREERANERD BIETT
At o IRIEAEBE AR AR S BT
Rigo& - AHERBEEER - EP&t
Ko 138 OB R e FAHE KV B K P s 2R Y TR
HIIR SRR 2 (et - Bt R mEUH
BOEWA)BHELANRSABMELE
HHRRAOK AR Z 2B RERE - REERS
BH - HSERANTBES - BHR
RICBEENCEETERN NG - LEE
RIEEE R E L -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRI

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #EHZE_—ZFT_NF=-A=+—HILtFE

37. FINANCIAL AND CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT 37. &M EkEFREEE ()

(CONTINUED)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)
Loan receivables (Continued)

The Group considers various actions for recovery of the credit-impaired
loans including regular collateral review and communication with the
borrowers in order to keep updated with the latest credit risk profile of
the borrowers. In the event of occurrence of default with loans that have
collateral, the Group would take possession of the assets held as collateral
through court proceedings or accept voluntary delivery of possession of
the assets by the borrower. The credit quality review process enables the
Group to assess the potential loss in view of the credit risk it is exposed to
and to take appropriate corrective actions promptly.

As at 31 March 2024, included in the Group’s loan receivables were
debtors with aggregate gross carrying amount of HK$238 million (2023:
HK$257 million), of which (i) HK$37 million (2023: HK$45 million) were
secured by the borrowers’ pledged properties, the market value of the
properties less the estimated costs to sell amounted to HK$47 million
(2023: HK$53 million). The market value of the pledged properties
was determined using direct comparison method and was categorised
into Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy, the related cumulative ECL of
HK$6 million (2023: HK$6 million) was provided after considering the
adjustment to reflect loss given default based on the expected realisation
value of the collateral; and (i) HK$33 million (2023: HK$33 million) were
secured by a loan assignment in the net carrying amount of HK$17 million
(2023: HK$32 million), the related cumulative ECL of HK$16 million (2023:
HK$1 million) was provided after considering the adjustment to reflect
loss given default based on the expected realisation value of the collateral.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
eI RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2024 HZE—Z—_NF=A=+—HILtFE

37. FINANCIAL AND CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT 37. &Mk EFREEE ()
(CONTINUED)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued) 15 55 R B B ik (B AT 4 (V)

Loan receivables (Continued) B &R (|
The Group is not permitted to sell or repledge the collateral in the absence RERALEZLONEALT  AEERE

of default by the borrowers. HESBERERR -

The movement of impairment allowance on loan receivables for the year is

AEERWERHBERBESNT

as follows:
Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL
(not credit-impaired) (credit-impaired) Total
RURNERER 2WRMERER
(EfEHRE) (fEEME) ai
HKS million HKS million HKS million
BRET BRET BEET
A1 April 2022 R=E--£mA-A 162 - 162
Changes due to loan receivables recognised W11 A—- Bk
at1 April 2022: WESMHES
~ mpaimment allowance reversed -BERERE (22) - (22)
~ Write-off of impirment allowance MR BERE (29) - (29)
Exchange alignment [ 5 5% (3) - (3)
At 31 March 2023 i —s
=A=t1-H 112 - 12
Changes due to loan receivables ecognised R E_=FMA—HEEAE
at 1 April 2023: WERFHES :
~ Transferred to credit-impaired -BRSEEAE (168) 168 -
~ Impairment allowance recogised -BRAERE (7 = 84
~ Impairment allowance reversed SHERERE (3) - (3)
Exchangg alignment R R ) - )
At 31 March 2024 R-E-ME=A=1-H 2 168 191
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBERRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2024 HZE—Z—_NF=A=+—HILFE

37. FINANCIAL AND CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT 37. MR EXEEEE(IE)
(CONTINUED)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued) 15 55 PR B iRk (B AT 4% (1)
Corporate note receivables Bl ERE
For corporate note receivables, the management makes periodic individual HERCEZEMES  BREEERNBELE
assessment on the recoverability based on historical settlement records, itk - BELBRURAEBEZEENEN
past experience, and also quantitative and qualitative information that is BRHA IR B2 351 2 BTRE 14 B R E B E A
reasonable and supportive forward-looking information. ATl U R AT E 1 -
The movement of impairment allowance on corporate note receivables for AFERRWRCEZBREREZSHINT
the year is as follows:
Lifetime ECL
(credit-
12m ECL impaired) Total
274
12(8R ERER
RHERER (EEwE an
HKS million HKS million HKS million
BRET BRET BRET
At1 April 2022 R-F-—FNA-A 107 262 369
Changes dug to corporate note receivables recognised 1 =2 = — &7 A—HH#EA
a1 April 2022: RUAXZEMHES:
~ Impairment allowance reversed -BEREEE 2) - (2)
At31 March 2023 N —:
=R=1+-H 105 262 367
Changes due to corporate nots receivables recognised 78 =F = =F M A —H A
at 1 Aol 2023 AT Gt
~ Impairment allowance reversed -BERERE (14) - (14)
At 31 March 2024 RZE-ME=A=+-A 91 262 353
Other receivables and deposits At U RRIR B AT
HEMEWRIBRETEME @ EEEER

For other receivables and deposits, the management makes periodic
individual assessment on the recoverability of other receivables and
deposits based on historical settlement records, past experience, and also
quantitative and qualitative information that is reasonable and supportive
forward-looking information. The management believes that there is no
significant increase in credit risk of these amounts since initial recognition
and the Group provided impairment based on 12m ECL.
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37. FINANCIAL AND CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(CONTINUED)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
eI RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #H =

37. &Rk EFEEER (R

15 55 8 B B2 i 4 (W)

Other receivables and deposits (Continued) HtiEkHERT £ ()
The movement of impairment allowance on other receivables for the year is REEHMBRFIEREREBZ ST -
as follows:
HK$'million
BEBT
As at 1 April 2022 AZE-—FMA—H 6
Recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss ~ R4R& 1B &R NHER ()
Amount written-off as uncollectible sE AU E £ 58 (3)
As at 31 March 2023, 1 April 2023 and 31 March 2024 RZEZ=F=A=+—H"
:E::i@ﬂ H &
—E-HF=A=+—H 1
Pledged hank deposits/bank balances DIEMSBITER BITHEES
Credit risk on pledged bank deposits/bank balances is limited because AR S FH ARBEREETREET
the counterparties are reputable banks with high credit ratings assigned EASEEFRMIRIT WEBD KR

by international credit agencies. There has been no history of default in
relation to these banks. The Group performs impairment assessment on
the pledged bank deposits/bank balances under 12m ECL model. The
management of the Group considers the risk of default is low based on the
average loss rate by reference to credit ratings assigned by international
credit-rating agencies. The Group assessed that the ECL for bank balances
were insignificant.

Finance lease receivables

For finance lease receivables, the management makes periodic individual
assessment on the recoverability of finance lease receivables based on
historical settlement records, past experience, and also quantitative and
qualitative information that is reasonable and supportive forward-looking
information. The management believes that there is no significant increase
in credit risk of these amounts since initial recognition and the Group
provided impairment based on 12m ECL and the ECL was insignificant.

THER/RITEBNEERRBER - £
BEABZFRITHENLL - ARERE
128 AFEMEREEERLH D EMRITE
RRITREBRMELRERE - K2 ZER
EERAEER THEENR KEIE
EEENFHERERARORRAE -
AEBEFHRITERNBREEEEST
BX-

R R IR

EEHEREFENS  BEEEENB
EENRE  BEKRUARAEZEER
TEMEERHA R A5 1 2 BRI B R E
R RF 1 % & 1 & R IR R AT UL Bl 1 o
BEEERS %ELRNEERRAVS
MR AR AR E 7 - A AR EIZ121E
AEMEEERATDRERE  MEARR
HEERBRY TEX -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

%A

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #HZ=—=

37.

196 Aceso Life Science Group Limited

BTSRRI EE
THE=ZA=+—RHIFE

FINANCIAL AND CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

Liquidity risk and the basis for preparation on a going
concern basis

The Group'’s policy is to regularly monitor current and expected liquidity
requirements to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash and
adequate committed lines of funding from major lenders to meet its
liquidity requirements in the short and longer term.

As at 31 March 2024, the Group had net current liabilities of approximately
HK$949 million. The Group’s bank balances and cash as at 31 March
2024 amounted to approximately HK$350 million as compared to the
Group’s bank and other borrowings of approximately HK$1,633 million
and corporate notes payables of HK$420 million which are repayable
within the next twelve months from the end of the reporting period. These
conditions may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as
a going concern. In view of this, the directors of the Company have given
careful consideration to the future liquidity of the Group when assessing
that the Group has the ability to continue as a going concern, taking into
account the following plans and measures to address the liquidity issues
of the Group referred to above:

—  The Group has been actively communicating with the bank
for renegotiation of financial covenant terms of certain bank
borrowings and seeking new source of financing from other
financial institutions;

- The Group has been actively following up with the repayment status
of loan receivables and corporate note receivables which have been
overdue and consider to take appropriate legal action whenever
possible;

- The Group is exploring various channels for additional cash inflows

through utilising the Group’s assets, both free of encumbrances
and pledged, to secure funds of reasonable costs;

- The Group will continue to monitor and ensure that sufficient cash is
available when it is needed.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

eI RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2024 HZE—Z—_NF=A=+—HILtFE

37. FINANCIAL AND CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(CONTINUED)

Liquidity risk and the basis for preparation on a going
concern basis (Continued)

37.

The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual maturity for
its non-derivative financial liabilities. The table has been drawn up based
on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest
date on which the Group can be required to pay. The maturity dates for
other non-derivative financial liabilities are based on the agreed repayment

ERERFRREE )

REBRERBERIGHEEERETHRR
E e (i)

TRHNAEBEITESREBEBENTGRE
W - ZRDIREBESBBERMARER
ERH  ZFTREBEVREASERRE
ANTHNRFHHOE - HMIETESR
BEMNHASEERERAL -

dates.
The table includes both interest and principal cash flows. To the extent TXBENELRASESTEE ° WA &R
that interest flows are floating rate, the undiscounted amount is derived E A28 T X B|REIBSEENBEE]
from interest rate at the end of the reporting period. RN EETE o
On demand
and Between Total
less than 1yearto Between Over undiscounted Carrying
1 year 2years  2to5years Syears  cash flows amount
RS
BREKR RenE
PME  1ERE 2E5E BasE #E IREE
HK$'million ~ HK$'million ~ HK$'million ~ HK$'million ~ HK$'million  HK$’million
BEET HEET EHET SEET BEET EBEER
As at 31 March 2024 RZE_ME=RA=1+—-H
Trade payables BHENTE b - - - b b
Other payables, deposits received and accruals  EfofENZIE « EUGT & R JE
excluding contract liabilties FHER - TRERNAE 121 - - - 1271 127
Bank and other borrowings and coresponding  SR1T R EAEE R
interests S 1,666 28 10 - 1,704 1,660
Corporate note payables and corresponding ~ FE D Z 45 A RER| &
interests 455 106 - - 961 520
Lease liabilties HERE 1 5 5 - Al 19
2,265 139 15 - 2,19 2,332
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBERRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2024 HZE—Z—MF=A=+—HILFE

37. FINANCIAL AND CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT 37. MR EEEEETE(H)
(CONTINUED)
Liquidity risk and the basis for preparation on a going RDEERBERISEEEEETHRR
concern basis (Continued) B (18)
On demand Between Total
and less than Tyearto Between Over undiscounted Carrying
1 year 2years 2105 years Syears  cash flows amount
KRB
RERR BHeng

DIE 1ERMFE EFENE HESE ek RHE
HKSmillion ~ HK$million  HK$million ~ HK$million ~ HK$million ~ HK$ million
BEST BEET BE8AT BEET BEET BEATL

As at 31 March 2023 R-EZ=F=A=1+-—
|
Trade payables B HENTE 13 - - - 13 13

Other payables, deposits received and ~ E-AFEFFF0IE » BEUET
accruals excluding contract liabilties S REFER  TBE

AMAE 662 = = = 662 662
Bank and other borrowings and RITREMEENR
corresponding interests TR S 1,708 % 2 - 1752 1743
Corporate note payables and ENTEZERARFE
corresponding interests 463 143 - - 606 572
Lease liabilities MHEBE 15 10 - 30 29
2861 17 % 1 I
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
eI RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2024 HZE_—Z—NF=A=+—HILFE

37. FINANCIAL AND CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT 37. EMREXEBZER (8)
(CONTINUED)
Liquidity risk and the basis for preparation on a going RDEERBERIFEEEEETHRR
concern basis (Continued) 0 (18)
Bank and other borrowings with a repayment on demand clause are PSR EREBIERHRIT R EMERR
included in the “on demand and less than 1 year” time band in the maturity AL BB R DT R ERK R D F R
analysis above. As at 31 March 2024, the aggregate carrying amounts of BA -RZTE_MWE=A=+—RH ' &%
these bank and other borrowings amounted to HK$1,481 million (2023: fEﬁ&ET@%EE’JEEETE%@%E%1,4815%‘%
HK$1,534 million). Taking into account the Group’s financial position, BIL(ZEZ=F 153458 BL) - ££
the management does not believe that it is probable that the banks and BASBEMNBT B  BEERA/RITR
other financial institutes will exercise their discretionary rights to demand HEihe @M&%TK—J EITIE RG2Sk A
immediate repayment. The management believes that such bank and RER EEERA/RERITRAMEE
other borrowings will be repaid after the end of the reporting period KRR B K 5 Fﬁﬁﬁriﬂ%?ﬁ(ﬁ HIR R
in accordance with the scheduled repayment dates set out in the loan HIRIZ(ER - FFIBERN TR
agreements, details of which are set out in the table below:
Maturity analysis — Bank and other borrowings with a repayment on FEAR DT —RIBENRGTE - MHBIREK
demand clause based on scheduled repayments BiE 1'%?%%%&17 REAMEE
Between Total
Less than 1yearto Between  undiscounted Carrying
1 year 2years  2to5years cash flows amount
ARELIR
Rene
PIE AFRFE 2FESF g REE

HK$million ~ HK$million ~ HKEmillion  HK$million  HK$'million
BEET BBEET ABEET BBEST BBAT

31 March 2024 —B_NFE=A=+-—H 746 775 = 1,521 1,481
31 March 2023 —B_=F=A=t+-H 370 501 7 1,648 1,634

T NEFE EHRESRREEFRAT 199



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBERRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2024 HZE—Z—_NF=A=+—HILFE

38. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS

Some of the Group’s financial instruments are measured at fair value for
financial reporting purposes at the end of each reporting period.

In estimating the fair value, the Group uses market-observable data to the
extent it is available. For instruments with significant unobservable inputs
under Level 3, the Group engages third party qualified valuers to perform
the valuation.

The directors consider that the carrying amounts of financial assets and

financial liabilities at amortised cost recognised in the consolidated
financial statements approximate to their fair values.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
eI RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2024 HZE—Z—_NF=A=+—HILtFE

38. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS OF FINANCIAL 38. EMTAAFEEWE
INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
(a) Disclosure of level in fair value hierarchy: (a) DFEREEFHRHESE :
Description L 9173
Fair value measurements using:
LFEREER :
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
As at 31 March 2024 R_E_ME=RA=+—H FE1R 2R B3R -

HK$’million  HK$'million  HK$'million  HK$’million
BEESET BHEET BEET BEEET

Assets gE
Recurring fair value REMNTEE
measurements:
Financial assets at FVTPL AT EEEHEL
FTABRCEREE
— Listed securities — @S 83 - - 83
— Unlisted fund investment —FELEMESKRE - 33 - 33
— Convertible note — AR RE
receivable - - 3 3
Financial assets at FVTOCI AT EEREEL
STAEMEERE
— Listed securities — &S 15 - - 15
— Private equity —EREERE
investments - - 432 432

Total recurring fairvalue  EFMLAFEEEHEE

measurements 98 33 435 566
Liahilities =L
Recurring fair value REMNTEE
measurements:
Financial liabilities at FVTPL UAFEFEEHEEZE
FFABRZeRERE
— Corporate note payable -ERNTERE - - 539 539

Total recurring fairvalue  EFMOAFEEEHEHE
measurements - - 539 539
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRI

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #HZ=—=

38. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS OF FINANCIAL

THE=ZA=+—RHIFE

INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(a)

202 Aceso Life Science Group Limited

38. &M T RALTFEEEER)

Disclosure of level in fair value hierarchy: (Continued) (a) 2FERBEFHEE : ()
Description (Continued) R (1)
Fair value measurements using:
${EH+E $FH 0
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
As at 31 March 2023 R-E-_=%#=RA=+—H F1R E2R ERE FCh
HK$'million HK$'million HK$'million HK$'million
BEAT BEBT BEBT BEAT
Assets oE
Recurring fair value REMNTETE
measurements:
Financial assets at FVTPL AN EEAHEE
quME S EREE
— Listed securities — LFhESH 290 - - 290
— Unlisted fund investment —JEEMESKE - 78 29 107
— Unlisted debt instruments —FLEMEBIR - - 15 15
— Convertible note — BT RE
receivable - - 3 3
Financial assets at FVTOCI NFEFEAHEE
Jr)\ﬁi\ﬁﬂiﬁ%lﬁnz
~ Listed securities — &S 20 - - 20
— Private equity —EREERE
investments - — 781 781
Total recurring fairvalue  EFMOFEFEEHE
measurements 310 78 828 1,216
Liabilities =K
Recurring fair value REMNTEE
measurements:
Financial liabilities at FVTPL AT EFEEHEE
FTABRZeRARE
— Corporate note payable -ENCERE - - 578 578
Total recurring fairvalue  EFMOFEFEEHE
measurements - - 578 578
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
eI RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2024 HZE—Z—_NF=A=+—HILtFE

38. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS OF FINANCIAL 38. EMIALFEHEGNE)
INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
(b) Reconciliation of assets measured at fair value based (b)) ERBIBERLFEIHEZEESH
on level 3: R :
Financial Financial Financial
assets at assets at liabilities at
FVTOCI FVTPL FVTPL
DAFERER
HEt LIATFEHER MATFEHER
AR H#t HE(
2EkEZ HAREZ HAREZ
SMEE EMEE emaR
HK$’million HK$’million HK$’million
BHEET HEET HEET
As at 1 April 2023 R-E-=FMA—H 781 47 (578)
Total gains or losses recognised ERRNEERRE
—in profit or loss # — KRB - (43) 39
— in other comprehensive income —REMEEME (349) - -
Exchange alignment BEE 3, 392 - (1) -
As at 31 March 2024 R-B-_mE=A=+-H 432 3 (539)
) Include gains or losses for assets/ ¥ BHERREEKRAEE
liabilities held at end of reporting LE/ARZEE
period - (43) 39
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRI

For the year ended 31 March 2024 HZE—Z—MF=A=+—HILFE

38. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(c) Disclosure of valuation process used by the Group
and valuation techniques and inputs used in fair value
measurements:

The following table gives information about how the fair value
of the Group’s investments at fair value through profit or loss is

38.

eMTALTFEHNE )

(c) HEFREMEAZEEREFLUR
LFEIEMERZ HERT R &
ABR -

TRINSEERNAEEAEE AR
FEFEAEESFABEZIRE

determined. NTEEZER o
Level 2 fair value measurements FE2RAOFERTE
Description Valuation technique Inputs Fair Value
9373 fHER WARE NFE
2024 2023
ol S ) 2 3 —E-=F
HK$’million HK$'million
BRET BEATT
Financial assets at FVTPL
R AERTE A B AT
ABERZeMEE
— Unlisted fund investment Asset-based approach:  Net assets
determined by the fair
value of underlying
funds 33 78
—FLMESRE BEAMNE 28 BEEFE
RS AF
BEEE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2024 HZE—Z—_NF=A=+—HILtFE

38. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS OF FINANCIAL 38. EMT ALFEE ()

INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(c) Disclosure of valuation process used by the Group (c) HBEFREMERZEEEFLUR
and valuation techniques and inputs used in fair value NFEFERERZ & EB RS
measurements: (Continued) ABE : (@

Level 3 fair value measurements EIRLAFEE
As at 31 March 2024 R —FE—pjeF = =+—H
Unobservahle Sensitivity of fair value
Description Valuation technique inputs Range  Fairvalue tothe input
Ef f AFEHBARED
iR {hER BARE &#E AFE HEE
HK$'million
BEET
Financial assets at FVTPL
WATEFEAESL
AR EREE
— Gonvertible note receivable  Discounted cash flow: determined by expected cash inflow based  Discount rate The higher the discount
on cashlow projection rate, the lower the fair
value of the convertible
26.00% 3 note receivable
o LG ES BRRERE : pENREREANESRERA FHRE RREER  BRARk
B’ FROTEEE
Financial assets at FVTOCI
WATEGEREE
STARM2ENKEZ
eRAE
— Goodwill Asset-based Approach: determined by the fair value of underlying - Marketability The higher the marketability
assets and liabilities adjusted by ECL and their fair values Discount discount rate, the lower the
(as appropriate), based on the latest available financial fair value of the unlisted
statements, with adjustment of minority discount 15.70% 3 equity securities
BEEWE  BREUEGNENMERE  £8S RBthE pif. N i B R
BEEBERELTEEEAMT)HRLE LY TRFESF L FEEE
R EAENEREE R ENATERE
Minority Discount The higher the minority

discount rate, the lower the
fair value of the unlisted

30% equity securities
SYRETE DRRRARELR  *
IHRFESLTFERE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRI

For the year ended 31 March 2024 HZE—Z—MF=A=+—HILFE

38. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS OF FINANCIAL

INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(c) Disclosure of valuation process used by the Group
and valuation techniques and inputs used in fair value

measurements: (Continued)

Level 3 fair value measurements (Continued)

As at 31 March 2024 (Continued)

38. &M T RALTFEEEER)

(c) BEFKEMERZMGERFUR
O EEHE A E R Z (G Bl B
A8 - ()

EIMAFEEHE W)

R-FE-mE=F=4+—H#&

Unobservable Sensitivity of fair value
Description Valuation technique inputs Range  Fairvalue tothe input
IS} AFEHBABES
iR fhER BABE #E AFE HEBE
HK$'million
BEER
- Co-Lead Asset-based Approach: determined by the fair value of underlying  Marketability The higher the marketahility
assets and liabilities adjusted by ECL and their fair values Discount discount rate, the lower the
(as appropriate) based on the latest available financial fair value of the unlisted
statements, with adjustment of minority discount 15.70% 13 equity securities
BEEWE  REVEGNENMERE  £8 REnE nE TR FL
EEBEREATEBRERMNT)AELLIH TREEFLFEEE
R EARNEREE REBNATERE
Minority Discount The higher the minority
discount rate, the lower the
fair value of the unlisted
30.65% equity securities
DB R DHRERREEE 0 #
IHRFEFLATERE
— Quan Yu Tai Market-based Approach: determined by reference toaverage  Price to book The higher the price to book
multiples of companies' value in a similar industry with ratio, the higher the fair
similar operating characteristics value of the unlisted equity
0.81 10 securities
—2%% s - SREARNESHENENTERRN Wk mRERR @ FLTRE
THEERSRT EHLOTEER
Marketability The higher the marketahility
Discount discount rate, the lower the
fair value of the unlisted
15.7% equity securities
RTE AR L
TREEFLFERE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A BRI

For the year ended 31 March 2024 HZE—Z—_NF=A=+—HILtFE

38.

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(c) Disclosure of valuation process used by the Group
and valuation techniques and inputs used in fair value
measurements: (Continued)

Level 3 fair value measurements (Continued)

As at 31 March 2024 (Continued)

38. &M T RALTFEEEE)

(c)

HESKEMERZGEEFLR
LFEFIEMERZ (H{ER RS
ARE - &)

EIMAFEEHE (W)

RIFE-ZWE=H=+—H#&

Unobservable Sensitivity of fair value
Description Valuation technique inputs Range  Fairvalue tothe input
S} AFEHBARED
iR HER BARE #E NFE HRE
HK$'million
BRET

—Tonsin Asset-based approach: determined by the fair value of underlying - Minority discount The higher the minority
assets and liabilities adjusted by ECL and their fair values discount rate, the lower the
(as appropriate) based on the latest available financial fair value of the unlisted
statements, with adjustment of minority discount 16.81% 36 equity securities

.t BEEWE  REVESNENMBRE 88 JURERE DRRRTEEEE 5k
EEBRRERTEEEAMT)ARLE LY IHRFESLTFERE
R EAENEREE R BNATERE

~ China Pearl Asset-based approach: determined by the fair value of underlying - Minority discount The higher the minority
assets and liabilities adjusted by ECL and their fair values discount rate, the lower the
(as appropriate) based on the [atest available financial fair value of the unlisted
statements, with adjustment of minority discount 19.00% 301 equity securities

—R A% REERE  REVESNSNMERE S8 JURERS DRRRARELR  *
FEBEREATEEEAME)ARLLLH IHRFESLTERE
Rz ENRREAERARNATERE

— Empire Victory Asset-based approach: determined by the fair value of underlying - Minority discount The higher the minority
assets and liabilities adjusted by ECL and their fair values discount rate, the lower the
(as appropriate) based on the latest available financial fair value of the unlisted
statements, with adjustment of minority discount 17.15% 9 equity securities

— 8% BEEWE  REVEGNENMBRE S8 JURENS DRERTEEEE  *
GEBERAATEGREAME) ARLLIEY LIHRFEFLOTERE

BERREN AR R RRNATERT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBERRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2024 HZE—Z—MF=A=+—HILFE

38. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS OF FINANCIAL 38. EMT ALFERE (1)

INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(c) Disclosure of valuation process used by the Group (c) HEFEEMERAZGEEEFUR
and valuation techniques and inputs used in fair value SEEHERERZGER TR
measurements: (Continued) ABE - (@)

Level 3 fair value measurements (Continued) EIRMAFEHIEEE)
As at 31 March 2024 (Continued) N F —puE=H=+—H (&
Unobservahle Sensitivity of fair value
Description Valuation technique inputs Range  Fairvalue tothe input
FR% LFEHBABRENY
iR {hER BABE &#E NFE HRE
HK$ ' million
BEET
Financial liabilities at FVTPL
WATEHEAREL
iABEZERAE
— Corporate note payable Discounted cash flow: determined by reference to the Discount rate The higher the discount
consideration as stipulated in the equity transfer agreement rate, the lower the fair
and the projected profit together with expected dividend paid- 14.38%- value of the corporate note
out by the investee 15.06% 539 payable
-ERRERE BRRERE  2RREEZNINTNHEUR HHRE BRELS  BHLRF
BREBREA X NOFENRSEE ROTERE
Return on net The higher the return on net
assets ratio assets ratio, the higher the
10.09%- fair value of the corporate
33.96% note payahle
FEERRE PRECRERR B
LRFEBLTEER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2024 HZE—Z—_NF=A=+—HILtFE

38. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS OF FINANCIAL

INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(c)

38.

EMTRLFEETEGE)

Disclosure of valuation process used by the Group (c) HEFKEFEAZHKEEFUR
and valuation techniques and inputs used in fair value AFEMEMERAZEERTRE
measurements: (Continued) ABE : (1)
Level 3 fair value measurements (Continued) EIMOFEHAEH)
As at 31 March 2023 R—F—=F=H=+—H
Description Valuation technique Unobservable inputs Range Fairvalug  Sensitivity of fair valug to the input
RAEE RTEHBABEN
A hfERi BABE &g NHE  BEE
HK$ million
BEATL
Financial assets at FVTPL
WATEHEAESL
iABREREE
— Unlisted debt instruments  Discounted cash flow: based on the estimated  Discount rate The higher the discount rate, the lowe
future economic benefit inflow, with the fair value of the unlisted debt
discount rate 11.5% 15 instruments
—¥LMEBIA ERRENE  NAREMAEARE HRX BREES  JFLMEBIAR
ERGERA TEBE
— Gonvertible note receivable  Discounted cash flow: determined by expected  Discount rate 26.00% 3 The higher the discount rate, the lower
cash inflow based on cashflow projection the fair value of the convertible note
receivable
—ERAHREE ERGERE  mERRERENN BRX BRXEE  BRTBRZEAT
BERSRARTE fEHE
— Unlisted fund investment  Asset-based Approach: determined by Marketability The higher the marketabilty discount
reference to the fair values of underlying Discount rate, the lower the fair valug of the
funds 15.7% 29 unlisted fund investment
—FLMEERE BEEWE  2RAMESNATE RatnE natrEREs  FLhEe
B’ RANTEWE
Minority Discount The higher the minority discount rate,
the lower the fair value of the unlisted
30% fund investment
SEIRET R PERETEEEE  FLHE

ERENHERE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRI

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #HZ= -

THE=ZA=+—RHIFE

38. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(c) Disclosure of valuation process used by the Group
and valuation techniques and inputs used in fair value
measurements: (Continued)

Level 3 fair value measurements (Continued)

As at 31 March 2023 (Continued)

38. &M T RALTFEEEER)

(c)

HEFKEMERZEEEFLR
LFERIEMERZ HER TR &

ABR -

()

EIMAFEEHE W)

REF-_=F=-H=1—HE)

Description Valuation technique Unobservable inputs Range Fairvalue  Sensitivity of fair value to the input
FAEE NTEHBASEN
WA B BABE §E NHE  BEE
HK$ million
EE
Financial assets at FVTOCI
WATEEREE
STARM AN
PRAE
— Goodwil Asset-hased Approach; determined by the fair -~ Marketability The higher the marketability discount
value of underlying assets and liabilities Discount rate, the lower the fair value of the
adjusted by ECL and their fair values (as unlisted equity securities
appropriate), based on the latest available
financial statements, with adjustment of
minority discount 15.7% 3
ﬁégﬁirmﬁﬂﬁﬁmﬁ%ﬁﬁ Rt M@Hﬁﬁ s 0 3E ERE
B%  KEHEEBERAAY DNTHEBIE
{BERERME)FRLE D SR E
hEARNEEEERARNA
T{akE
Minority Discount The higher the minority discount rate,
the lower the fair value of the unlisted
30% equity securities
DEIRESR PERETEEES  FLmk
AEFATEBE
- Co-Lead Asset-based Approach: determined by the fair - Marketability The higher the marketability discount
value of underlying assets and liabilities Discount rate, the lower the fair valug of the
adjusted by ECL and their fair values (as unlisted equity securities
appropriate), based on the latest available
financial statements, with adjustment of
minority discount 15.7% 15
BEERL  REVESNENNE REtmE M@Eﬁﬁ < 0 3E ERE
B%  CEBEEBRREANT DNTHEBIE
{BERERME)FRLE D SR E
nEARNEBEERBEND
TEH#TE
Minority Discount The higher the minority discount rate,
the lower the fair value of the unlisted
30% equity securities
PEIRER PERETEEEE  FLmk
AEFATEBE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2024 HZE—Z—_NF=A=+—HILtFE

38. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS OF FINANCIAL

INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(c) Disclosure of valuation process used by the Group (c)
and valuation techniques and inputs used in fair value
measurements: (Continued)

Level 3 fair value measurements (Continued)

As at 31 March 2023 (Continued)

38. &M T RALTFEEEE)

HESKEMERZGEEFLR
LFEFIEMERZ (H{ER RS

ARE - &)
EIMAFEEHE (W)

R-CE_=F=HA=+—H#&

Description Valuation technique Unobservable inputs Range Fairvalue  Sensitivity of fair value to the input
FAER RTEHBABEN
R B BARE e ATE BEE
HK$ million
BEAT
~ Quan Yu Tai Market-based Approach: determined Price to book The higher the price to book ratio, the
by reference to average multiples of higher the fair value of the unlisted
companies' value in a similar industry with equity securities
similar operating characteristics 118 287
—2H% g% 2RABENEERTNE Tk MHREWS - ETRAES R
PITE AR THEERERE THags
Marketability The higher the marketability discount
Discount rate, the lower the fair valug of the
15.7% unlisted equity securities
mmttiE mAtrEEEE  FLRA
BRFATEGE
~Tonsin Asset-based Approach: determined by the fair -~ Minority discount The higher the minority discount rate,
value of underlying assets and liabilities the fower the fair value of the unlisted
adjusted by ECL and their fair values (as equity securities
appropriate), based on the latest available
financial statements, with adjustment of
minority discount 16.81% Q
i BEAWE  BEUERNSMNE DEREmE SEREERES - TR
8% ERHEEERRAAT AEADTEYE
{BERERME)FRLE D S E
hEARNEBEERAENR
THamE
~ China Pearl Asset-hased Approach: determined by the fair -~ Minority discount The higher the minority discount rate,
value of underlying assets and liabilities the lower the fair value of the unlisted
adjusted by ECL and their fair values (as equity securities
appropriate), based on the latest available
financial statements, with adjustment of
minority discount 16.00% 425
—RAH% BEAWE  REVESNENNY JERERE SERETERES - TR

B CEBERPRRELY
EEERMmE)BELLD AR E
TEARNRBEERAENA
e

AEH N HERE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRI

For the year ended 31 March 2024 HZE—Z—MF=A=+—HILFE

38. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(c) Disclosure of valuation process used by the Group
and valuation techniques and inputs used in fair value
measurements: (Continued)

Level 3 fair value measurements (Continued)

As at 31 March 2023 (Continued)

. EMTIRAAFEFTEG

(c)

HEFKEMERZEEEFLR
LFERIEMERZ HER TR &
AR - &
EIMOFEE W)

R-CE_=F=HA=+—H#&E

Description Valuation technique Unobservable inputs Range Fairvalug  Sensitivity o fair value to the input
FAIEE NHEHEAREN
R fhER BABR & NHE  BEE
HK$ million
BEBT
— Empire Victory Asset-hased Approach; determined by the fair  Minority discount The higher the minority discount rate,
value of underlying assets and liabilities the lower the fair value of the unlisted
adjusted by ECL and their fair values (as equity securities
appropriate), based on the latest available
financial statements, with adjustment of
minority discount 16.81% 10
— 85 BEEWE  REVEGNENME JERENS SERETEEEE  FLTR
B%  SEBEEBERAAY B AT ERE
{BERERME)BRLE D SR E
HEARNEEEERARNA
T{akE
Financial liabilities at FVTPL
WATEGEREE
iTABEZERAR
— Corporate note payable Discounted cash flow determined by reference  Discount rate The higher the discount rate, the lower
{0 the consideration as stipulated in the the fair value of the corporate note
equity transfer agreement and the projected payable
profit together with expected dividend 12.22% -
paid-out by the investee 12.44% 578
~ERLERE ERReNE  2RRRESHEN FRX BREER  BNRCEREAT
EMHENREREHR B EHE
MEMENREREE
Return on net assets The higher the return on net assets ratio,
ratio 10.17%- the higher the fair value of the corporate
34.23% note payable
FEERRE FEEDREES  EALER
BATEER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2024 HZE—Z—_NF=A=+—HILtFE

39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 39. MEEAXH
Key management compensation FEEHEARTH
2024 2023
—E_E —E-=F
HK$’million HK$'million
BEEET BEAT
Short-term employee benefits EHES R 19 19
Share-based payment LARR A FE R AR - 1
19 20
Save as disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial statements, the BrézE MR HAM I D FIHREEN - B
Group had no material transactions with related parties during the years ETNFERZT_=F=A=+—H
ended 31 March 2024 and 2023. IHEFE  AEETEEREH LTS -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBERRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2024 HZE—Z—_NF=A=+—HILFE

40. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS

(a)

214 Aceso Life Science Group Limited

Major non-cash transactions

For the year end 31 March 2023

(1)

(iif)

On 28 October 2022, Novel Advice Limited (“Novel Advice”),
an indirect non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company,
and an independent third party (the “Seller”) entered into
a share transfer Agreement, pursuant to which Novel
Advice had conditionally agreed to acquire and the Seller
had conditionally agreed to sell 6% of the entire issued
capital of China Pearl Global Limited (“China Pearl”) at the
total consideration of HK$255,000,000 which was settled
upon completion as to (i) HK$50,000,000 by cash; and (ii)
HK$205,000,000 by the issue of the consideration note.

On the same day, Leading Partner Group Limited (“Leading
Partner”), a direct wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
and the Seller entered into a share transfer agreement,
pursuant to which Leading Partner has conditionally agreed
to acquire and the Seller has conditionally agreed to sell 4%
of the entire issued capital of China Pearl Global at the total
consideration of HK$170,000,000 which was settled by issue
of consideration note upon completion.

The transactions were completed on 7 November 2022.

During the year 31 March 2023, the Group’s other receivable
at HK$123 million and loan receivable at HK$157 million
are settled by note payable in the same amount.

On 7 September 2022, the Group signed a subscription
agreement with Central Wealth, pursuant to which Central
Wealth (1) partially repays a lump sum of HK$8,250,000,
comprising principal of HK$6,000,000 and the interest
accrued of HK$2,250,000; and (2) issues notes in the
principal amount of HK$44,000,000 (the “2nd Central
Wealth Notes”) to settle the Central Wealth Notes of
HK$44,000,000. The 2nd Central Wealth Notes is interest
bearing at 15% per annum, unsecured and due on 6
February 2023. Expected credit loss amounted to HK$1
million was provided as at 31 March 2023.

Annual Report 2023/24

40. FERKRBERME

(a) FEFREXH
He—F_=—F=HA=+—HIF

iy RZEZ=—F+A=+N\H-

AARMEEZEIEEZENB QR
Novel Advice Limited ([Novel Advice)
BBEVE=FTBEADTZ
RMmEZERZE - B - Novel
Advice B i&HRIEWEE - ME
FEKEREZELERBEALKER
BKAERAR ([ RHBPEK]) 2
BEITIRANGCYD © BREB
255,000,000/ 7T+ W FARK 2 B LA
(i) 50,000,00078 7TIR & M (ii) 21T
RABZE1£205,000,00078 TS+ ©

RER  ARrEZZEN
BRRVEEEARAR (L
BDEE R TR EZED
& B UEREREREK
BomMESARERELESD
BIRAIR 2 B 2 TR V4%
#R (B /&170,000,000/8 7T » 7&K
BREXFABRTREREDN
TR e

REBER_TBE_=F+—A+t
H e

(i) RZZE_=F=A=+—H#F
€ REENEAMRKKI23E
BETMEREFRISTEERTT
NEBEEREXA -

iy "ZBE-ZZZFAALH " K
SEHEPEFERERE
Bl pE)—AEER
4 %68,250,0008 70 - BIEA
46,000,000 7t X FEET A B
2,250,000/8 7T i M (2)31TA
&% 544,000,000%8 LR EE
(E-HBPEZER]) UBEE
44,000,000 ST HFEZE © 5B
CHREERIRFE R E15%
B EmER BR-Z-=F
“ARNHEH -BHE_ZT—_=
F=ZA=+—1H CEHEEE
BRI1008ETT -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2024 HZE—Z—_NF=A=+—HILtFE

40. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)

40. FERKRB RN GR)

(b) Changes in liahilities arising from financing activities (h) MEFEFBHEEARZEH
The following table shows the Group’s changes in liabilities arising TEREINFAAEEREFTHEE
from financing activities during the year: T EEEE)

Amount dug to Financial  Total liabilties
adirectorof  Bank and other Corporate Lease Inferest liabilities from financing
subsidiaries ~ borrowings  note payables liahilities payables atFVTPL activities

-4 NATEHE
KELR #17R BREMHA  REEEC
EERE AR BAGRXRE 0 BRAR 0 BHHR REIEMAR 2 AREE
HS millon H§ millon HkS million HS millon H§ millon HkS millon HKS millon
BERT  BEET  AEET  REET  REER BEAT  REET
Asat 1 April 2022 K-E-"EmA-A 0 19 ) piy 9 629 31
Changes n cash flows Renes ) (129) /] (19) (112 - (25)
Non-cash changes Fhes
~Finas coss ~BERA - - - 1 12 - 19
- Gan on eatysetfement o -RABREA LSRG
corporate nofg payables - - - - (34) - (34)
-Ofisetwihcomoraerofepayables— — S RERGCEEE - - 0 - () - -
- Offtwit loanand o ecshables — — EHEUAEER
Efp NG = = (280) - - - (280)
- hequiston o fnancielassts VTG — BB AT B3 B B2
2l ALt 2EhEL
SHAE = = 3 = = - 3
-Mdtosandmodfcaionol ks~ —RERB:THE - - - 1 - - 1%
- Bichange diference -ERER - (4) - - 11 - )
Fairvalus adjusment YRR - - - - - (i) B1)
Asat 3t Mach 023and 1Al 203~ W=FZ=E=A=T-AR
“3-=FMmA-A = 178 5 piy U 5 2,966
Changes incash lows Benesy 1 (%) (32) (16) (14) - (309
Non-cash changes FReEy
~Finan coss ~BERA - - - 1 10 - 11
-hottonsnd mocifcatonoflesse.~~ ~FERBTHEE - - - 5 - - 5
- Bxfenge fence -EHEE - 11 - - 2 - 1
Fair valug adjustment ATERR - - - - - (39) (3)
As at 31 March 2024 R-E-mE=A=t-H 1 1,660 50 19 U 5% 218
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBERRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2024 HZE—Z—_NF=A=+—HILFE

41. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES AND INTERESTS IN
SUBSIDIARIES

(a)

(b)

216 Aceso Life Science Group Limited

Alcott Global Limited (the “Target Company”)

On 11 May 2022, Victory Bright Limited (the “Vendor”), the
Target Company, both of which are indirect non-wholly owned
subsidiaries of the Company, and Glaring Sand Holdings Limited
(the “Purchaser”) entered into a sale and purchase agreement,
pursuant to which the Vendor conditionally agreed to sell, and
the Purchaser conditionally agreed to purchase 15% of the entire
issued share capital of the Target Company, at a cash consideration
of US$20 million (equivalent to approximately HK$156 million).
The disposal of 15% equity interest in the Target Company was
completed on 16 May 2022.

The effect of change in the ownership interests of the Target
Company on the equity attributable to owners of the Company
during the year ended 31 March 2023 are summarised as follows:

(a)

M. HEMBLAFRMELFER

Alcott Global Limited([ B 2T )

RZZE-Z—_FRA+—8 GBF
RARITEADRBEZEAR(RES
ARNRNEEIEZENBAR)H
Glaring Sand Holdings Limited([ & 757 ) 5T
VEEWE B BABKER
EHEREFBERHREEBE%E
ERARIEBITRG ReREA20E
BXTHEERHNI6EEET) - B
EBERARIBEN_TE__F1
A+/NB5EK °

BHE-_ZE-_=F=R=1+—HItF
B BERRFMEEESEHYEAR
NRIHEEARGESNTEREN
T

HK$'million
BEBT
Consideration received WERIMIERE 156
Increase in non-controlling interest FEPZ AR M 2 1 AN (162)

(6)

Movement in equity RS
HT Strategy Fund SPC

During the year ended 31 March 2023, the Group disposed of
HT Strategy Fund SPC (“SPC”) at a cash consideration of HK$1
million resulted in gain on disposal of HK$1 million. SPC has no
asset and liability at the date of disposal.

Annual Report 2023/24

(b)

HT Strategy Fund SPC

BHE-_ZE_=F=A=+—HI%F
B AEBURSRE1008EETH
EHT Strategy Fund SPC([SPC)) - ZE4
HEWZE10088T - REERE
SPCImEEERALE -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
eI RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2024 HZE—Z—_NF=A=+—HILtFE

41. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES AND INTERESTS IN
SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

(c)

Hao Tian International Construction Investment Group
Limited (“HTICI”)

On 27 July 2023, Hao Tian Management (China) Limited, an
indirect wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, as the seller,
has signed an agreement with Yitai Share (Hongkong) Co., Ltd. (a
wholly owned subsidiary of Inner Mongolia Yitai Coal Co., Ltd.*) as
the purchaser to dispose of 1,400,088,000 shares (being 18.37%
of the total issued share capital) of HTICI (an indirect non-wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company) at the consideration of HK$420
million. The disposal constituted a major transaction under the
Listing Rules and was completed on 17 October 2023.

After the disposal, the Group’s shareholding in HTICI decreased
from 47.4% to 29.02% equity interest of HTICI. HTICI Group
remain subsidiaries of the Group. The effect of change in the
ownership interests of HTICI on the equity attributable to owners
of the Company during the year ended 31 March 2024 are
summarized as follows:

4. HEMELRRMELFER

L=

(c)

RXEFRERRERATRLF
((RXBFRE®RKRE )

RZEBE-_=F+tA=-++H" AR
AEEEEMBRARIZRAEXER
(FBNERAFMEREH EFR(R
DEBERAT(NEHFRERR
MERAFNEZENBARNIEAE
FEEW#  AR0BEBTHRE
HEZREBRERIRE(RRE M
B IEEE M E R 7))1,400,088,0000% A%
PGB BITRARA18.37%) ° %
ERBEIMBRUEBREARS I
RZE_=F+A+tHEK

REEE%  AEBRIKEBRER
BB BT 4%F E29.02% -
ERBEERREEBNALEE
BB AR - HE_ZT -_MF=A
=+—HIEFE  ZXERERE
BEEEESEHHARAEE A
RS EBENT

HK$'million

BEET
Consideration received W EEE 420
Increase in non-controlling interest FEFRE AR 2R I N (301)
Movement in equity ek ) 119
Other than disclosed above, the Group had not made any material BRIA EBBEIN - RAFEAEE W

acquisition, disposal of subsidiaries and associates during the
year.

* For identification purposes only

BEAWNE  LEMBRBEER
EJO

Y EHEFZA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBERRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2024 HZE—Z—_NF=A=+—HILFE

42. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND

RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

(a)

Statement of financial position of the Company

(a) FLFMBRREER

42. FLTFIMBHHRRERR GRS

2024 2023
—E_mE —E-=F
HK$’million HK$'million
BHEET HEBIT
Non-current assets EREEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries JrE LB BB A BB - 1533
Pledge bank deposit EEIRIRITER 15 30
15 1,563
Current assets MENEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries N PR 3,515 3,160
Financial assets at FVTPL WAFEFEBEZ(LETA
BasemEE 5 3
Corporate note receivable R R 89 65
3,609 3,228
Total assets BEHRE 3,624 4,791
Current liabilities mENAE
Other payables and accruals HMENFIERETER 37 38
Bank and other borrowings RITREMEE 481 500
Corporate note payables FERT SRR 420 435
Amounts due to subsidiaries FEAH B A R FUE 1,731 1,765
2,669 2,738
Net current assets MENEERE 940 490
Total assets less current liabilities  FEEEREDERE 955 2,053
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2024 HZE—Z—_NF=A=+—HILtFE

42. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 42. KATMRFER AR TR G iH S5
RESERVES OF THE COMPANY (CONTINUED) (#8)
(a) Statement of financial position of the Company (a) FAFMHBIRAEE )
(Continued)
2024 2023
—E-mE —E-=F
HK$’million HK$'million
HEREET BEAT
Non-current liabilities ERBNAE
Corporate note payables BN ERE 100 137
100 137
NET ASSETS BEERE 855 1,916
Capital and reserves B & Bk fim
Share capital [N 73 73
Reserves T 182 1,843
TOTAL EQUITY #oME 855 1,916
The statement of financial position of the Company was approved RATFERABRERN S OFE
by the Board of Directors on 26 June 2024. NAZtTNBEESSHE o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRI

For the year ended 31 March 2024 HZE—Z—MF=A=+—HILFE

42. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 42. EAFIMBRAERR G IGEE
RESERVES OF THE COMPANY (CONTINUED) ()
(b) Reserves of the Company (b) ELFEEEE
Share-hased
Share payment Accumulated
premium reserve Other reserve losses Total
Y30
RipgE Rfte H Gt RHBR a5t
HKSmillion HKSmilion HKS million HKSmillion HKSmillion
REBT BEBTL BEAT BEAT BEAT
pdlprlde RZB-ZERA-B oo oo oo kmy o 1878
Loss and total comprehensive loss for FRBSE R 2EEEL
e I SR SRR SR W )
Asat 31 March 2023 and 1 April 2023 =B -=F=F
o =)
“Z-=#QA-H 4,811 3 40 (3,047) 1,843
Loss and total comprehensive loss for AR 2 EEER
the year # - - - (1,061) (1,061)
As at 31 March 2024 RZZ-mE
S 4,811 3 40 (4,108) 182

220 Aceso Life Science Group Limited  Annual Report 2023/24



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
eI RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2024 HZE—Z—_NF=A=+—HILtFE

43. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

(a)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries

Particulars of the subsidiaries as at 31 March 2024 and 2023 are as

43. RMBLTRZER
(a) FEMBLFIFNRS

RZE_WER_FT_=ZF=H

follows: = t+t—HZWBARFEBWT -
Issued and
Place of fully paid
Name of the incorporation/ up share capital/  Equity interest attributable
subsidiary establishment registered capital ownership interest  Principal activity
1300 A1 ERITRBER
EEeh R R */BEREF FEREREERE TEXH
2024 2023
—ZomE —FT-=F
Aceso-Promethera Asia Company Hong Kong HK$1,000 100% 100%  Investment holding
Limited (“Aceso-Promethera”)
Aceso-Promethera Asia Company &7 10005 7T REER
Limited
(I Aceso-Promethera))

Alcott Global Limited (*Alcott”) BVI US$100 24.67% 40.43%  Investment holding

Alcott Global Limited ([ Alcott)) BERIHES  100ET REER

Beijing Hao Tian Investment Fund PRC US$370,000 100% 100% Investment holding

Management Co., Limited
TREXAREESERER F 370,000% T REAZK
NG
Big Wish Developments Limited (‘Big  BVI US$100 29.02% 4757% Investment holding
Wish”)
Big Wish Developments Limited EERIHES  100ET REZER
(IBig Wish)

Chim Kee Company Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000,000 29.02% 4757% Construction machinery rental and trading
and sales of construction materials
business

SLARAT 00 1,000,000/ 7 BEHMAEE RIEENR
BEMHHEERH

Chim Kee Machinery Co., Limited Hong Kong HK$1 29.02% 4757% Construction machinery rental and trading
and sales of construction materials
business

GEmERAR 00 BT BEMHAE RIEHE N REEY
HEERK

Dasar Prisma Sdn. Bhd.(“Dasar”) Malaysia Malaysian Ringgit 2 29.02% 47.57% Property development

Dasar Prisma Sdn. Bhd.([Dasar]) ~ BRFEAD QERALRE MEERE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBERRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2024 HZE—Z—_NF=A=+—HILFE

43. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

43. RMBLTRZ#ER ()

(a) Particulars of the principal subsidiaries (Continued) (a) EEMBLTFEGEE
Issued and
Place of fully paid
Name of the incorporation/ up share capital/  Equity interest attributable
subsidiary establishment registered capital ownership interest  Principal activity
1A ERTRMER
EfeeR RRIiE */gEREEx FEREREERE TEXE
2024 2023
—ZEBCME —T-o=F
Esteem Ocean Limited BVI US$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
mARRAE RBRAHS 1ET REER
Fujian Nuoai Co., Ltd PRC RMB122,158,800 60% 60% Retailing of men's and women’s apparels
BRHAFTROERDA g AR 122,158,8007T BRRUKTE
Glory Gentury Limited Hong Kong HK$100 29.02% 4757% Investment holding and provision of
group management and administration
Services
EMERRA] 0 1007 REZRA IR EEEE R
TR
Hao Tian Finance Company Limited ~ Hong Kong HK$1,210,000,000 100% 100% Money lending
RRUBERAT BH 1.210,000,0007 7T WE
Hao Tian Hua Tong (Beijing) Co., PRC RMB5,000,000 100% 100% Investment holding
Limited
ERERUARNESERLDA AERH5,000,0007T REER
Hao Tian International Hong Kong HK$310,000,000 29.02% 47.57% Securities brokerage business
Securities Limited
ERBEFREFARRA Bt 310,000,000/ 7C BRI
Hao Tian Management (Hong Kong) ~ Hong Kong HK$10,821 100% 100% Securities investment, investment holding
Limited (*HTM") and provision of management services
RREBEB)BRARRKR &5 10,8217 7T BARE  REERRRHEEE

BE))
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

eI RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2024 HZE—Z—_NF=A=+—HILtFE

43. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

(a) Particulars of the principal subsidiaries (Continued)

43. RMBLTRZ#ER ()
(a) EEMELTHENEGEE

Issued and
Place of fully paid
Name of the incorporation/ up share capital/  Equity interest attributable
subsidiary establishment registered capital ownership interest  Principal activity
3] A1 ERITRBER
{101 R B */itfmEsx FEREREERE IERE
2024 2023
—ECME —E-=F
Hong Kong Energy & Mining Hong Kong HK$1 100% 100% Trading of futures
Investment Management Limited
BANRBEEREER 00 BT HEEE
BRAF
HTICI Cayman Islands HK$75,593,561 29.02% 4757% Investment holding
EREFRERRE FEHS 75,593 5617 7T REZK
K B Machinery Co. Limited Hong Kong HK$1 29.02% 47.57%  Construction machinery rental and trading
and sales of construction materials
business
BULERARAR &t 18T BERMAE REHENLEEY
REEEK
Merrymaking Investment Limited BVI US$10,000 100% 100% Investment holding
EEEXEE  10000%T REZK
Pleasing Results Limited BVI US$10,000 100% 100%  Investment holding
EEELES  10000%T REZK
Win Team Investments Limited BVI US$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
EBRAME 1ET REZK
55 Mark Lane S.ar.l. Luxembourg Eur20,000 100% 100% Rental business
ERE 20,0008 7T HEFH
Notes: Bt EE
(1) The English names of certain subsidiaries represent the best (1) BERETHBARIEEXNEX

effort by the Group’s management to translate their Chinese
names, as these subsidiaries do not have official English
names.

(2)  All the above PRC-incorporated subsidiaries are limited liability

companies.

(3)  The above list contains the particulars of subsidiaries which
principally affected the results, assets or liabilities of the Group.

E2H MZEMNBRARZRXE
WOAREBEEREBNBEES
XM o

FiA e B R A S B A A
HAERELAT -

EREIBEARERE BEX
BERBKEIEREZNB AR

&
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRI

For the year ended 31 March 2024 HZE—Z—_NF=A=+—HILFE

43. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 43. RIIBARIZIER (I8
(b) Material non-wholly owned subsidiaries (b)) EXFEREMELH
The following table shows information of subsidiaries that have TR AEEHRBRAREEERKN
non-controlling interests (“NCI”) material to the Group. The FEIERR A RS ([T i 2SR B ) -
summarised financial information represents amounts before inter- MBEMNSERMEL QG HEEH
company eliminations. A2 & °
(i)  Chim Kee Company Limited (i) &HEARLTE
2024 2023
ot Jou 1 - TE-=F
HK$’million HK$'million
BEET BEATL
Assets and liabilities as at 31 March R=A=+—HAZEEKEE
Current assets MEVEE 77 58
Non-current assets MBI EE 125 150
Current liabilities RBAE (16) (22)
Non-current liabilities EREAE (39) #4)
147 145

Profit or loss for the year ended BHE=-A=+T—HLFEEH

31 March
Revenue WA 33 42
Profit/(loss) and total FRmH, (B8 &
comprehensive income/ 2HEWE (%) 858
(expenses) for the year 1 (3)
Profit/(loss) allocated to DB E IR S
non-controlling interests mF (E8) 1 @)
Dividend paid to non-controlling AT IR R R B
interests - =
Cash flows for the year ended HEZA=Z+—HIFEZRS
31 March mE
Net cash inflow from operating KRR MAFEE
activities 22 34
Net cash outflow from investing KEER ML FEE
activities (33) (21)
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from BMEEBRLSARA (R F58
financing activities 16 2)
5 11
Accumulated non-controlling interests 25t IJEIEARHERS 104 76
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A BRI

For the year ended 31 March 2024 HZE—Z—_NF=A=+—HILtFE

43. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

(b)

43. RMBLTRZ#ER ()

Material non-wholly owned subsidiaries (Continued) (b)) EXFER2EMELTF G
(ii) Glory Century Limited EAFRLTE
2024 2023
—E_mE —EC-=F
HK$’million HK$'million
BHERET BEAL
Assets and liabilities as at 31 March R=A=+—HZEEM AE
Current assets mENEE 164 164
Non-current assets EMBEE 35 49
Current liabilities RBAE (275) (269)
Non-current liabilities ERBBEE - (3)
(76) (99)
Profit or loss for the yearended 31~ EZE=A=+—HIEFE 7 Ex
March
Revenue A - =
(Loss)/profit for the year FN(EB), 5 (9) 12
Other comprehensive expenses Hith2mpAx (7) (12)
Total comprehensive expenses FAZAMAX
for the year (16) -
(Loss)/profit allocated to non- DIEEIEERER
controlling interests (B518) /& F (6) 6
Dividend paid to non-controlling ST IR R B
interests - =
Cash flows for the year ended BHE=ZA=Z+—HIFEZRE
31 March mE
Net cash outflow from operating KRR G ML FEE
activities (1) (28)
Net cash inflow from investing KEERSRAFE
activities - 35
Net cash outflow from financing BEEESH SR FEE
activities - (7)
(1) -
Accumulated non-controlling interests 25t FEFEARAE RS (54) (31)

R =F/ZNFFER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRI

For the year ended 31 March 2024 HZE—Z—MF=A=+—HILFE

43. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

(b) Material non-wholly owned subsidiaries (Continued) (b)

(iii) HTICI

(iii) RXBPFEERVT

43. RMBLTRZ#ER ()
EXF2EMELE G

2024 2023
—E-mF =5
HK$ million HK$'million
BHERET BEATL
Assets and liabilities as at 31 March HRZ=A=+—HZEEM AE
Current assets mENEE 1,573 1,336
Non-current assets EMBEE 52 707
Current liabilities RBAE (399) (218)
1,226 1,825
Profit or loss for the year ended BE-A=+—HLFEEH
31 March
Revenue WA 7 13
(Loss)/profit and total FANER), B &
comprehensive (expenses)/ 2HEFER), W ierE
income for the year (679) 189
(Loss)/profit allocated to non- DELE IR S
controlling interests (B518), /&7 (482) 99
Dividend paid to non-controlling YA IR 2 B
interests - =
Cash flows for the year ended HE=ZA=Z+—HIFEZRS
31 March mE
Net cash (outflow)/inflow from KETEFIRE (RE),RAFE
operating activities (105) 28
Net cash outflow from investing WEEBR ML TR
activities (18) -
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from BMEEBRLSARA (R F58
financing activities 138 (28)
15 =
Accumulated non-controlling interests 25t FEIEARHERS 870 957
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
eI RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2024 HZE_—Z—NF=A=+—HILFE

43. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 43. REATZER (1])

(b) Material non-wholly owned subsidiaries (Continued)

(iv) Alcott Global Limited

(b) EXFREMELTF )

(iv) Alcott Global Limited

2024 2023
—E_E TEC=F
HK$’million HK$'million
BHRET BEET
Assets and liabilities as at 31 March R=A=+—HZEEMAE
Non-current assets EMBNEE 798 1127
Profit or loss for the year ended HEZAZ=+—RIEFEZIER
31 March
Revenue WA - =
Loss for the year FNEE (325) (3)
Other comprehensive (expenses)/  ANFEEME2E(FER), e
income for the year (4) 3
Total comprehensive expenses AEETEAXERE
for the year (329) =
Loss allocated to non-controlling AIEEIFERER B8
interests (245) —
Dividend paid to non-controlling XA T IR R 2 AR
interests - —
Accumulated non-controlling interests 25T JEFpRE 2R 566 671

No cash inflow and outflow during the year ended 31 March
2024 and 2023.

BE_Z_NMER-_FT_=F
“A=T—HLFE LER
ERARRH

44. COMPARATIVE FIGURES 44. LEEBBF

Certain comparative figures as set out in the consolidated statement
of financial position and consolidated statement of cash flows have
been reclassified to conform with current year's presentation. These
reclassifications have no material effect on the comparative figures in
consolidated statement of financial position and consolidated statement of
cash flows of the Group.

REMBMARLGAERERERPET
HERBFEEHNOE - UHFERFENT
BAA - REFEH D BHARBRSYT
PARREEARSRERTHLBRHFTL
ﬂéﬁ%ﬁ;ﬁﬁo
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

RESULTS xR
Year ended 31 March
BE-A=1t—HLEE
2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
TECEE —E-—F TE-CF —E-=F —E_mE
HK$'million HK$'million HK$'million HK$'million HK$’million
BEET BEET BB BEATL HEET
Revenue WA 296 346 315 312 228
Profit/(loss) for the year TIATEIEFENER
attributable to: I,/ (&58) :
— owners of the Company —AREERA (284) (376) (370) (264) (462)
— non-controlling interests —JEIE AR R 6 28 (226) 56 (347)
Profit/(loss) for the year FREF/ (B8 (278) (348) (596) (208) (809)
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BERAR
As at 31 March
R=R=+—-H
2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
—E-FE —E-—-F —E-—F —E--F —E-mE
HK$'million HK$'million HK$ million HK$ million HK$’million
BEAT BEAT BEAT BEAT BRET
Total assets BERE 5,034 6,165 6,263 6,301 4,786
Total liabilities ARG (2,538) (3,151) (3,436) (3,726) (2,973)
2496 3,014 2827 2575 1,813
Equity attributable to owners of the A2 B8 A B #E R
Company 2490 2382 2,002 1,549 921
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